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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B 5=

Changes
2022 g
HK$'m %
B 2T AL
Loss for the Year Attributable to KARHEE ANELERN
Owners of the Company E518 (947.4) (734.6) 29.0%
Net Assets FEE 3,486.4 4,494.5 (22.4%)
Total Assets BERE 7,771.1 10,018.8 (22.4%)
Equity Attributable to Owners of the 22 BB A FE(G A% HE
Company 3,119.8 4,022.4 (22.4%)
Cash and Bank Balances Re MIRTTAE B 57.3 97.5 (41.2%)
Changes
2022 )
Key Performance and Liquidity FEZERER HK$ %
Indicators B AR RIS AE BT B
Basic Loss Per Share SIREREE
(Note 1) (Hfa1) (0.4111) (0.3187) 29.0%
Net Assets Per Share (Note 7) GREEFEMNZT) 1.35 1.75 (22.9%)
P/E Ratio (Note 1) MEEHF1) (0.34x) (1.02x) (66.7%)
Return on Capital Employed (Note 2) & ARBISRR (f/7E2) (30.37%) (18.26%) 66.3%
Return on Total Assets (Note 3) BEERIWRE(ME3) (12.19%) (7.33%) 66.3%
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BELEHZ4) 113.85% 98.76% 15.3%
Adjusted Gearing Ratio (Note 5) CRABEELR(AZS) 112.01% 96.33% 16.3%
Current Ratio (Note 6) mENLE (KT i16) 0.81x 1.88x (56.9%)
Interest Coverage (Note 7) FEEEERAZ7) (1.81x) (0.49x) (269.4%)

Notes:

1.

Based on 2,304,849,611 shares issued and fully paid as at 31
December 2023 (2022: 2,304,849,611 shares) and the market
closing price as at 31 December 2023 of HK$0.138 (2022:
HK$0.325) per share. Net assets per share is calculated
as net assets attributable to owners of the Company over
number of shares issued and fully paid.

2. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company over equity attributable to owners of the Company.

3. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company over total assets.

4. Calculated as borrowings and convertible bonds issued by the
Company over equity attributable to owners of the Company.

5. Calculated as net borrowings (borrowings and convertible
bonds issued by the Company net of pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balances) over equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

6. Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.

7. Calculated as loss for the year attributable to owners of the

Company before finance costs and taxation over finance
costs.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION % & ¥

Board of Directors

The composition of the board (“Board”) of directors
(“Directors”) of Silver Grant International Holdings Group
Limited (“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) during the year ended 31 December 2023 (“Year
20283”) and as at the date of this annual report is set out
below:

Executive Directors

Chu Hing Tsung (Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Chen Yongcun (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Luo Zhihai

Tang Lunfei

Weng Jian (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)

Wang Ping (resigned with effect from 1 April 2023)

Non-executive Director

Chen Zhiwei

Independent non-executive Directors
Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Audit Committee

Hung Muk Ming (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Remuneration Committee

Zhang Lu (Committee Chairman)

Liang Qing

Luo Zhihai

Nomination Committee

Chu Hing Tsung (Committee Chairman)
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

Company Secretary

Ng Hoi Leung, Leo
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CORPORATE INFORMATION #¥& 8

Company Lawyers

LCH Lawyers LLP
Auditor
Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Secretaries Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

(Tel: 29801333 Fax: 28108185)

Registered Office
Suite 4901, 49th Floor,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza,

1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(Tel: 28023606 Fax: 28029506)

Company Website

http://www.silvergrant.com.cn

Stock Code

171

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$947,409,000 for Year 2023,
as compared with that of approximately HK$734,563,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year 2022"). Basic loss
per share (“Share”) of the Company was 41.11 HK cents for
Year 2023 (Year 2022: 31.87 HK cents).

In 2023, the global macro-environment was complex
and volatile as a result of the frequent extreme weather
conditions, the rapid developments in artificial intelligence,
the continued regional conflicts and the volatility in the Sino-
US relations, which all led to a faltering world economy.
The economy of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”,
“China” or “Mainland China”) also experienced a series of
challenges, including insufficient effective domestic demand,
difficulties in the real estate industry and pressure on foreign
trading. Nevertheless, China’s economy had still contributed
significantly to global economic growth and remained one of
the largest engines of global growth in 2023.

£ C1) ]
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Company’s joint venture, R /& HR(FM)AILER A
Al (Zhong Hai You Qi (Tai Zhou) Petrochemical Company
Limited*) (“Zhong Hai You Qi”), which is principally engaged in
the crude oil processing business as well as the production
and sale of petrochemical products, has still successfully
achieved its production and operation goals for Year 2023,
despite the challenging and complex issues in connection
with its products, such as the volatile international crude
oil prices, the sharp decrease in the spread between the
wholesale price and the retail price of domestic refined oil
products, and the ongoing decline in the prices of chemical
products. During the year under review, Zhong Hai You Qi
strictly implemented various modules of its production safety
and health, safety and environmental management systems.
By adopting a diversified sales model that combines both the
wholesale and retail markets, Zhong Hai You Qi has created
a complementary management system that integrates sales
and logistics to achieve a stable increase in the number of
its customers and steady improvement in its delivery speed,
which has laid a solid foundation for stabilising its market
share. Zhong Hai You Qi has also made good strides in
advancing its high-end lubricating oil business, including (1)
the seamless progress of scientific research on adjuvants
for animal vaccines, for which it has been exploring with
business partners for industrial production and application;
(2) the ongoing enhancement of product competitiveness
and the reinforcement of partnerships with prominent
multinational enterprises and state-owned enterprises; and
(3) the breakthroughs in export for transformer oil products
which are supplied to Southeast Asia and the Middle
East. Nevertheless, Zhong Hai You Qi carried out a major
overhaul at its factory during Year 2023, which resulted in
a suspension in its operation for two months and thus a
decline in its overall performance for Year 2023 as compared
with that for Year 2022.

*

English name is translated for identification purpose only

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Given the prevailing government policies and the
development trends in relation to the green industry, the
Board believes that making investments in the relevant sub-
sectors of the new energy industry would be an essential
move for the Group to achieve its strategic transformation.
In the second half of 2023, the Group made additional
adjustments to its strategic deployment. With respect to
conventional energy, the Group had continued to support the
transformation and upgrading of the petrochemical industry
towards fine chemicals. Regarding the new energy business,
the Group had concentrated on investing in distributed
photovoltaic projects and electric vehicle charging pile
projects, striving to create its own competitive advantages in
the “photovoltaics, storage and charging” business sectors.

In 2023, the photovoltaic cell module project company
invested by the Company’s joint venture, 1t 7 2 5 #7 6 R
B AR & T AR (Beiing Lingjun New Energy Technology
Company Limited*) (“Beijing Lingjun”), had reached significant
milestones. In September 2023, the first module of the first
5GW high-efficiency heterojunction cell and module project of
the project company (which is engaged in the research and
development, production and sales of photovoltaic module
in China) was successfully rolled off the production line. In
October 2023, the project commenced mass production. In
December 2023, the project company started delivering the
first batch of high-efficiency heterojunction module products
to its customers.

In December 2023, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with a partner in relation to investments in
distributed photovoltaic projects, pursuant to which a
rooftop distributed photovoltaic power plant with an installed
capacity of approximately 1.3MW shall be constructed. The
plant is currently in the pre-construction phase subject to the
approval for project filing.

*

English name is translated for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments

The Group has been well-established in the investment
industry for decades and has developed its own investment
system. During the year under review, the Group had
readjusted its business strategies and made the decision
to scale down part of the business operations under its
investments business segment (including its non-performing
asset investments and asset management businesses), and
redirected its focus to equity investments, and in particular
to those in the new energy industry and its sub-sectors.

The Group has made investments in certain enterprises
in the PRC which are classified by the Group as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31 December
2023, the NT Trust Scheme (as defined below) was the
most significant financial asset investment of the Group, the
carrying value of which represented approximately 3.0% (31
December 2022: 3.9%) of the total assets of the Group.
Further details of the NT Trust Scheme are set out below:

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEEGR A
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The Group has invested RMB505,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$557,419,000) in aggregate into a trust
(“NT Trust Scheme”) managed by BIR{Z5EAR A A (National
Trust Co., Ltd.”), which holds a portfolio of limited liability
partnerships investing in property development investments
in Zhuozhou and Shenyang in the PRC. As at 31 December
2023, the carrying value of the NT Trust Scheme as
measured at fair value through profit or loss, amounted
to approximately HK$230,801,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$387,458,000) and accounted for approximately 3.0% (31
December 2022: 3.9%) of the total assets of the Group. Out
of the loss of approximately HK$147,287,000 (Year 2022:
HK$166,108,000) recorded by the Group in the change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss for Year 2023, a loss of approximately HK$151,936,000
(Year 2022: HK$35,309,000) was attributable to the fair
value change of the NT Trust Scheme as at 31 December
2028. The Group did not receive any distribution from the
NT Trust Scheme during Year 2023 (Year 2022: Nil). Based
on the current investment strategy of the Group, its interest
in the NT Trust Scheme is held for trading and classified
as a current asset in its consolidated statement of financial
position.

*

English name is translated for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

In 2023, the Group successfully disposed of certain non-
performing asset investment projects and recovered
part of the funds. In relation to the existing equity
investment projects, the investment management team has
comprehensively sorted out the progress of the projects,
strengthened its post-investment management of the
projects and paid attention to the market dynamics at all
times, so that each project can be exited at an appropriate
time.

The objective of the Group in relation to its investments in
financial assets is to capture returns from the appreciation
of the value of its investments and to receive income
therefrom. The Board believes that the performance of the
financial asset investments of the Group is dependent on
the financial and operating performance of the investee
companies and market sentiment, which are affected by
factors, such as interest rate movements, national policies,
and the performance of the major economies. The Group
will continue to adopt prudent investment principles, closely
monitor the performance of its investment portfolio, and
readjust its investment strategies as and when appropriate.
In response to the potential market volatility and economic
downturns, the Group has accelerated the realisation of
its mature investments while reducing the proportion of its
medium and long-term investments to improve its liquidity
position.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Leasing

The rental income from the Group’s property leasing
business in Year 2023 was approximately HK$96,958,000
(Year 2022: HK$96,884,000), which had remained stable
between the two years. Revenue from this business segment
was derived from the leasing of East Gate Plaza, an
investment property of the Group located in Beijing, China,
consisting of apartments, shops and offices. The property
operation team of the Group has endeavoured to implement
various measures to stabilise the rental income of the Group,
including: (1) conducting monthly market research, keeping
abreast of market trends, and flexibly adjusting leasing
strategies; (2) actively maintaining the relationships between
the Group and its existing corporate and institutional
customers and developing new customers to establish
a long-term stable customer base; and (3) developing a
rigorous and timely collection process to recover any rents in
arrears and improve the rent recovery ratio of the Group in
2023.

EHROE(E)
MEEE

AEEMEREEEN2023FEMHES KA
A #796,958,0007% 7T (20224 [£96,884,000
L) MEFEZRARIBEBE - 298
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B2  AEBEMELEBEBRBBEES
FREBTASKA - 85F (1UAEARE
HE TS AT - BB EE - BIERHE
HERE : ()EBEBARALENEER
FEREHER  MRERBABENT P
B R EIT TRERSNEMARZIABE
R WHE2023F AekE T S M AT UK E
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2024, global economic growth is
expected to slow down further. It is noted from China’s
Central Economic Work Conference held in December
2023 that stable growth will remain the keynote of the
economic work of China in 2024. The main tasks of the
Chinese government will include expanding domestic
demand, effectively resolving the risks of the real estate
corporations, and promoting financial stability. It is expected
that investors will still focus on identifying new growth
drivers through innovation and value chain upgrade, while
capital in the market will continue to pour into areas such
as the digital economy, artificial intelligence development
and green technology. In order to maintain the stable growth
of its existing businesses, the Group will delve deeply
into new energy and scale down its investments in non-
performing assets and loans gradually. By strengthening
the construction of talent teams, developing relationships
with different business partners and considering diversified
financing channels, the Group will increase its investments
in the “photovoltaics, storage and charging” sectors in the
new energy industry, so as to lay a solid foundation for its
sustainable development.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 11 October 2023, (i) the Company, Silver Grant Hainan
Investments (BVI) Limited (“SG Hainan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Silver Grant Group Limited
(“First Purchaser”), an independent third party, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which (a) the
Company and SG Hainan have conditionally agreed to sell,
and the First Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire,
100% of the issued shares of Real China Development
Limited (“Target Company”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company which held offices 1, 2 and 9 on
49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, No. 1 Harbour
Road, Hong Kong (“Office Property”), and (b) the Company
has conditionally agreed to sell, and the First Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire, all amounts, including the
principal and interest owing by the Target Company to the
Company, at the consideration of HK$200,000,000, subject
to adjustments (“First Disposal”); and (i) the Company and
Mr. Gao Jimmy Z. (“Second Purchaser”), an independent
third party, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to sell, and the Second Purchaser has conditionally agreed
to acquire, the duplex apartment 9B on 9/F & 10/F, No.
6A Bowen Road, Hong Kong and the car parking space
No. 106 on 2nd Level Basement, No. 6A Bowen Road,
Hong Kong (“Investment Property”), at the consideration of
HK$70,000,000 (“Second Disposal”).

Both the First Disposal and the Second Disposal were
completed in December 2023. Further details of the First
Disposal and the Second Disposal are set out in the
announcement and the circular of the Company dated 11
October 2023 and 22 November 2023 respectively.

Save for the above, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal during Year 2023.

EARBREEER

72023108118 - ()& 7] ~ Silver Grant
Hainan Investments (BVI) Limited ([SG
Hainan| * A4 Ralz2EHE AR )EIRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company

increased by approximately 29% from approximately
HK$734,563,000 for Year 2022 to approximately
HK$947,409,000 for Year 2023 and the basic loss per
share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
increased from 31.87 HK cents for Year 2022 to 41.11 HK
cents for Year 2023, mainly due to the following:

(@)

the decrease in the Group’s other income, gains and
losses from approximately HK$467,687,000 for Year
2022 to approximately HK$258,946,000 for Year
2023, mainly due to the combined effect of: (i) the
decrease in the aggregate interest income from an
amount due from a joint venture and loan receivables
from approximately HK$455,174,000 for Year 2022
to approximately HK$202,694,000 for Year 2023;
and (ii) the gain on the disposal of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$36,957,000 during Year 2023, which
was absent during Year 2022;

the increase in the Group’s impairment of financial
assets, net from approximately HK$251,580,000
for Year 2022 to approximately HK$489,129,000
for Year 2023, mainly attributable to the increase
in the impairment loss provision in the amount of
approximately HK$172,452,000 made by the Group
on its loan receivables under the expected credit
loss model in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments from Year 2022 to Year 2023, as a result
of the deterioration in the credit quality of the Group’s
loan receivables during Year 2023;
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

(c)

the decrease in the loss from the fair value of the
investment properties of the Group from approximately
HK$208,156,000 for Year 2022 to approximately
HK$63,646,000 for Year 2023, mainly due to (i) the
decrease in the fair value loss of the Group’s investment
property located in Beijing as at 31 December 2023, as
compared with that as at 31 December 2022; and (ii)
the disposal of the Investment Property by the Group in
December 2023;

the decrease in the finance costs incurred by the Group
from approximately HK$530,034,000 for Year 2022 to
approximately HK$342,422,000 for Year 2023, mainly
due to the full redemption of the convertible bonds by
the Group in the first half of Year 2023; and

the decline in the performance of Zhong Hai You Qi
(one of the Company’s joint ventures) in Year 2023 as
a result of the major overhaul carried out by Zhong
Hai You Qi at its factory, which led to a two-month
interruption in its operation in Year 2023 and hence
the turn of the Company’s share of Zhong Hai You Qi’s
result from a profit of approximately HK$6,600,000 for
Year 2022 to a loss of approximately HK$68,937,000
for Year 2023.

Revenue

Rental income of the Group for Year 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$96,958,000 (Year 2022: HK$96,884,000),
which had remained stable between the two years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Other income, gains and losses

The decrease in the Group’s other income, gains and
losses from approximately HK$467,687,000 for Year 2022
to approximately HK$258,946,000 for Year 2023 was
mainly due to the combined effect of: (i) the decrease in
the aggregate interest income from an amount due from
a joint venture and loan receivables from approximately
HK$455,174,000 for Year 2022 to approximately
HK$202,694,000 for Year 2023; and (i) the gain on the
disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$36,957,000
during Year 2023, which was absent during Year 2022.

Impairment of financial assets, net

The increase in the Group’s impairment of financial assets,
net from approximately HK$251,580,000 for Year 2022 to
approximately HK$489,129,000 for Year 2023 was mainly
attributable to the increase in the impairment loss provision
in the amount of approximately HK$172,452,000 made
by the Group on its loan receivables under the expected
credit loss model in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments from Year 2022 to Year 2023, as a result of
the deterioration in the credit quality of the Group’s loan
receivables during Year 2023.

Change in fair value of investment properties

The decrease in the loss from the fair value of the investment
properties of the Group from approximately HK$208,156,000
for Year 2022 to approximately HK$63,646,000 for Year
2023 was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in the fair
value loss of the Group’s investment property located in
Beijing as at 31 December 2023, as compared with that as
at 31 December 2022; and (ii) the disposal of the Investment
Property by the Group in December 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Finance costs

The decrease in the finance costs incurred by the Group
from approximately HK$530,034,000 for Year 2022 to
approximately HK$342,422,000 for Year 2023 was mainly
due to the full redemption of the convertible bonds by the
Group in the first half of Year 2023.

Share of profits or losses of joint ventures

The change in the Company’s share of profits or losses of
joint ventures from profits of approximately HK$1,130,000
for Year 2022 to losses of approximately HK$83,071,000
for Year 2023 was mainly attributable to the decline in the
performance of Zhong Hai You Qi (one of the Company’s
joint ventures) in Year 2023 as a result of the major overhaul
carried out by Zhong Hai You Qi at its factory, which led to
a two-month interruption in its operation in Year 2023 and
hence the turn of the Company’s share of Zhong Hai You
Qi’s result from a profit of approximately HK$6,600,000 for
Year 2022 to a loss of approximately HK$68,937,000 for
Year 2023.

Property, plant and equipment

The substantial decrease in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group from approximately HK$238,199,000
as at 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$54,134,000
as at 31 December 2023 was mainly due to the disposal of
the Office Property in December 2023, which had been used
by the Company as its office in Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables

The decrease in the Group’s accrued charges, rental deposits
and other payables from approximately HK$1,204,446,000
as at 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$419,184,000
as at 31 December 2023 was mainly attributable to (i)
the settlement of certain payables due to other creditors
of approximately HK$715,004,000 by the Group in Year
2023; and (ii) the decrease in the accrued interest payables
as at 31 December 2023 as compared with that as at 31
December 2022, as a result of the full redemption of the
convertible bonds by the Group during the first half of Year
2023.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative treasury policy under
which the Group keeps its investment costs under control
and manages the returns of its investments efficiently. The
Group has guidelines in place to monitor and control its
investment risk exposure and to manage its capital. The
Group also strives to reduce its exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. The Board closely
reviews the Group’s liquidity position to ensure the Group
has adequate liquidity to meet its funding requirements at all
times.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)

Cash Position

BEBEE(E)

REMRR

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Restricted bank balance PR HISR T AS 84 - 674,814
Cash and bank balances RE RIRTTEES 57,333 97,517
Total R 57,333 772,331

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and bank
balances were denominated in the following currencies:

MR2023F12A31H » AEB 2R e MRITH
BIE TP EEHE -

HK$ BT 5.0% 0.5%
RMB AR 94.7% 99.5%
USs$ ET 0.3% 0.0%

100.0% 100.0%

The Group conducted its business almost exclusively in RMB
except that certain transactions were conducted in HK$ and
United Sates dollars (“US$”). The conversion of RMB into
HK$, US$ or other foreign currencies has been based on
the rates set by the People’s Bank of China. The value of
RMB against HK$, US$ and other foreign currencies may
fluctuate and is affected by factors such as changes in the
PRC’s political and economic conditions. The Group has
not adopted any financial instruments for hedging purposes.
However, the Group will constantly assess the foreign
exchange risk it encounters so as to decide on the hedging
policy required against the possible foreign exchange risk
that may arise.

BETRZUBTRET(ETDETIN
AEBBRAFDEBHGAARBET - AR
BHEBT  ELREMINETNIZBAEAR
RITRENEXRH R - ARBHET - X
REMIMENEES SN AXHEBE
REESARBEEAEZNTE - ARELE
RAEASRTAESRAR - AW - A&
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total borrowings

amounted to approximately HK$3,551,936,000 in aggregate.
The composition of these borrowings is summarised below:

EXRBEKE)
BEELTRMER
R2023F 12 A31H » REE ZEFRRREN B

3,551,936,000/8 7T ° 7% 55 f& 50 A0 48 A 8 2 a0
T

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$°'000

FEx FET

Short term borrowings SR-EEr=E 3,485,049 1,388,974
Long term borrowings REIER 66,887 2,541,766
Convertible bonds AR (E - 41,712
Total borrowings BB EE 3,551,936 3,972,452
Cash and bank balances Re NIRTES 57,333 97,517
Net borrowings BRCFER 3,494,603 3,874,935

Interests for all borrowings of the Group for Year 2023 were
charged at fixed and floating rates ranging from 3.7% per
annum to 27.6% per annum (Year 2022: 3.7% per annum to
12.0% per annum).

As at 31 December 2023, the long and short term
borrowings of the Group which remained outstanding were
denominated in the following currencies:

R2023F [ - NEEFTAERZHF B2
BlE R FB M EETHE - N FENKITREF
MEK27.6% (2022F & : F M E3.7%=E FF
#12.0%) °

R2023F12A31H » AEEEAERE 2 KH
TS EE IR T H e EHE ¢

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FETT

HK$ BT - 180,000
RMB AR 3,551,936 3,750,740
3,551,936 3,930,740
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

TREASURY POLICY (Continued) ERBUER (&)

Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued) BEESRERE)

As at 31 December 2023, the long and short term R2023%F12A31H @ REEHAEEZ KH
borrowings of the Group which remained outstanding carried REBETREEREBAEFENSEN
at fixed and floating interest rates as follows: ™

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET

Fixed interest rates & F Al =& 1,456,876 1,689,583
Floating interest rates FENFIER 2,095,060 2,241,157
3,551,936 3,930,740
As at 31 December 2023, the maturity profile of the long 2023F 124318 + AEBERBHREHER
and short term borrowings of the Group was as follows: BB R AT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Bank loans repayable: FEEBIRITER
Within one year or on demand —FRNPIREL 161,700 50,392
In the second year E_F 33,775 152,856
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEZFNF(BEBEEMRSF) - 35,386
195,475 238,634
Other loans repayable: JEEEHMER
Within one year or on demand —FRHIZER 3,323,349 1,338,582
In the second year E_F - 333,147
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ZFEhF(BEEEMSE) 33,112 2,020,377

3,356,461 3,692,106

3,551,936 3,930,740
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

The 12% per annum convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,150,000,000 due in December
2022 issued by the Company had been fully redeemed after
the Company redeemed the remaining balance of such
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$41,712,000 during the first half of Year 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio (calculated as
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, over equity
attributable to owners of the Company) and the current
ratio (calculated as current assets over current liabilities)
of the Group were 114% (31 December 2022: 99%) and
0.8x (31 December 2022: 1.9x) respectively. These ratios
are key performance indicators used by the management
of the Group to measure the Group’s level of leverage to
ensure the Group has the liquidity to meet its financial
obligations at all times. The Group will strive to improve its
liquidity by expediting the collection and/or disposal of its
outstanding loan receivables and the disposal of its financial
asset investments (including its equity investments and non-
performing assets portfolio).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$57 million and the Group’s
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,485
million are due to be repaid within 12 months from the
end of the reporting period, including (i) borrowing of
approximately HK$195 million which has not been repaid
according to the scheduled repayment date before the end
of the reporting period; and (ii) borrowings of approximately
HK$3,007 million with original maturity dates of over one
year from the end of the reporting period which have been
reclassified to current liabilities due to the delay in the
payment of interest of certain borrowings and which has
been repaid after year end. Furthermore, subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, another borrowing of the Group
with a principal amount of approximately HK$131 million
has not been repaid according to the scheduled repayment
date. Up to the date of this annual report, the Group has
not received any demand for immediate repayment of these
and other borrowings, and the Group has been actively
negotiating with the lenders for extension of the repayment
date of certain of the aforesaid borrowings.

ERBE(E)
BEESRER(E)

20285124318 » AEE 2B & RIRITEH
#: 47 /57,000,0008 70 + M ASEERERE
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REREHRATM A LZRBTEERBHEEY
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

In view of the above circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the Group’s future liquidity
requirements, operating performance and available sources
of financing in assessing the Group’s ability to continue
operating as a going concern. The following plans and
measures are formulated to manage the working capital and
improve the financial position of the Group:

()  the Group will continue to implement measures for the
disposal of the outstanding loan receivables and loan
interest receivables;

(i)  the Group will continue to take measures to expedite
the disposal of the financial asset investments,
including equity investments and non-performing assets
portfolio;

(i) the Group will continue its negotiations with the lenders
of certain bank and other borrowings or other financial
institutions on the refinancing of the borrowings; and

(iv) the Group will obtain additional credit facilities from
existing and other lenders as and when needed.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management, which cover a period
of not less than 12 months from 31 December 2023. They
are of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within 12
months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly, the Directors
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements of the Group on a going concern basis.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

TREASURY POLICY (Continued)
Working Capital and Borrowings (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist
as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and
Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern would depend on (i)

measures as described above.

the successful and timely implementation of the plans and
measures for the disposal of the outstanding loan receivables
and loan interest receivables; (i) the successful and timely
implementation of the plans for the disposal of the financial
asset investments; (iii) the continual support from the existing
lenders of the Group such that they will not demand for
immediate repayment of the relevant borrowings; and (iv)
the successful obtaining of new sources of financing as and
when needed.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned
plans and measures and operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

GRANT OF LOANS

The Group has granted loans to persons who were
introduced by the management of the Group, taking into
account that the grant of the loans would provide interest
income to the Group, which would bring better returns
to the Group than bank deposits, in the absence of good
investment opportunities with high returns, and broaden
the income base of the Group. However, taking into
consideration the current difficult economic conditions in
the Mainland and the global markets, the Group does not
intend to grant any further loans save for the loans and
advances which may be made to the Company’s associates
or business partners.

Before granting the loans, the Group performed the following
credit risk assessment:

(i) understanding the background of the borrower,
including its entity type, place of registration and nature
of business;

(i)  assessing the credit worthiness, reputation and credit
history of the borrower etc.;

(i)  performing public search to collate information about
the borrower, such as checking the borrower’s details
in the “National Enterprise Credit Information Publicity
System” in the PRC;

(iv) obtaining the financial information of the borrower, such
as its financial statements;

(v) understanding the source of repayment from the
borrower for assessing the repayment ability of the
borrower; and

(vi) if security is required to be provided, reviewing
the adequacy of the securities and performing due
diligence on the securities such as conducting property
public search.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)

After the grant of the loans, the Group has designated
officers of its Financial Management Centre to monitor the
repayment of the loans on the maturity dates. If there is any
delay in the repayment of the loans, the designated officers
will make telephone calls and/or send letters or messages
to the borrowers in default to demand for repayment; and
negotiate with the relevant borrowers for the repayment or
settlement of the loans.

The Group may also engage lawyers to advise and/or assist
in the recovery of the loans such as issuing demand letters
to the borrowers in default, demanding for repayment of the
outstanding amounts owed to the Group, and commencing
legal actions against the relevant borrowers.

The Group will review and enhance its measures on the
collection of loans and receivables to improve its loan
recovery efficiency and financial resources.

Loan receivables

As at 31 December 20283, the carrying amount of the
outstanding loan receivables of the Group (“Relevant Loan
Receivables”) amounted to approximately HK$1,894,369,000
(31 December 2022: HK$2,246,377,000), approximately
HK$156,000,000 (before loss allowance) (31 December
2022: HK$156,000,000) of which were guaranteed. The
Relevant Loan Receivables had fixed terms ranging from 2
months to 2 years (2022: 2 months to 2 years), with interest
being charged at rates ranging from between 4.75% per
annum to 20% per annum (2022: 4.75% per annum to 20%
per annum).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

The Relevant Loan Receivables were granted to 56 corporate
borrowers with business operations in China. Most of them
are companies established in China. As at 31 December
2023, the Group’s gross loan receivables amounted
to approximately HK$2,352,282,000 (31 December
2022: HK$2,395,699,000), out of which approximately
HK$220,751,000 (31 December 2022: HK$223,964,000)
(representing approximately 9.4% (31 December 2022: 9.4%)
of the total gross loan receivables of the Group) was due
from the largest borrower of the Group and approximately
HK$579,551,000 (31 December 2022: HK$582,764,000)
(representing approximately 24.6% (31 December 2022:
24.3%) of the total gross loan receivables of the Group) was
due from the five largest borrowers of the Group. All of the
borrowers of the loans are independent of the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”)).

An ageing analysis of the Group’s loan receivables (net of
loss allowance for the loan receivables) based on the initial
loan commencement dates as set out in the relevant loan
agreements is as follows:
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2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Within one year —F RN 346,627 1,303,898
After one year but within two years —FIEMFR 778,191 585,244
After two years but within five years MEBRFN 769,551 357,235
1,894,369 2,246,377
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)
An ageing analysis of the Group’s loan receivables (net of

loss allowance for the loan receivables) based on the loan
maturity dates as set out in the relevant loan agreements is
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as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not yet past due i 7 380 B 92,692 -

Past due: B Ef -
0 - 90 days 0 - 90H - 284,773
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 253,935 369,678
181 — 365 days 181 - 365H - 1,153,312
Over 365 days HBi@E365H 1,547,742 438,614

1,894,369 2,246,377
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

The COVID-19 pandemic had taken a toll on the financial
performance and conditions of the relevant borrowers, and
in turn their ability to repay the Relevant Loan Receivables.
In early 2023, the operations in the offices of the Group in
China gradually resumed to their pre-pandemic level after
the Chinese government removed the COVID-19 related
prevention and control measures and the employees of the
Group returned to their office to work following the Chinese
New Year holidays. As the business community (including the
business partners of the Group) started to recover from the
disruption caused by the pandemic, the Group commenced
its process of recovering the Relevant Loan Receivables
then outstanding by sending demand letters to the relevant
borrowers, who indicated to the Group that they were
unable to repay the loans on the original maturity dates as
they, their businesses and/or the projects in which they had
invested had been adversely affected by the pandemic. They
proposed to the Group that they would settle the outstanding
amounts by instalments (except for the borrowers of two
loans) and requested the Group not to take legal action
against them. Following the above actions taken by the
Group, certain borrowers have settled their Relevant Loan
Receivables. Taking into consideration the time and costs
required to recover the Relevant Loan Receivables through
legal actions and the financial conditions of the relevant
borrowers, the Group considered that the repayment plans
proposed by the relevant borrowers would be a better option
in terms of the interest of the Group and no legal action has
been taken by the Group. The Group has not entered into
any agreement with the relevant borrowers in respect of the
repayment proposals mentioned above, to the extent that
the Group could reserve its right to take legal action against
the relevant borrowers at any time. Nevertheless, throughout
2023, the Group had continued to closely monitor the status
of the settlement of these loans and taken follow-up actions
(when required), such as issuing demand letters to the
defaulting borrowers.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

Due to the sluggish global economy, the strained Sino-
US relations and the lack of investor confidence, economic
recovery in China after the pandemic remained slow in 2023.
While the financial position of the borrowers of the Relevant
Loan Receivables (which were engaged in businesses
operating in China) had already been adversely affected
by the pandemic, the poor post-pandemic economic
environment further weakened their financial conditions and
thus their ability to repay the Relevant Loan Receivables.
Save for five of the Relevant Loan Receivables with a total
outstanding principal amount and interest of approximately
HK$97 million, all of the Relevant Loan Receivables were
overdue as at 31 December 2023.

Impairment loss

The Group recorded a provision for impairment loss
on the Relevant Loan Receivables of approximately
HK$310,200,000 (Year 2022: HK$137,748,000) for Year
2023, which had been assessed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (“Valuer”) based on the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9 Financial Instruments, using
the general approach.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Impairment loss (Continued)

The measurement of ECL under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments for the Relevant Loan Receivables requires
judgement on, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining impairment
losses and the assessment of any significant increase in
credit risk. There estimates are driven by a number of
factors, where the change of the factors which result in
different levels of allowances, a lower/higher impairment
loss may arise. The Group uses its credit loss experience,
repayment history and financial position of the Group’s
debtors and their guarantors (if any) and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions
to estimate the probability of default (based on probability
of default sourced from Moody’s average cumulative issuer-
weighted global default rates), the loss given default (based
on recovery rate from Moody’s average senior unsecured
bond recovery rates) and the impact on the forward-looking
information (including the historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables, like the GDP of China and the
credit default spread of China’s sovereign bond and annual
credit loss rate sourced from Moody’s). Provision involving
historical data and qualitative input will be made in the ECL
assessment of particular loan receivables when the Group
acknowledges potential loss or financial difficulties of certain
borrowers. On each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable, supportable and available information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort
for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also forward-looking analysis.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Impairment loss (Continued)

The Group categorises the credit quality of the Relevant
Loan Receivables according to 3 different stages under the
ECL model:

Stage 1: financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs;

Stage 2: financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs;
and

Stage 3: financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The value of significant inputs/assumptions adopted in the
ECL assessment of the Related Loan Receivables included
the following:

(a) ECL staging classifications of the Relevant Loan
Receivables;

(b) outstanding balance of the Relevant Loan Receivables
at the end of the reporting period;

(¢) loan start date and loan end date of the Relevant Loan
Receivables;

(d) expected timing and repayment amount of the Relevant
Loan Receivables;

(e) industry group/credit rating of the borrower of each
Relevant Loan Receivable;
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Impairment loss (Continued)

(f)  probability of default (range from 1.1% to 51.5%) based
on Moody'’s rating/industry group of each borrower;

(9) loss given default (range from 52.7% to 64.0%) based
on Moody’s rating/industry group of each borrower;
and

(h)  impact of forward-looking information.

Save for the changes in the value of significant inputs
resulting from the change in the credit quality of the Relevant
Loan Receivables in Year 2023, there were no significant
changes in the value of significant inputs/assumptions and
method used in the ECL assessment of the Relevant Loan
Receivables for Year 2023 from those used in that for Year
2022.

In light of the deterioration in the credit quality of the
Relevant Loan Receivables, the amount of the Relevant
Loan Receivables the credit quality of which had been
categorised into stage 2 and stage 3 under the ECL
model increased in Year 20283, resulting in the Group
recording an impairment loss for ECL on the Relevant Loan
Receivables of approximately HK$310,200,000 for Year
20283, as compared with the impairment loss for ECL of
approximately HK$137,748,000 recorded for the Relevant
Loan Receivables for Year 2022. Details of the accounting
policies in relation to the impairment of financial assets
(including loan receivables), the impairment assessment, and
the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
loan receivables of the Group are set out in Notes 2.5, 20
and 37 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)

Formation of special investigation committee

On 18 March 2024, an independent special investigation
committee (“Special Investigation Committee”), initially
comprising Mr. Hung Muk Ming as chairman, Mr. Liang
Qing and Mr. Zhang Lu as members, being all independent
non-executive Directors, has been established pursuant
to a resolution of the Board passed on 18 March 2024
for the purposes of, among other things, investigating on
various matters and events relating to the loan agreements
(“Loan Agreements”) in relation to the portfolio of loan
receivables held by the Group (consisting of loan receivables
in the aggregate principal amount and accrued interest of
approximately RMB2,201 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,429 million) as at 31 December 2023), in particular, the
approval process of the Loan Agreements, the background
information of the related borrowers (“Borrowers”), the
commercial rationale for entering into the Loan Agreements
and the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group in relation to the approval of the Loan Agreements
and the collection of all the rights, title, benefits and interests
of the Company to, in and under the Loan Agreements
(including but not limited to the loan receivables advanced
pursuant to the Loan Agreements and all interests accrued
thereon) (“Loan Interest”). Pursuant to the joint statement
(“Joint Statement”) issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council on 13 July 2023 in relation to loans, advances,
prepayments and similar arrangements made by listed
issuers, directors of listed issuers should “critically assess
the commercial rationale for granting loans and ensure that
loans are being granted for reasons and on terms that are
beneficial for the company as a whole” and auditors of
listed issuers should carry out audit procedures in respect
of loans, including but not limited to critically evaluate the
commercial rationale for the loans and inspect evidence of
credit assessments, due diligence procedures and proper
approvals. As the Company’s auditor could not ascertain
the commercial rationale of the transactions contemplated
under the Loan Agreements and the relationship between
the Group and the Borrowers based on the results of the
audit procedures performed in respect of the audit of the
Group for Year 2023, the Company’s auditor recommended
to the audit committee of the Company that an independent
review on the Loan Agreements and the Loan Interest should
be conducted to ascertain the said matters, and thus the
Special Investigation Committee has been established.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Formation of special investigation committee (Continued)

On 18 March 2024, the Special Investigation Committee
appointed a leading global professional services firm
specialising in forensic accounting and investigations
(“Investigation Agency”) to assist in conducting independent
investigation into the Loan Agreements. At the same
time, the Special Investigation Committee appointed an
independent third-party law firm (“Independent Legal
Adviser”) to instruct the Investigation Agency and to provide
independent legal support to the Special Investigation
Committee in respect of the investigation, if necessary.

The establishment of the Special Investigation Committee
and the commencement of the investigation on the Loan
Agreements and the Loan Interest are not due to any
potential fraud nor dishonest acts discovered but purely
voluntary initiatives taken by the Board in response to
the Joint Statement and also the recommendation of the
Company’s auditor. In view of the urgency and importance of
the review, the Company has voluntarily enhanced the level
of review to a forensic investigation. As at the date of this
annual report, the independent investigation has not been
completed and is still ongoing. As at the date of this annual
report, further information in relation to the formation of the
Special Investigation Committee and the appointments of
the Investigation Agency and the Independent Legal Adviser
is set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18
March 2024 and 19 March 2024.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E#H%&E

GRANT OF LOANS (Continued)
Proposed disposal of Loan Interest

On 18 March 2024, the Company and Guangdong
Zhuguang Group Company Limited* (ERIKNEBMAER A
Al) (“Guangdong Zhuguang”) entered into a memorandum
of understanding, pursuant to which the Company intended
to sell, and Guangdong Zhuguang intended to acquire, the
Loan Interest, at the consideration of RMB2,200 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,428 million), which shall
be settled by Guangdong Zhuguang by way of (i) entry into a
deed of novation (“Debt Novation”) to assume the obligations
of a subsidiary of the Company under two entrusted loan
agreements (“Entrusted Loan Agreements”) (including but
not limited to the repayment obligation of the underlying
entrusted loans (“Entrusted Loans”) in the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of RMB1,880 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,075 million) and the interest accrued
thereon), the release of all existing charges, guarantee
and pledge of shares, and the provision of new charge(s),
guarantee and/or pledge of shares pursuant to the requests
of the entrusting party and the lender, if required; and (ii) the
assignment of certain properties (“PRC Properties”) located
in the PRC by Guangdong Zhuguang to the Company
(“Proposed Disposal”).

The Proposed Disposal, if materialised, would provide a
good opportunity for the Group to recover substantially the
outstanding amount owed under the Loan Agreements within
a foreseeable timeframe and in a relatively short period of
time, thereby minimising the uncertainty and the credit risks
associated with the Loan Interest and the administrative
costs to be incurred by the Group for collecting the
outstanding Loan Interest, and the Debt Novation provides a
good opportunity for the Group to settle the Entrusted Loans
and the rights and liabilities of the Group under the Entrusted
Loan Agreements will be discharged. Further, the proposed
transfer of the PRC Properties to the Company allows the
Group to enlarge and diversify its investment properties
portfolio with high quality assets, as well as to strengthen
the income base of the Group and to generate stable cash
flows to the Group. Further information on the Proposed
Disposal is set out in the Company’s announcements dated
18 March 2024 and 19 March 2024.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, certain investment properties of
the Group with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$2,078,366,000 (31 December 2022: investment
properties, and leasehold land and buildings with aggregate
carrying values of approximately HK$2,251,652,000 and
HK$176,300,000, respectively) were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group and other
payable due to an independent third party. As at 31
December 2022, certain receivables (mainly the loans
granted by the Group to its joint venture and independent
third parties) of approximately HK$3,285,685,000 (31
December 2022: HK$3,285,685,000) and the equity interests
in the subsidiaries and associates of the Company holding
receivables of the Group were pledged to secure the
convertible bonds issued by the Company which had been
subsequently redeemed in full in the first half of Year 2023.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for in
respect of the purchase of unlisted equity securities (31
December 2022: HK$167,973,000). The management of the
Group does not expect there to be any plans for material
investments or capital assets in 2024 with reference to the
current situation as at the date of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided corporate
guarantees of approximately HK$2,839,041,000 (31
December 2022: HK$3,576,622,000) in respect of loans
granted to a joint venture of the Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the shareholders’ funds of the
Group decreased by approximately HK$902,605,000 to
approximately HK$3,119,792,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$4,022,397,000), representing a decline of approximately
22%. The decrease was mainly due to the loss attributable
to the owners of the Company in Year 2023.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEEGR A

BEERH

2023F12831H  AEBEEREEAEN A
2,078,366,000/# (20224124318 :
BR M A2 5 5l 4 A2,251,652,0007% 7T &
176,300,000 w2 & TR EWMEMEE -
HREEY) 2 ETREVECDERALTER
BE—MRUBTREREN—ZBYE=F
EMER R AN - R2022F12H318 * &
TREZE(FZAAREERESGEDERS
VE=ZFREKER)#3,285,685,000/% 7T
(2022412 A318 : 3,285,685,000/ 7T ) A
ERFEAEBERFENAATMNEB QA
REtENRMNRECIER - AARRIETH
AR E S EER(BE1E 2 N2023F F £ ¥
FREER) o

EARERE

M2023F12H31H » A& B W & (£ 7] A 7
BEFLTTRAZFSF ZBFTHNERARZE
AN B % (2022512 A318 : 167,973,000
L) c AEBEREEN RBRAFHAHZ
WEFARR - R2024FEEBEARE LA
NEEZEHE -

HABE
MR2023F12A31H " AEBEAARE —K
BEPENEFIEH42,839,041,000/% 7T
(2022412 A31H : 3,576,622,000% 7T ) &
TREEER -

BRAEE

2028124318 + XEBZRREDHD
#7902,605,0007% 7T Z £33,119,792,000/% 7T
(2022412 A31H : 4,022,397,000/ 7T )
TIE£I22% o H D E ERH2023F E AR A
WA AL EIBATE -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had in aggregate 55 employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
2022: 66). The Group’s overall staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$62,814,000 for Year 2023 (Year
2022: HK$66,933,000). The employees of the Group are
remunerated according to their respective job nature, market
conditions, individual performance and qualifications. Other
staff benefits include annual bonus and retirement benefits.
The Directors’ remuneration is determined based on their
qualifications, experience, duties and responsibilities, the
Company’s remuneration policy and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Group encourages sustainable training of its employees
through coaching and further studies. In-house training was
provided to eligible employees during Year 2023, including
training on updates of accounting standards and market
updates.

The Group has not experienced any significant problem
with its employees or disruption to its operations due to
labour discipline nor has it experienced any difficulty in the
recruitment and retention of experienced staff. The Group
has maintained a good relationship with its employees.
Certain senior management and staff have been working for
the Group for many years.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company aims to maximise the interests of its
shareholders (“Shareholders”) and at the same time
maintaining a strong and healthy financial position, so as
to prepare the Group for investment opportunities that may
arise from time to time and its sustainable development in
the future. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and
in determining the dividend amount, the Board will take
into account the Group’s earnings performance, financial
position, investment requirements and future prospects. In
addition, the Board will also take into account any restrictive
covenants imposed by banks and other funding facilities
granted to the Group from time to time and any other factors
the Board may deem appropriate and/or relevant.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE®RE

FINAL DIVIDEND (Continued)

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
final dividend for Year 2023 (Year 2022: Nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to establishing and maintaining
a standard of corporate governance that is consistent
with market practices. The Company complied with all
the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
(renumbered as Appendix C1 with effect from 31 December
2023) to the Listing Rules then in force throughout Year
2028, except for the deviation specified below:

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be the same individual. During the year under
review, the Company did not have a separate chairman and
chief executive officer as Mr. Chu Hing Tsung assumed both
the roles of the chairman and one of the co-chief executive
officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting both
the roles of the chairman and the co-chief executive officer
in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure
will enable the Company to make and implement decisions
efficiently.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 (renumbered as Appendix C3 with
effect from 31 December 2023) to the Listing Rules then
in force as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions in Year 2023. All Directors have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company,
they complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout Year 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During Year 20283, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to those resigned directors for
their contribution and service to the Group during their
tenure and give my warmest welcome to those newly
appointed directors for joining our Group. Moreover, |
would like to express my appreciation and gratitude to our
shareholders for their support and all the Group’s employees
for their hard work and dedication in carrying out their duties
and in achieving the Group’s business goal.

On behalf of the Board
Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

BE HEFBELOARF 2 LHES

MR2023FE » ANARISE MM B A A&
BE HLEIBERARREMLHES

&

AAEREXEFE AEUBHTINEEBHE
BAKBEEH 2 BB ERBBARLHE -
WERNEDPH R EN ST ESMBAEE -
gEsh s NEEBBEUBRNR I FHME
BB T80 1% &Y 38 P AR 755 LA S BN 5k Bl Y
AR AARRREZSRARFHARIDH

=)
T

EEREEH
REEREZEREERRDF

REH
TR BETRAAHARNTEE

E 0 20243 H28H

Annual Report 2023
R =FFR

41



42

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEf4)

Executive Directors

Chu Hing Tsung (alias Zhu Qing Yi) (Chairman and Co-
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chu, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) on
29 January 2019. He has been re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an executive Director and appointed
as the chief executive officer (“Chief Executive Officer”) of
the Company and one of the authorised representatives
of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules with
effect from 1 August 2021. Mr. Chu has been re-designated
from the Chief Executive Officer to a co-chief executive
officer (“Co-Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company with
effect from 13 May 2022. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chu is the
chairman and an executive director of Zhuguang Holdings
Group Company Limited (“Zhuguang Holdings”), a company
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1176), which is a substantial
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) whose
interest in the Shares falls to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”). Mr. Chu has over 20 years of
extensive experience in corporate management and property
development in the PRC.

Chen Yongcun (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen, aged 58, was an executive Director during the
period from 25 October 2000 to 27 February 2008, and he
re-joined the Company on 1 May 2016. Mr. Chen has been
appointed as a Co-Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director with effect from 13 May 2022 and 16 September
2022, respectively. He has also been appointed as the legal
representative, director and general manager of East Gate
(Beijing) Property Management Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible for the Group’s
property development and investments in Mainland China.
Mr. Chen previously worked at China Construction Bank and
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”), a
company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock codes: 01359 and 04621
(Preference Shares)), which is a substantial Shareholder
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) whose interest
in the Shares falls to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
He graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and a master’s degree in business
management. He has over 20 years of experience in finance
and investment.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEf4)

Executive Directors (Continued)
Luo Zhihai

Mr. Luo, aged 61, was appointed as an executive
Director on 29 January 2019. He is a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Luo worked in China Construction Bank,
Huajian International (Macau) Co., Ltd., China Cinda and
Guangdong Yuecai Asset Management Co., Ltd.. He has
served successively as the head of Xiaohuayuan Office of
Meixian Sub-branch of China Construction Bank, deputy
general manager of the international business department
of Meizhou Branch of China Construction Bank, general
manager of the international business department of Zhuhai
Branch of China Construction Bank, managing director of
Huajian International (Macau) Co., Ltd., the head of the
entity department, the investment banking department, the
marketing department and the business department of China
Cinda Guangzhou Office and deputy managing director of
Guangdong Yuecai Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Mr. Luo
received his bachelor’s degree in engineering from South
China University of Technology in 1983. He has accumulated
more than 30 years of experiences in banking, investment
banking, real estate investment and non-performing financial
assets, especially with extensive practical experiences in the
assets management industry. Meanwhile, Mr. Luo has a high
reputation in the PRC’s local assets management industry.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEf4)

Executive Directors (Continued)
Tang Lunfei

Mr. Tang, aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director
on 11 January 2021. He obtained his Bachelor of Economics
from the Chongging Institute of Technology of the PRC in
June 2000 and his Master of National Economics from the
Sichuan University of the PRC in June 2003. Mr. Tang has
over 16 years of experience in the financial industry. He
joined China Cinda Asset Management Corporation (currently
known as China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd., i.e.
China Cinda), as the business manager of its Chengdu
office from July 2003 to April 2005. Subsequently, he
worked at the Financial Stability Bureau of The People’s
Bank of China from May 2005 to June 2006, where he was
responsible for resolving the risks associated with securities
companies. Mr. Tang then joined Cinda Securities Company
Limited from June 2006 to June 2012 with his last position
as the business director. From June 2012 to July 2019, he
worked at China Cinda with his last position as the chief
and specialised approver of various departments of the
company. Since July 2019, Mr. Tang has been serving as
the chief risk and compliance officer of China Cinda (HK)
Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda HK”), which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Cinda. Both China Cinda and
Cinda HK are substantial Shareholders (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) whose interests in the Shares fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Tang has been appointed as (i)
an executive director of Zhongchang International Holdings
Group Limited (“Zhongchang”), a company the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 859) with effect from 13 May 2020; and (i) a
non-executive director of Modern Land (China) Co., Limited,
a company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1107) (“Modern Land”)
with effect from 24 March 2022.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEf4)

Executive Directors (Continued)
Weng Jian

Mr. Weng, aged 41, has been appointed as the assistant
president and the executive president of the Company since
June 2020 and August 2021, respectively. He is responsible
for human resources, administrative management and
investment departments of the Group. He graduated from
Sun Yat-sen University with a bachelor’s degree in law
and a master’s degree in law. He previously worked in the
Guangdong Provincial Supervisory Commission and the
Office of the Guangdong Provincial Government, where he
was engaged in the management of anti-corruption, legal
policy and comprehensive administration. After resigning
from public office, Mr. Weng joined Zhuguang Holdings,
which is a substantial Shareholder (within the meaning of
the Listing Rules) whose interest in the Shares falls to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, and successively served
as the general manager of its President Office (Human
Resources Centre), the general manager of its Legal Affairs
Centre, a member of its Investment Decision Committee,
general manager of its Investment Centre and the chairman
of its industrial real estate sector. He is also a member of
the Guangdong Youth Federation, a standing member of
the Guangdong Law Society, a deputy director of the Legal
Committee of the Guangdong Province Old Town Old Factory
Old Village Recreation Association, a practical instructor for
postgraduates of the Jinan University and an arbitrator of the
Guangzhou Arbitration Commission.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEf4)

Non-executive Director
Chen Zhiwei

Mr. Chen, aged 39, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 29 January 2019. Mr. Chen is the chairman
and an executive director of Zhongchang. Mr. Chen is
the assistant general manager and managing director of
the investment department of Cinda HK, responsible for
managing Cinda HK'’s investment and financing businesses.
Cinda HK is a substantial Shareholder (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules), whose interest in the Shares falls to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Chen graduated from
Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in economics
in 2004. He then graduated from the National University
of Singapore with a master’'s degree in science (estate
management) in 2009. Mr. Chen was the executive assistant
to the chairman of TIG Group in Singapore between 2007
and 2010, responsible for TIG Group’s private equity
investment business in the Greater China region. Between
2005 and 2007, Mr. Chen was a research scholar at the
National University of Singapore. Mr. Chen has over 15
years of investment and research experience in the finance
industry. From 30 December 2016 to 23 March 2022,
Mr. Chen was a non-executive director of Modern Land.
From 17 April 2018 to 11 November 2022, Mr. Chen was
a non-executive director of China Fortune Financial Group
Limited (now named as GoFintech Innovation Limited), a
company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 290). From 13 April
2018 to 5 December 2022, Mr. Chen was a non-executive
director of SouthGobi Resources Ltd., a company the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 1878).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEf4)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 71, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2000. He is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Sichuan International Studies University in 1979. He was the
General Manager of CITIC Central Tanshi Money Brokering
Company Limited, which is a joint venture of CITIC Trust
Co., Ltd. engaged in the money brokering business for
financial institutions. From 1987 to 2000, Mr. Zhang was the
executive vice president and treasurer of CITIC Ka Wah Bank
Limited, responsible for both the Treasury and International
Business. From 1974 to 1987, he worked for Bank of China
and CITIC Industrial Bank. Mr. Zhang has engaged in the
banking sector for over 35 years.

Liang Qing

Mr. Liang, aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2014. He is also
a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Liang is also currently an
executive director and an independent non-executive director
of Jiangxi Copper Company Limited (“Jiangxi Copper”) (Stock
code: 358) and Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sinotruk”)
(Stock code: 3808) respectively. The H shares of Jiangxi
Copper and Sinotruk are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Liang graduated from the Beijing Open
University (formerly known as Beijing Radio and Television
University) in 1985, where he studied the Chinese language
and literature. Mr. Liang was a director and the general
manager of China Minmetal H.K. (Holdings) Limited and
has now retired. Mr. Liang has abundant experience in
international trading and investment.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 December 2004. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Hung is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and
is a Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate
of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute. Mr. Hung received his
bachelor’s degree in social sciences from the University of
Hong Kong in 1990, and a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Mr. Hung has over 25 years of experience in the
accounting and audit sector. Mr. Hung was an independent
non-executive director of Century Sage Scientific Holdings
Limited, a company the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1450), from
13 June 2014 to 28 September 2021. Mr. Hung was an
independent non-executive director of Cinda International
Holdings Limited, a company the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
111) from 2 December 2008 to 30 November 2022. Mr.
Hung is also an independent non-executive director of CA
Cultural Technology Group Limited (formerly known as China
Animation Characters Company Limited) (Stock code: 1566)
and IBO Technology Company Limited (Stock code: 2708),
both being companies the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEEGR A

BYFHTES(E)
BAH

LA A 0 595%  M2004F 12 A23B LT A
BUFNTES - BAAARAEZEZER
FTRMRERZREZEERE - AEEB ARES
RN B AR B STMASE RS TAD -
FERBTARBEFTARGHMAG ZE
FEE - BBRRREAGREBTARIARE
NEe+ o KL FEEHEB AL
BEMTEREBEL B - WH2008F HF
EBBETIRERERHARERE TS o 8
SRS KB BEHEE AT -
% A FR2014F6 A13H £202149H28H #&
T ERHERER 2 a (KR H B R AT £
RET - BRDRYR - 1450) 2 B IEHITE
= o 2008412 A2H £2022411 4308 -
A BEERBIERAR AR (—BRMHR
BT ER ET 2 ARG - 111)) 2
BIUFERITES - RAEENABEE VLRI
EEBERAAR(ABEESELRERAA)
(B RE% - 1566) R AR K BER A F
(B A 5% - 2708) (RFEI2 A2 B 19 39 O B
REFER L) 2 BT IFITES o



PROFILE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT S &EE A EHN

Ng Hoi Leung, Leo

Mr. Ng, aged 50, has been appointed as the chief
financial officer, the company secretary and an authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 17 July
2019. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng was the
financial controller of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings)
Limited (Stock code: 0231), and the financial controller
and the company secretary of Zhuguang Holdings, which
is a substantial Shareholder (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) and whose interest in the Shares falls to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, both being companies the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was also the chief financial officer of a real
estate company and a company whose subsidiary was
engaged in the media business in the PRC. Mr. Ng has
over 15 years of accounting and audit experience. He had
worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers, an accounting firm
from February 1997 to April 2010. Mr. Ng holds a Master of
Commerce from the Macquarie University in Australia and
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Certified Practising
Accountants of Australia.
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Zhang Wenguang

Mr. Zhang, aged 55, has been appointed as an executive
president of the Company with effect from 27 September
2021. He is currently the chairman of FMEHFAILERE R
7] (Tai Zhou Dong Thai Petrochemical Company Limited*),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in charge
of the petrochemical investment business of the Group. He
graduated from the Jiaying University in foreign language and
was a graduate student majoring in economic management
in the Party School of the Guangdong Provincial Committee.
He was successively appointed as the director of the Beijing
Office of the Meizhou Municipal Government, the chief of the
Economic and Trade Bureau of Meizhou, the chairman of &
TSR E A7) (Meizhou Qi Xin Guarantee Investment
Company*), the county mayor of the Meixian People’s
Government, the secretary of the Meixian County Committee
of the Communist Party of China (“CPC”), the assistant
general manager of the Projection and Planning Department
of China National Offshore Oil Corporation, a member of the
Standing Committee of the Meizhou Municipal Committee
and the head of the United Front Work Department of the
Meizhou Municipal Committee of the CPC, a member of the
Party Leadership Group of the Meizhou Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE IBi% - 2R EA

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursues this business approach by managing its
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has maintained a continuous dialogue with
its stakeholders that include its customers, employees,
regulators and the public. The Group seeks to balance the
views and interests of these various stakeholders through
constructive conversations with a view to charting a course
for the long-term prosperity of the Group and the communities.

Customers

Customer feedback plays an important role in the operation
of the Group. Various channels, such as telephone hotlines
and customer service front desks, have been established to
maintain interactive communications between the Group and
its customers.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone
of a company. The Group treasures its loyal and industrious
staff members. In addition, it has adopted non-discriminatory
hiring and employment practices and it strives to provide a
safe and healthy workplace for its employees.

Government & Public

Tough efforts have been exerted to ensure compliance with
the laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. The public at large is also an important
stakeholder of the Group. A stable and prosperous
community is important to the steady growth and long-term
future prospects of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE IBi% - 2R EA

Workplace Quality

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 55 staff
members (31 December 2022: 66). Total employee costs for
Year 2023, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$62,814,000 (Year 2022: HK$66,933,000).

The quality of its employees is crucial for the Group to
maintain a competitive position in the market. With this
in mind, the Group seeks to attract and retain talented
individuals who are committed to achieving goals and
objectives of the Group and provides a work environment
that nurtures values such as fair play, respect and integrity.
The Group values career development of its staff and
provides ongoing training to them according to the needs
of the Group. The Group offers competitive compensation
packages to its employees, who are rewarded according to
their performance. The Group reviews its salary structure,
working conditions, bonuses and incentive systems annually.

The Group’s employees are entitled to benefits such as
medical cover, provident funds and share options scheme.
The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees and complying with all
applicable health and safety laws and regulations. Health
and safety considerations are incorporated into the design,
operations and maintenance of the premises of the Group.
Employees are provided with appropriate job skills and safety
training and are educated with regard to their responsibilities
for achieving the health and safety objectives of the Group.
The Group also communicates with its employees on
occupational health and safety issues.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE IBi% - 2R EA

Environmental Protection

The Group recognises the importance of maintaining
environmental sustainability in its daily operations and acts
in all material respects in compliance with the laws and
regulations relating to environmental protection and pollution
control. Energy saving measures are enforced in the Group’s
offices and commercial premises for the purpose of reducing
electricity consumption and greenhouse gas emissions.

The Group has also adopted policies to promote recycling
and use of eco-friendly stationery, plus a series of measures
to save paper and energy, including the use of double-
sided printing and energy-efficient office equipment and
appliances, resulting in more efficient use of resources, as
well as reduction of waste.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical
standards. All employees are given a code of conduct (“Code”)
to which they are required to adhere. The Code explicitly
prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting or offering
bribes or any form of advantage. The Code also outlines
the Group’s expectations on its staff with regard to conflicts
of interest. All managers are expected to communicate and
instill a culture of good corporate governance to their staff.

ESG Report

The Company engaged external professionals to review the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) policies of
the Group for Year 2023 and issue an ESG report for Year
2023 (“2023 ESG Report”) for the Board’s consideration.
The Company publishes the 2023 ESG Report on the
“ESG Reports” section of the website of the Company at
www.silvergrant.com.cn and the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk when it publishes this report.

RERE

AEERARFEUFEMHEAREEZE
EZ WEREAXATHACETEBRRRR
BEBRZEPIOER - REBRERRE
REERMEEREERERE - LB ENER
FoREREEHM -

7R 6% B IR ER A R e B 1R 3R B M AE IR R
XA - IE—RIESHBRRERNER(E
EEREmITHRAERYE 2B RERE
RER)EZERICERERIIRDED

ZEFA

AEE-EERRENEBEREE - MEREE
EEHpAEETHETRI(TRIL) - 7R
AR LEE R  BXIRHBRSEN
Hp Ao F s - FRITFIIBAREEE TE
RN EER - MEEEABTARS
TRBYBNEZRFHEEE AL

ESGH &

RAREEFBINES B B TR A £ E2023
FEZERE g8 kERIESGHERIL
BMH2023F [ ZESGH & ([2023 ESGH
HEDTEEFSEN - ARFFERRER
AR BB uhwww.silvergrant.com.cnl 32
B e REBME M KB FTAE L
www.hkexnews.hk £ #2023 ESGIRZ °

Annual Report 2023
R =FFR

33



24

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT Tt¥EBWME

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to establishing and maintaining
a standard of corporate governance that is consistent
with market practices. The Company complied with all
the principles and applicable code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 (renumbered as Appendix C1 with effect
from 31 December 2023) to the Listing Rules then in force
throughout Year 2023, except for the deviations specified
below.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be the same individual. During the year under
review, the Company did not have a separate chairman and
chief executive officer as the roles of the Chairman and one
of the Co-Chief Executive Officers were both assumed by Mr.
Chu Hing Tsung. The Board believes that vesting both the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer/Co-
Chief Executive Officer in the same person has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired
and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions efficiently.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Group’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

The following summarises the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEEGR A

s
e
i

NN
A

2.

Ril3

RABBNBRY REF —EFETHEGK
EEIRIZE « BRI XY Z REEB RN
ANR B HR2023F E B 85T E AR BIK 8%14
(B2023F 12 A31H # = /4R 5 A 8:C1)
Frak 2K EERFAD ([REEATADZ
Fire IR B R 38 A = B ST o

EREABTAZTRAKRIEC2GRE - =
FEhE=ITRABZACERERD - TEH
F—RALRE -REBEFA - ARRLE
B ERERITHAR - EFRER—BHBE
TTHRARDHRERCEREE EFSHEE
ME—BALHRELERITRER,BET
Bz Al  AREASREAZEHES
RASAREEZEBRBRIATEML AR
R -EFERR/BATH RN REETLE
A SHIES - RS 1T AE A A RIE
RAETTIRE -

EZeRRBEERNBERARECEELRE
BIABRTERTE

TXHEHAARRNERLEE ARG



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors
Board Composition

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence of
an effective internal control system. The Board is led by the
Chairman. The Chairman, with the support of the company
secretary (“Company Secretary”) of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate
and complete information in a timely manner and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at the Board meetings and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The management, led by the Co-Chief Executive Officers,
focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. In addition to the
Group’s day-to-day management and operations, the Co-
Chief Executive Officers are also jointly responsible for
developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems, internal procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis of an effective
corporate governance framework of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
five executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (the
Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Chen Yongcun
(Co-Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Luo Zhihai, Mr. Tang Lunfei
and Mr. Weng Jian (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023),
one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Chen Zhiwei, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liang
Qing, Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung Muk Ming. Mr. Wang Ping
resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1 April
2028.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 42
to 48 of this annual report. The number of the independent
non-executive Directors represents no less than one-third of
the Board members.

All members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise
and skills to discharge their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company’s Directors, Mr. Tang Lunfei and Mr. Chen
Zhiwei are also directors and/or senior officers of Cinda
HK. Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, the Chairman and the Co-Chief
Executive Officer, is also a director and a shareholder of
Zhuguang Holdings. Cinda HK and Zhuguang Holdings are
substantial Shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing
Rules). Save for the aforesaid, there is no relationship
between the members of the Board, in terms of financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to fulfil
the requirements of the CG Code, three standing Board
committees have been set up under the Board: the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee. The Board will set up an ad hoc Board
committee as and when necessary to handle specific issues
and report back to the Board.

To ensure independent views and input are available to
the Board, the Company is required to have at least three
independent non-executive Directors. In addition, it has
adopted a policy (“Independent Views Policy”) with effect
from 1 January 2022, under which the independent non-
executive Directors are required to, among others, (i) keep
up-to-date with the Company’s business affairs and be
involved in scrutinising the Company’s performance in
achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives; (i) bring
independent judgment to bear on the Company’s issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct, help review some of
the Board’s major decisions and the Company’s performance
in relation to corporate goals, and monitor the Company’s
performance reporting; and (iii) take the lead where potential
conflicts of interest arise. Further, the independent non-
executive Directors shall make sufficient time available to
discharge their responsibilities and should not accept an
invitation to serve as an independent non-executive Director
on the Board unless they can devote adequate time and
effort to the work involved. Independent non-executive
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

Directors sitting on multiple boards of directors of listed
companies will need to ensure that they devote sufficient
time and dedicate adequate attention to each board and
board committee.

The Company provides the independent non-executive
Directors with both formal means of communication,
including board meetings, and informal communication
channels which allow independent non-executive Directors
to express their views, such as meetings with the Chairman
without the presence of other Directors at least annually.
Further, to assist all the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) to discharge their duties, the
Company provides the Directors with access to advice from
external independent professionals, including independent
legal advisors and auditors.

The Company is required to review the Independent Views
Policy and its implementation and effectiveness on an annual
basis.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent in character and judgment and meets
the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation confirming his
independence.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There are established procedures for
Directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or a
Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical
Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written
resolution. Independent non-executive Directors with no
conflict of interest will be present at Board meetings dealing
with such conflict issues.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified
in all corporate communications containing the names of
the Directors. An updated list of Directors identifying the
independent non-executive Directors and the roles and the
functions of the Directors is maintained on the website of the
Company at www.silvergrant.com.cn and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a specific
term of service no longer than three years. Each of the non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a specific term of
service of three years from 29 January 2022 to 28 January
2025. All the Directors are also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with article 102 of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles of Association”).

The full Board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy of the
Group and to monitor the operations as well as the financial
performance of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will
be given to all Directors in respect of full Board meetings
and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and the accompanying Board
papers in respect of a full Board meeting are sent out in full
to all Directors no less than three days before the meeting.
Minutes of full Board meetings and meetings of board
committees are properly kept. All Directors have access to
relevant and timely information. They also have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing the Directors with Board papers
and related materials. Where queries are raised by the
Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

During Year 2023, five Board meetings were held and the

attendance of each Director is set out below:

ExgdAm(E)

20234 & -

HAMSRERESS

&

=
%

b=l

fIEERNHFEREFEINWT -

Number of meeting
attended/held during the
term of office

FHAEE - Attendance rate
Name of Directors EENE BITEBRRK HER
Executive Directors HITEE
Chu Hing Tsung (Chairman and REA(EFE R FITH 3/5 60%
Co-Chief Executive Officer) ®wH)
Chen Yongcun (Co-Chief Executive sk 17 (B fE 17 B 4B 2 & 5/5 100%
Officer and an executive Director HITEE)
Luo Zhihai BEE 5/5 100%
Tang Lunfei BEmR 4/5 80%
Weng Jian (appointed with effect S (7A2023F7A1H 2/2 100%
from 1 July 2023) EEE)
(Note) (H1at)
Wang Ping (resigned with effect T (72023F4H1H 2/2 100%
from 1 April 2023) (Note) BHE) (B75E)
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Chen Zhiwei PR 5/5 100%
Independent non-executive BUHEHITEE
Directors
Liang Qing 2E 5/5 100%
Zhang Lu o 3% 5/5 100%
Hung Muk Ming BERER 5/5 100%

Note: The attendance of the Director who was appointed or who
resigned during Year 2023 was made by reference to the
number of such meetings held during his tenure.

Biat: 2023 EEZTHETER 2 HERTYZ
HAETHMRITSRABUFESE -
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association, the Board has the
power to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The Director
so appointed shall hold office until the first annual general
meeting following his appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. In other cases, all Directors,
including the Chairman and the Co-Chief Executive Officers,
shall retire by rotation at least once every three years at
annual general meetings and be eligible for re-election.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board diversity policy. The policy
sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company considered that diversity of Board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has developed measurable objectives to
implement the Board diversity policy whereby selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives
as set out above, and the ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidate will bring
to the Board.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

In Year 2023, the composition of the Board in terms of the
age, experience and length of service with the Company of
the Directors has fulfilled the objectives of the Board diversity
policy. The nine Directors on the Board come from various
background and they have brought different professional
experience, skills and knowledge to the Company and
contributed to the diversity at the Board. For the biographical
details of the Directors, please refer to pages 42 to 48 of
this annual report. Diversity at the Board supports good
decision making in view of the core businesses and strategy
of the Company and succession planning and development
of the Board, which enables the Board to discharge its
duties and responsibilities effectively. In the future, the
Company will continue to seek to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board by embracing the benefits of diversity in the
Board. All Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

During Year 2023 and up to the date of this annual report,
there was no female Director on the Board. The Board has
attempted to identify suitably qualified female candidates
to become members of the Board and with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity. In the future, the
Board will continue to pay due regard to the importance of
diversity in identifying potential candidates for directorships
and continue to ensure that gender is one of the factors
to be considered in appointing Directors by the nomination
committee of the Company. The Board targets to recruit one
female Director by 31 December 2024.

The Board also recognises the importance of diversity at the
workforce level. As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio
of the workforce of the Group (including senior management)
was 51% : 49% male to female.

B BERE)

R2023F X EFERBEREFK &
BEARBRBFHITHNCKEREEZSS
TERRNEBERE EFENREFTKATR
BER RE/ARAGTKTIANERLR
RERAMB  YREZFSSTTCIEHER -
BRAZEFERERS  F2HAFEREE42
F48H - EEEEILLEARBNZLER
MEBAREESENETRIANERITIEA
BIFH REFRE - MEEZTSENANE
TEBEREME - KRR NARKEESR
EMERESZTENMNENRRESENN
R -BEGNMBREREBUEARER
At WEEEZEZ TN G - BUEHEE
ARER—FRINZTENAE  BREETR
RIS Fik - MEERHREES  EKR - &
Fi&E - ee - MBLRBFH -

R2023F ERBEAFHRBHY EFEF
TEZHEE EEgRERWEsEaASE
BRERZEREAKRBEEERE B EH
MENHEUREBRE A MEZRETR
REEBRAEREFTEURNHEE - R &
EERBER I ERSZ T ENEELES
FEATENEEN  WEEBRRKER AKX
NRAREBEZECLZAEEHMERNEEY
— o BEEEAN2024F12 8318 Z AR
—ZEMEE -

EECNMMBEIBRAZIMENEZNE - R
2023F12A310 » AEB(BESHREEA
B)EBTMRILLAIAFES51% : 249%
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

An analysis of the diversity of the Board as at 31 December
2023 based on a range of diversity perspectives is set out

Exg(#)

ESESLBEE)

R2023F12 A31BIE— R Z L L #IE A A
EERZEEGREZ /b HINOT ¢

below:
9
8
7 Executive
Dire_ctors
6 WITES
Number of S
Directors 4
EEE s
3
2
1
0

Designation

Bz
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Nomination Policy

The nomination policy of the Company was approved
and adopted by a resolution of the Board passed on 28
December 2018. It sets out the criteria and procedures to
be adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or
re-appointed as Directors.

Recruitment for the Board is the key role of the nomination
committee of the Company. Nevertheless, the ultimate
responsibilities for the selection and appointment of Directors
rest with the entire Board.

The nomination committee of the Company will select from
a broad range of candidates and as far as feasible consider
those who are outside the Board’s circle of contacts in
accordance with the Company’s Board diversity policy. The
nomination committee of the Company will consider the
potential contribution a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity. It will also consider succession planning for
Directors to ensure the long term success of the Company.

Corporate Governance Committee

The CG Code recommends listed companies to set up a
corporate governance committee to look after issues relating
to the corporate governance of the companies. However, the
Directors consider that it is more appropriate and efficient
for the Company to retain in the Board the function of
overseeing corporate governance issues. The Directors will
continuously review and improve the Company’s and the
Group’s corporate governance practices to ensure that the
business activities and decision-making processes of the
Group are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

TEERRE

Exg(#)
REABE

RARHEEBEE N2018F12 28 HEE S
BIEBRBEAERIRR - RABRETE
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THEATRETSE FAIOAES - 12
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

During Year 2023 and up to the date of this annual report,
the main corporate governance duties performed by the
Board are set out below:

— developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations;

— reviewing and monitoring the continuous professional
development and training of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

—  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report
contained in the Company’s annual report;

— reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and

— developing, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to its employees and Directors.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers then in force
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 (renumbered as
Appendix C3 with effect from 31 December 2023) to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions in Year 2023. All Directors have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company,
they complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout Year 2023.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by relevant employees (as defined in
the CG Code) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
that conform to the provisions of the CG Code. The written
terms of reference are set out in detail on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During Year 2023 and as at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Muk Ming (committee
chairman), Mr. Liang Qing and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to the Shareholders, the systems of internal controls and
risk management and the effectiveness and objectivity
of the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides
an important link between the Board and the Company’s
external auditor in matters coming within the scope of its
terms of reference and keeps under review the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor.

During Year 2023, the work performed by the Audit
Committee includes the reviews of the annual results for Year
2022 of the Group, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for Year 2022 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 of the Group. The
Group’s consolidated annual results for Year 2023 have also
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system,
risk management system and internal audit function and
considered that they are effective and adequate for the time
being.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During Year 2023, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out below:

XERBRSE

EEg(;

=]

N
i
—

BEREEE(H)

R2023FE - ERLZ B Q@K AM2RE# -
BB ZHFEERFENT

Number of
meetings attended/held
during the term of office Attendance rate

Name of Directors BEEpnS FHRALE BITEERE HEE
Hung Muk Ming HEKER 2/2 100%
Liang Qing 2E 2/2 100%
Zhang Lu o 3% 2/2 100%
Remuneration Committee FHNZEES

The Company established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the
CG Code. The written terms of reference are set out in detail
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive
Director, namely, Mr. Luo Zhihai, and two independent
non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu (committee
chairman) and Mr. Liang Qing.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own
remuneration and that the Company has an equitable and
competitive remuneration policy to attract and retain talented
persons to serve the Company. The Board has adopted
the model where the Remuneration Committee performs an
advisory role to the Board (i.e. making recommendations
to the Board on the remunerations packages of individual
Directors and senior management). The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued) BEEg(E)

Remuneration Committee (Continued) FHEES(E)

The remuneration package for each employee is structured

according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration

package will contain a combination or modification of some

or all of the following four main components:

1.

Basic salary

The basic salary ranges for each position are
established with reference to the responsibilities and
the duties attached to the position. The actual salary
for the person filling the position is determined based
on the experience and ability of the individual selected
for the position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison to
comparable positions at competitors of the Company in
the relevant industry. The actual salaries of employees
are reviewed annually and may be adjusted from time
to time based on the cost of living and the financial
performance of the Company.

Salaries are basic remuneration and are not intended to
reward performance, either individually or corporately.
Performance is rewarded through the other components
of the remuneration package.

Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee is
determined with reference to his position and performance
during the year.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

3.

Share option

Share options to subscribe for Shares are granted to
employees from time to time at the discretion of the
Board in order to retain valuable employees and to
motivate future performance of the employees.

Share options granted to individual employee are
determined with reference to his position, performance
and ability to contribute to the overall success of the
Group.

However, the Group does not have any share option
scheme in force for the time being.

Other benefits

The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement
scheme, employee compensation, medical insurance,
paid annual leaves and child education allowance,
with reference to the prevailing practices in relevant
jurisdictions.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEEGR A

Exg(#)

FMEEE(E)

3.

BRE

EEGUIRRERRERDBRE -
HRBRD - LB EERAE T
BETHEESHTIE-

R B TERNBRENE SRER
iz~ REREARNEEBEKRBATIENE
BImETE °

AW AEBE RN EE BT ABRE

Al
At ta 7

AEENG2ERWREEEERE A
BiEfImE B RMERN R, Lt
MM EAERAKEEFE BB
& BERR BHFFREFLHER
B o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT Tt ¥EEWME

Board of Directors (Continued) BEEg(E)
Remuneration Committee (Continued) FHEES(E)
The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review FTNEZEESTHERAERENEARRINAN
the Company’s human resources matters and remuneration BEREETRFMECR - R20235FE  HZE
policies. During Year 2023, one Remuneration Committee BEEEAM—RgE SHNEZHEBRH
meeting was held and the attendance of each member is set T
out below:
Number of
meetings
attended/held
during the

term of office
EHREE " Attendance rate

Name of Directors EEHF BITEBIE HE =
Zhang Lu IR B 1/1 100%
Liang Qing »E 1/1 100%
Luo Zhihai #EE 11 100%
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the approval of the
payment of the director’s fees to the Directors for Year 2023
after taking into consideration the results of the Group, the
performance of the Directors, the senior management and
the employees and the prevailing market practices.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 (renumbered as Appendix D2 with effect from
31 December 2023) to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes
8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) on 15 February 2012 and adopted
written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee.
The written terms of reference are set out in detail on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During
Year 2023 and as at the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Chu Hing Tsung
(committee chairman, the Chairman, a Co-Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director), and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung
Muk Ming.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of Directors either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible for
re-election at such meeting. Every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitably qualified candidates for appointment to the
Board and making recommendations to the Board for its
consideration. The process for selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship includes the consideration
of referrals and the engagement of external recruitment
professionals. The selection criteria are based mainly on
the assessment of the candidates’ characters, professional
qualifications and experience relevant to the Group’s
business.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
periodically, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

During Year 2023, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held to review the Board structure and the diversity of
Board members and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors, in particular,
the Chairman and the Co-Chief Executive Officers. The
attendance of the meeting of each member is set out below:
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Number of
meetings
attended/held
during the term

of office
FHALE Attendance rate
Name of Directors EENR BITEBARE HE=
Chu Hing Tsung KEMR 0/1 0%
Zhang Lu R B 1/1 100%
Hung Muk Ming PN 11 100%
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against them.

Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive,
is provided with a director’s induction package to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of his duties and
responsibilities. The director’s induction package includes an
overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Director’s responsibilities and duties, relevant
regulatory requirements and briefing with the senior
management of the Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During Year 2023, all Directors participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by way
of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they complied with the
continuous professional development requirement of the CG
Code for Year 2023.
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Board of Directors (Continued) BEEg(E)

PR IEIN(E)

Induction and Training (Continued)

The training attended by the Directors during Year 2023 is

summarised below:

EEN2023F FAETTHEIIBA LT -

Type of training (Note 7) Training matters (Note 2)

Name of Directors EEHNSE EINAR A7) EINEE(H7E2)
Executive Directors BITEE
Chu Hing Tsung RE M a, b i, i, iv
Chen Yongcun BRoK T a, b i, i
Luo Zhihai RS b i, i, dii, iv
Tang Lunfei Efm a, b i i, v
Weng Jian (appointed with S (7R2023F7A1H a, b i, i, iv
effect from 1 July 2023) BEZE)
Wang Ping (resigned with FF(742023F4 A1H a, b i i, v
effect from 1 April 2023) BHT)
Non-executive Director HFHITEE
Chen Zhiwei REE b i, i, i, iv
Independent non-executive BV #HTEE
Directors
Liang Qing 2E b i, i, i, iv
Zhang Lu SR I b i, i, iv
Hung Muk Ming PN b i, i, dii
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training (Continued)

Note 1:
a: attending seminar or training session
b: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to

the economy, general business or directors’ duties and
responsibilities, etc.

Note 2:

corporate governance
ii: regulatory
iii: finance and accounting
iv: managerial

The Company also received confirmation from the Company
Secretary that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during Year 2023.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company has
effective risk management and control systems. The Board
evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least annually.
A review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for Year 2023 was
conducted.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather
than eliminate risks, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Company has employed a bottom-up approach
for the identification, assessment and mitigation of risks at
business unit level and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems include the establishment of
a risk register to track and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing new risks. The
identified risks will be recorded in the risk register which will
be reviewed regularly. After considering the control measures
against the risks identified, a risk matrix is adopted to
determine the risk rating (L=low risk, M=medium risk, H=high
risk) after evaluation of each risk identified by the likelihood
and the impact of the risk event.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Process Used to ldentify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

During the process of risk assessment, the risk owner of
each of the departments of the Group and major subsidiaries
of the Company is required to capture and identify the key
inherent risks that affect the achievement of its objectives.
Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk matrix.
After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual
risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again and categorised
according to its risk level. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the
Board, evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. The residual
risks in the highest category will be subject to the Board’s
oversight.

Process Used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management & Internal Control Systems and to
Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Board has outsourced the internal audit
function to an independent consulting firm (“Consulting
Firm”). The Consulting Firm has conducted a review of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems
for Year 2023 according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Inside Information

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. In order to ensure that the market
and Shareholders are fully and promptly informed about the
material developments in the Group’s business, the Board
has adopted an inside information disclosure policy regarding
the procedures of proper information disclosure. Release of
inside information is subject to the approval of the Board.
Unless duly authorised, all staff members of the Group shall
not communicate inside information to any external parties
and shall not respond to market speculation and rumours.
In addition, all external presentation materials or publications
must be pre-vetted before release.

Report to Audit Committee

The Consulting Firm reports directly to the Audit Committee
and the Audit Committee is satisfied that there has been no
major deficiency noted in the areas of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems being reviewed
after implementation of the measures recommended by
the Consulting Firm to rectify the internal control defects
reported by it. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the
Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be effective and adequate.
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General Meetings

During Year 2023, the Company convened two general
meetings, including the annual general meeting held on
15 June 2023. The attendance of each Director is set out

below:

BRERRE

R2023FE AN - ARAIAR - ABRERS -
B R2023F6 A15H BT 2 R B F K

g BREFHFEBRFINWOT

Number of
general meetings
attended/held during

the term of office Attendance
EHRAEE rate

Name of Directors BEENS BITRRRERE HER

Executive Directors BITEE

Chu Hing Tsung KEM 2/2 100%

Chen Yongcun PR oK A7 2/2 100%

Luo Zhihai mEE 2/2 100%

Tang Lunfei EfmR 0/2 0%

Weng Jian (appointed with S (FR2023%F7H18 1/1 100%
effect from 1 July 2023) BEE)(K:T)

(Note)

Wang Ping (resigned with TF(72023F4 A1H N/A N/A
effect from 1 April 2023) BHE) (H172) @A i A
(Note)

Non-executive Director FHITEE

Chen Zhiwei PREE 2/2 100%

Independent non-executive BV HHITEE
Directors

Liang Qing 2E 0/2 0%

Zhang Lu oR 3% 2/2 100%

Hung Muk Ming peidy N 2] 2/2 100%

Note: The attendance of the Director who was appointed or who
resigned during Year 2023 was made by reference to the

number of such meetings held during his terms.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

For Year 2023, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, for their audit and non-

audit services provided, is set out as follows:

B AT &

R20234F E s EL Pzt 2 & At KOE BT IR
BN A D R A B AT L ok & 5t AP R AT
2B T

Fee paid/payable

Nature of services PRI ME 2N ENEH
HK$
BT
Audit services FHE R 7,200,000
Non-audit services IERET RS
— Professional services in relation to a major — BREARRS 2 EERE
transaction 430,000
— Internal control services — NEBEEIE AR 300,000
Total Rk 7,930,000

Remuneration of Senior Management

The emoluments paid to the senior management of
the Group during Year 2023, which were amongst the
emoluments paid to the five highest paid individuals of the

SR EE A B H M

R2023FEX N FAEESREEAB(CK
SEEREFAL)IZHECEHIINGEA M
AR EEQ

Group, are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by

AEBMSREEABR2023F EH#HME

band for Year 2023 is as follows: REFNAT -
Number of
individuals
AE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 7T £ 3,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017%& 75 23,500,000/ 7T —
HK$3,500,001 to HK$5,500,000 3,500,0017& 7T 25,500,000/ 7T 1
2
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for each
financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state
of the affairs, results and cash flows of the Group for that
year in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure
requirements in the Listing Rules.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for Year 2023, the Directors have (i) selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
(i) adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; (iii) made
adjustments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
and (iv) prepared the consolidated financial statements on
the going concern basis.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which reflect the financial position of
the Group accurately at all times. The Directors also have
general responsibilities for setting up an appropriate internal
control system, which is mainly to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities. The Directors have reviewed the internal control
system of the Group and are satisfied that the internal
control system of the Group is functioning properly.

Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023

The Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, issued a disclaimer
of opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for Year 2023 (“2023 Accounts”) due to multiple uncertainties
relating to going concern as below:

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continueq)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
(a) Details of the audit opinion modification

As set out in Note 2.1 to the 2023 Accounts, as at
31 December 2023, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$57 million and the
Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,485 million are due to be repaid within 12
months from the end of the reporting period, including (i)
borrowing of approximately HK$195 million which has
not been repaid according to the scheduled repayment
date before the end of the reporting period; and (ii)
borrowings of approximately HK$3,007 million with
original maturity dates of over one year from the end
of the reporting period which have been reclassified
to current liabilities due to the delay in the payment
of interest of certain borrowings before the end of the
reporting period. Furthermore, subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, another borrowing of the Group
with a principal amount of approximately HK$131
million has not been repaid according to the scheduled
repayment date. These conditions, along with other
matters set forth in Note 2.1 to the 2023 Accounts,
indicate the existence of material uncertainties which
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The Directors have been undertaking plans and
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial
position, details of which are set out in Note 2.1 to
the 2023 Accounts. The validity of the going concern
assumptions on which the 2023 Accounts have been
prepared depends on the outcome of these measures,
which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including:

BERRE

2023 FERBMABRRER(E)

HEFRCEERNSATREM

(a)

B R EIEXAFIE
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continued)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
(Continueq)

(a) Details of the audit opinion modification (Continued)

()  the successful and timely implementation of
the plans and measures for the disposal of the
outstanding loan receivables and loan interest
receivables;

(i)  the successful and timely implementation of
the plans for the disposal of the financial asset
investments;

(i)  the continual support from the existing lenders
of the Group such that they will not demand for
immediate repayment of the relevant borrowings;
and

(iv) the successful obtaining of new sources of
financing as and when needed.

As a result of these multiple uncertainties, their
potential interaction, and the possible cumulative effect
thereof, the Company’s auditor was unable to form
an opinion as to whether the going concern basis of
preparation is appropriate. Should the Group fail to
achieve the above-mentioned plans and measures, it
might not be able to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in the 2023 Accounts.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continueq)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
(Continueq)

(b)

Position and basis of the Group’s management on
the audit opinion modification

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$57 million and the
Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,485 million were due to be repaid within 12
months from the end of the reporting period, including (i)
borrowing of approximately HK$195 million which has
not been repaid according to the scheduled repayment
date before the end of the reporting period; and (ii)
borrowings of approximately HK$3,007 million with
original maturity dates of over one year from the end
of the reporting period which have been reclassified
to current liabilities due to the delay in the payment
of interest of certain borrowings and which has
been repaid after 31 December 2023. Furthermore,
subsequent to the end of the reporting period, another
borrowing of the Group with a principal amount of
approximately HK$131 million has not been repaid
according to the scheduled repayment date. As at the
date of approval of the 2023 Accounts, the Group has
been actively negotiating with the lenders for extension
of the repayment date of certain of the aforesaid
borrowings. Up to the date of approval of the 2023
Accounts, the Group has not received any demand for
immediate repayment of these and other borrowings.

In view of the above circumstances, the Directors
have given careful consideration to the Group’s future
liquidity requirements, operating performance and
available sources of financing in assessing the Group’s
ability to continue operating as a going concern. The
following plans and measures (“Plans and Measures”)
have been formulated to manage the working capital
and improve the financial position of the Group:

I5is
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continued)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
(Continued)

(b) Position and basis of the Group’s management on
the audit opinion modification (Continued)

() the Group will continue to implement measures for
the disposal of the outstanding loan receivables
and loan interest receivables;

(i)  the Group will continue to take measures to
expedite the disposal of the financial asset
investments, including equity investments and
non-performing assets portfolio;

(i)  the Group will continue its negotiations with the
lenders of certain bank and other borrowings or
other financial institutions on the refinancing of
the borrowings; and

(iv) the Group will obtain additional credit facilities
from existing and other lenders as and when
needed.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management, which cover a
period of not less than 12 months from 31 December
2023. They were of the opinion that, taking into
account the Plans and Measures, the Group would
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within 12 months from 31 December 20283.
Accordingly, the Directors were satisfied that it was
appropriate to prepare the 2023 Accounts on a going
concern basis.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023 2023 FEREMARRER(E)

(Continueq)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern HEBESEEBNSETRER(E)

(Continued)

(b) Position and basis of the Group’s management on (b) FEFEEEHFTEEMBEKPILER
the audit opinion modification (Continued) etk (42 )
On the other hand, in the view of the Company’s S—FME AREZHMRE  FET
auditor, there existed the following material uncertainties PERTHEETEMEAEBFTECE 2
which cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to BENEABANIERR

continue as a going concern:

()  the successful and timely implementation of () PRI R B E R (EE R
the plans and measures for the disposal of the ERRERERT S E RE
outstanding loan receivables and loan interest It
receivables;

(i) the successful and timely implementation of iy ARUAUEHEBELESHEER
the plans for the disposal of the financial asset AEmEtEl
investments;

(i)  the continual support from the existing lenders iy AEERBERANFEIIR -
of the Group such that they will not demand for BETEZERkBEEMARE
immediate repayment of the relevant borrowings; R
and

(iv) the successful obtaining of new sources of (iv) HERKINESHTHNRERR -

financing as and when needed.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continued)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
(Continued)

(b) Position and basis of the Group’s management on
the audit opinion modification (Continued)

The Audit Committee has discussed the audit opinion
modification with the Group’s management and the
Directors, and agreed with their position and basis
(including the matters involving their substantial
judgments) in relation to the audit opinion modification
and the preparation of the 2023 Accounts on a going
concern basis, in reliance of the following factual
matters: (i) up to the date of approval of the 2023
Accounts, the Group has not received any demand
for immediate repayment of its borrowings; (ii) the
Group has been and is still actively negotiating with
the lenders of certain of its bank and other borrowings
or other financial institutions on the refinancing of the
borrowings; (iii) following the Company’s entering into
of a memorandum of understanding dated 18 March
2024 with Guangdong Zhuguang in relation to the
Proposed Disposal (further details of which are set out
in the paragraph headed “Grant of Loans — Proposed
disposal of Loan Interest” in the Chairman’s Statement
above and the Company’s announcements dated 18
March 2024 and 19 March 2024), the Company has
been actively negotiating with Guangdong Zhuguang
on the terms of the formal sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the Proposed Disposal to be
entered into between the Company and Guangdong
Zhuguang; (iv) after the end of the reporting period
and up to the date of approval of the 2023 Accounts,
the Group has disposed of financial asset investments
of approximately HK$1.8 million in its non-performing
assets portfolio; and (v) up to the date of approval of
the 2023 Accounts, neither the Company nor any of
its operating subsidiaries has been the subject of any
winding-up proceedings.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023 2023 FEREMARRER(E)

(Continueq)
Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern HEBESEEBNSETRER(E)
(Continued)
(b) Position and basis of the Group’s management on (b) FEFEEEHFTEEMBEKPILER
the audit opinion modification (Continued) etk (42 )
The Group will continue to implement the Plans and NEBBEERENITAEI KB - A
Measures diligently to better manage its working capital FEFHEREHELEE S RWNE2024
and improve its financial position in 2024, FHFEARM ©
Even had there been no afore-mentioned multiple B N7 1 Ll B B A & MR ) 2 TR T i
uncertainties relating to going concern which precluded the EEZSHAR FIZEENEEE2023F K B
Company’s auditor from expressing an opinion on the 2023 BRER  ARRZEMAMERY Tl El
Accounts, the opinion of the Company’s auditor would have ERRERERFEMBREER °

been qualified for the qualification on the loan receivables
and loan interest receivables as below.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continued)

Qualification on loan receivables and loan interest
receivables

(a) Details of the audit opinion modification

Included in loan receivables and deposits, prepayments
and other receivables on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023
were loan receivables from different borrowers with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$1,552
million, net of loss allowance, and related loan interest
receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$349 million, net of loss allowance.
In addition, included in other income, gains and losses
and impairment of financial assets, net on the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss for Year 2023
were interest income of approximately HK$165 million
and impairment loss of approximately HK$390 million
in relation to the above-mentioned loan receivables
and loan interest receivables. Furthermore, investing
cash flows of interest received of approximately HK$22
million, advance of loan receivables of approximately
HK$357 million and receipt of loan receivables
of approximately HK$75 million in relation to the
abovementioned loan receivables and loan interest
receivables were presented in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows for Year 2023.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continueq)

Qualification on loan receivables and loan interest

receivables (Continued)

(a)

Details of the audit opinion modification (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 20 to the 2023 Accounts, the
Company has established a special investigation
committee to undertake investigation on matters
pertaining to the loan transactions, including but
not limited to, the commercial rationale of the loan
transactions and the relationship between the Group
and the borrowers. Up to the date of approval of
the 2023 Accounts, as the afore-said investigation
(“Investigation”) has not been completed and is still
in progress, the Company’s auditor was unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
themselves as to (i) the commercial rationale of the
loan transactions, the relationships between the Group
and the borrowers, and the relationships amongst the
borrowers; (i) whether the carrying amounts of the
loan receivables and loan interest receivables were
properly stated as at 31 December 2023; (iii) whether
the impairment loss for these loan receivables and
loan interest receivables for Year 2023 was properly
assessed and recognised based on the reasonable
and supportable information in accordance with the
applicable accounting standard and, consequently,
whether the interest income from these loan receivables
was properly recognised during Year 2023; and
(iv) whether the cash flows in relation to the loan
transactions were properly presented in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows for Year 2023.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above
might have consequential effects on the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and the
financial performance and cash flows of the Group for
Year 2023, and the related disclosures thereof in the
2023 Accounts.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continued)

Qualification on loan receivables and loan interest
receivables (Continued)

(b) Position and basis of the Group’s management on
the audit opinion modification

To allow the Company’s auditor to perform their
audit procedures on the loan receivables and loan
interest receivables of the Group outstanding as at
31 December 2023, the following information was
provided by the Group to the Company’s auditor: (i)
loan agreements; (i) background information of the
borrowers; (iii) credit assessments conducted by the
Group on the borrowers; (iv) documents showing the
Group’s approval of the loans; (v) banking and other
documents relating to the transfer of funds to confirm
that funds relating to the loans flowed from the Group’s
bank accounts to the borrowers or their authorised
representatives in accordance with the agreements; (vi)
interest income calculation schedule for the outstanding
loan receivables as at 31 December 2023; and (vii)
ECL assessment on the outstanding loan receivables
and loan interest receivables as at 31 December 2023
(collectively, “Loan Supporting Information”), which in
the view of the Group’s management and the Directors
(contrary to the opinion of the Company’s auditor),
comprised sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the
Company’s auditor to perform their audit assessments
on the matters in relation to the loan receivables and
loan interest receivables of the Group outstanding as at
31 December 2023 set out above.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continueq)

Qualification on loan receivables and loan interest
receivables (Continued)

(b) Position and basis of the Group’s management on
the audit opinion modification (Continued)

On the other hand, in the view of the Company’s
auditor, they could not ascertain the commercial
rationale of the transactions contemplated under
the Loan Agreements and the relationship between
the Group and the borrowers based on the Loan
Supporting Information and the results of their
audit procedures performed in respect of the audit
of the Group for Year 2023. Up to the date of the
Company’s auditor’s report on the 2023 Accounts, as
the Investigation is still in progress, the view of the
Company’s auditor was that they remained unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy themselves as to the commercial rationale of
the loans under the Loan Agreements (“Loans”), the
relationships between the Group and the borrowers,
and the relationships amongst the borrowers. In
addition, due to the lack of sufficient appropriate audit
evidence on the commercial rationale of the Loans
and the appropriateness of significant inputs used in
the ECL calculation as a result of the lack of sufficient
documentation supporting adequate due diligence
procedures performed by the Group’s management on
the underlying business operations of the borrowers,
the Company’s auditor could not satisfy themselves as
to whether the impairment losses for loan receivables
and loan interest receivables as at 31 December 2023
were properly assessed and recognised based on
reasonable and supportable information in accordance
with applicable accounting standard and, consequently,
whether the interest income from these loan receivables
was properly recognised for Year 2023. As such, the
Company’s auditor could not satisfy themselves as to
whether the carrying amounts of the loan receivables
and loan interest receivables were properly stated as
at 31 December 20283. Furthermore, due to the lack of
sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the commercial
rationale of the Loans, the Company’s auditor could
not satisfy themselves as to whether the cash flows
in relation to the loan transactions were properly
presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows for Year 2023.
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Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continued)

Qualification on loan receivables and loan interest
receivables (Continued)

(b) Position and basis of the Group’s management on
the audit opinion modification (Continued)

Whilst the Audit Committee agreed with the position
of the Group’s management and the Directors that the
Loan Supporting Information provided by the Group to
the Company’s auditor should have comprised sufficient
appropriate audit evidence for the Company’s auditor
to perform their audit assessments on the matters
in relation to the loan receivables and loan interest
receivables of the Group set out above, the Audit
Committee had also accepted the recommendation
of the Company’s auditor that an independent review
should be conducted on the Loan Agreements and
the underlying loan receivables and loan interest
receivables, in order to address the then concerns of
the Company’s auditor about the commercial rationale
of the Loans and the relationship between the Group
and the borrowers as mentioned above. On this basis,
the Audit Committee agreed to the establishment of the
Special Investigation Committee and the appointment
of the Investigation Agency and the Independent Legal
Advisor to conduct the Investigation, which is at its
final stages.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Disclaimer of Auditor’s Opinion for Year 2023
(Continueq)

Qualification on loan receivables and loan interest

receivables (Continued)

(b) Position and basis of the Group’s management on

the audit opinion modification (Continued)

The Group will take the following actions to address
and resolve the audit issues in relation to its loan
receivables and loan interest receivables:

(i)

(iv)

the Group has been sending demand letters to
the borrowers on a regular basis following their
defaults;

the Investigation has reached its final stages, and
the final written report is expected to be released
by the end of May 2024;

the Company intends to enter into a legally-
binding agreement with Guangdong Zhuguang in
relation to the Proposed Disposal by 31 May 2024
subject to the approval by the Stock Exchange
and the Shareholders at the general meeting and
proceed with the completion of the Proposed
Disposal before the end of 2024 to dispose of the
Loan Interest; and

as soon as there are any changes in the
circumstances causing the Company to believe
that the completion of the Proposed Disposal is
unlikely to take place, the Group will start looking
for an alterative purchaser to acquire the Loan
Interest, and until such a purchaser is secured,
the Group will take actions in seeking to recover
the loan receivables and loan interest receivables
under the Loan Interest, including requesting the
borrowers to settle the overdue amounts through
telephone calls, e-mails and WeChat messages,
and/or commencing legal action against the
defaulting borrowers (upon receiving legal advice).
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirements under the CG Code.

Convening General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) may request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to
568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”).

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance, the Directors are required to call a general
meeting if the Company has received requests to do so
from members of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members of the Company
having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company
in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office
of the Company at Suite 4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by email:
info@silvergrant.com.cn); and must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it. In accordance with Section
567 of the Companies Ordinance, the Directors must call
a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on
a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Convening General Meeting on Request (Continued)

If the Directors do not, within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition, proceed duly to convene
an extraordinary general meeting on a day not more than
28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
extraordinary general meeting is given, the Shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene an extraordinary general meeting, provided that the
extraordinary general meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The extraordinary general meeting convened by Shareholders
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the
Directors.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders can raise enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of
the Company at Suite 4901, 49/F, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings

To put forward a resolution at an annual general meeting,
Shareholders are requested to follow the requirements
and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the
Companies Ordinance.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings
(Continued)

Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (A) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
the members of the Company who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (B) at least 50 members of the Company
who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate. Such requests
(a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by
depositing at the registered office of the Company at Suite
4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by email: info@silvergrant.com.cn); (b)
must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given;
(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making
it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later than
(i) 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given
of that meeting. Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance
provides that the Company which is required under Section
615 of the Companies Ordinance to give notice of a
resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own
expense to each member of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting (1) in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and (2) at the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

Proposing Director for Election at General Meetings
In respect of proposing a person for election as a Director at

general meetings, please refer to the procedures available on
the website of the Company at http://www.silvergrant.com.cn.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Constitutional Documents

During Year 2023, there was no change made to the
Company’s constitutional documents.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with Shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency
of Shareholders’ voting in a general meeting, separate
resolutions are proposed at a general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors and all resolutions are voted on by poll.
The Company will engage an external scrutineer to count
the votes. The poll voting results will be published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange at a
later time on the day of the general meeting. In addition,
the requirement for resolutions to be voted by poll is stated
in the circular or the annual report to be despatched to
Shareholders. Moreover, the chairman of the meeting will
explain to the Shareholders the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll before voting at each general meeting.

The Company has maintained a website at http://www.
silvergrant.com.cn which enables the Shareholders,
investors and the general public to have open access to
the information of the Company. Financial information and
all corporate communications of the Company are made
available on the Company’s website and are updated
regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901, 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy
during Year 2023.
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Communication with Shareholders (Continued)

The Company has established different communication
channels with the Shareholders. Shareholders may raise
their enquiries in general meetings. During Year 2023, the
Company held two general meetings (including the annual
general meeting held on 15 June 2023) which were attended
by members of the Board and (in respect of the annual
general meeting) the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young,
to answer questions from the Shareholders attending the
meetings.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to the Shareholders as effectively and timely
as possible. Most information released by the Company to
the Stock Exchange is also published on the Company’s
website, including annual and interim reports, annual and
interim results announcements, circulars and notices of
general meetings and associated explanatory documents,
other announcements, monthly returns on movements in
the Company’s securities for each month, constitutional
documents of the Company and terms of reference of the
committees of the Board. Shareholders may at any time
send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong
Kong, and make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent such information is publicly available.

In view of the above, the Company considered its
shareholders’ communication policy effective.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEEGR A

BERRNBEGE)

ARFEEBRRELAENBERE - R
AR AE LIRHEH - N2023FE @ K
RAHABITRMABRAE (BHE1R202346 A
ISABTHERRBEFAE) EFEKER
(RBCRBFEREME ) AR ARBELKE
AR EBAHEHEERRE L E RN
REEM o

AR B BN R BB L K B 3 e AR 4% BR
BEAKBENMEEEER - RRAANER
P T B )R EE D B R IR T B R AN A B 49 -
BRERFERTHES FERTPHEER
fio B RBRA GBS MR A
H i - NRAREBAEFEHINEH AW
RARAERNHREFEEZESHNR
REEE - BRABERHAZEEPABRARF
EEMERNARAWERNERHNEANE
B YRREERRBARR A AFERN

ERLER - ARARRERRBABER
B o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE€ 4%

The Board presents the annual report and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for Year 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The
subsidiaries of the Company are principally engaged in
property leasing and investments. Details of the principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
for Year 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on page 122.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
final dividend for Year 2023.
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Business Review EBER
The business review of the Group for Year 2023 is set out AEB2023F EHEBERIFINWOT ¢
below:
Section in the Page number of the
Annual Report Annual Report
HIREHR 2B FHZEH
a. Fair view of the Company’s business Chairman’s Statement 5
HARRRBNPEER IRRE
b. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing Directors’ Report 102
the Company B8RS
HARREENEZRR R TARREZ R
¢. Indication of likely future development in the Company’s Chairman’s Statement 12
business IS
ARBIEBHEE BN ARKERNBT
d. Analysis using financial key performance indicators Financial Highlights 2
ERVBRARERRERETODN IBRHE
e. Discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and Environmental, Social and 51
performance Governance
HARRNREBRR KBRS BE - HgkEn
f. An account of the Company’s key relationships with its Directors’ Report 118
employees, customers and suppliers and others that EE S ks

have a significant impact on the Company and on which
the Company’s success depends

ARRIEEES  BEERMEENEZMENBAURER
BIERMENTHANEMATNEZRENFA  ZAL
HARARBEATE  MAZRAAHERENZAL

g. Discussion on the Company’s compliance with the relevant  Directors’ Report 101

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on EEeRY
the Company

HARRETHARABERY BN EMERRRPIHER
B R A

1 00 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Business Review (Continued)
Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong with its
shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
The Company’s subsidiaries were incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC and through certain property
investments in Hong Kong.

The Group’s principal business activities are property leasing
and investments in the PRC and Hong Kong which are highly
regulated businesses. To engage in investments (both in the
PRC and Hong Kong) and financial services, the Group must
obtain relevant permits from government authorities before
the commencement of the business. Set out below is a
summary of certain aspects of the PRC and Hong Kong legal
and regulatory provisions relating to the Group’s operations
and business:

° Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong);

o FEREHSEEETETITIE (Interim Measures for
the Supervision and Administration of Privately Offered
Investment Funds*); and

o FEREESESTAEREIE (Measures for the
Administration of the Fundraising of Privately Offered
Investment Funds?).

If there is any non-compliance with the above rules and
regulations, it will affect the Group’s operations, development
and financial performance. During Year 2023, the Group
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, the British Virgin Islands and the PRC that have a
significant impact on the Group.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only.

EBERE)
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BEEE - ANED
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REBRRBRFEBEIRGHEBTAE - B

AEBELEREBNETHERERERR

EERENBEFIMT
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REREESEBEEREITINEG &

REREESEETRERIE -
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Key Risk Factors

The following paragraphs list out the key risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list
and there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to the key risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual
report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice
for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and
investors are advised to make their own judgment or consult
their own investment advisors before making any investment
in the securities of the Company.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to direct investment, property investment and
property related businesses. Default on the part of the
Group’s buyers, tenants and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels
of negative impact on the Group’s results of operations.
Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and
policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to
financial loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

Policy Risks

The Group’s principal operating activities are in Mainland
China. The mainland market operates a system of planned
economy. New laws and regulations are launched from time
to time to regulate and/or promote economic activities.
The enactment of any new regulatory policies may have
various levels of negative impact on the Group’s results of
operations.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Key Risk Factors (Continued)
Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operation of the Group
as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.
This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual
results may also differ materially from expectations discussed
in such forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither
the Group nor the Directors, employees or agents of the
Group assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that
any of the forward-looking statements or opinions does not
materialise or turns out to be incorrect.

Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued
at 31 December 2023. The surplus on revaluation of the
leasehold land and buildings of approximately HK$7,533,000
has been credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at
31 December 2023. The net decrease in fair value of
investment properties, which has been charged directly to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, amounted to
approximately HK$63,646,000.

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
during Year 2023 are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group at 31
December 2023 are set out in the section headed “Summary
of Investment Properties” of this annual report.

TERBEEE)
BERR R ATHE MR
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Charitable Donations

No material donation was made to charitable organisations
by the Group during Year 2023.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during Year 2023 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2023, no reserve was available for
distribution to the Shareholders.

Equity Linked Agreements

No equity linked agreements were entered into by the Group
during Year 2023 or subsisted at the end of Year 2023.

Directors

The Directors during Year 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors
Chu Hing Tsung
Chen Yongcun
Luo Zhihai
Tang Lunfei
Weng Jian
(appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)
Wang Ping
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2023)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REBERZEREEEGR A

BERX

REBEMN2023F EHMH A SHBEREGIEL
BERZBK -

&N

RRBIRAR2023FE R 2 BB BENER
BMBRAMEE2S o

RRTWAHD KB

R2023F 12 A31H » EA LR TR
s -

IR SR 8 160

AEER2023F E 4245 A 42023 F [ A {E(r]
AR S IR E B -

EE

2023 EAREBEAFTRAFEAREAZE
=T

YITES
R
BRIk TF
B
E R
&4
(202347 A1BEZRT)
T¥F
(202344 A1BHET)



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE€ 4%

Directors (Continued)

Non-executive Director
Chen Zhiwei

Independent non-executive Directors
Liang Qing

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming

Each Director has been appointed for a specific term,
and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

Directors of Subsidiaries

Other than the Directors named in the section headed
“Directors” above, the persons who have served on the
respective boards of directors of the subsidiaries of the
Company during Year 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report included Mr. Ng Hoi Leung Leo.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2023, save as disclosed below, no other
Directors or the chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:

EERRSTRAEBRARTRS - A&
AROREERE ZEERARE

BT ATIEEESN - K2023%F12A31H @
BEMEELARNAZSTERABRARR
A EHAMEEEZE (TR RBLFRPE KIS
XVER) KRR 7 ~ HHEAR D K EREES - EH
BIEEH R EGOIEISEBTFERAR
A B M SRR R T RIZE LA E 5 = A0
EARNARBRAOERIORE

Long position in the Shares BRGZHFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity Shares interested issued Shares (Nofe 1)
FREE R HIEE BT
EEEB &4 ZRBEE BBBE D (AET)
Chu Hing Tsung Interest of controlled 680,554,022 29.53%
(“Mr. Chu”) corporations (Note 2)
KREMR(KEE]D) RiEwEE R (A t2)
Chen Yongcun Beneficial owner 700,000 0.03%
BRIKTF EmEAA
Weng Jian Interest of spouse (Note 3) 644,000 0.03%
Bk feiB s (E3)
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2023 (i.e.
2,304,849,611 Shares) has been used for the calculation of
the approximate percentage of shareholdings in the Company.

2. Mr. Chu directly holds 34.06% of the issued shares of Rong
De Investments Limited (“Rong De”), which in turn holds
60.11% of the issued shares of Zhuguang Holdings, which
in turn holds 100% of the issued shares of Splendid Reach
Limited (“Splendid Reach”), the beneficial owner of such
680,554,022 Shares. Accordingly, Mr. Chu, Rong De and
Zhuguang Holdings are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Splendid Reach pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. Weng Jian is the spouse of Yang Jingxiu and under Part XV of
SFO, he is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which
Yang Jingxiu is interested or deemed to be interested.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during Year 2023 or at the end of Year 2023 was
the Company, its parent company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor the
chief executives of the Company nor any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.

EERRSTRAEBRARTRS - A&
EROREER 2EERKXR(E)

Maz

1. FA2023F12831H » B 2170 M0 4 & (8
2,304,849,6111%) B AR T E A2 & A%
KRB DL -

2. KRELEBEEREMEREABRQAIR
1) 34.06%m B 1T G T Ak iE Al
BIR K AERE0.11%ME BT M - Bk
S # #% Bl % ASplendid Reach Limited
(['Splendid Reach])2#E % THG% « A%
680,554,022/ f 1 2 B A A ° it -
RIBE S R EIEHIEXVED » R4 - BifE
R IR KPR Splendid Reach# B 2 i3
HaEER -

3. HiAYang JingxiuELE - IRIEFES M
EIEHIEXVER - A Yang JingxiulfE A 215
ERAEN 2RO ERPHE ER -

BERONEEINOZH

KAaE - ERRRISEEMFBARKRAR
Bt B8 A B4 £ 1A 2023 4F [ 1A /9T fa] B R sl 1R
20283F B RAFTH—77 DR LML HEA
REEEAVEBALRBSTMEMEAE
BAORMKEEENSR  RNMEEERAN
RNElEEITBRAB AN KSR+ /5
INTFF& BERMENARERARAES
S BITE AR 2 SRR -
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, its parent company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of Year
2023 or at any time during Year 2023.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any part
of the Company’s business were entered into during Year
2023 or subsisted at the end of Year 2023.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the
statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereon. The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify its Directors and officers in respect
of legal actions against them during Year 2023 and such
permitted indemnity provision is still in force as at the date
of this annual report.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of

the Company

As at 31 December 20283, the following persons (other
than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares, as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares

RO ZHFE

7202312 A31H
HEEITIABBRIN R D SABRERR (  #E
BRBEES RHEKRIFEI6HRAEFTENAR
NRERMEERSAE

FERRREAQFARG REBRED 2 #
BmRKRE

CATAL(RRAES

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued Shares
Shares (Note 1)
interested HEERT
Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity BERESZ ROBZEDL
TERRER L) ki &E (Hit1)
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporations 438,056,000 19.01%
(“China Cinda") (Note 2)
PEEEEEERROARRA(HERGE]) REGEEER(HiE2)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 438,056,000 19.01%
(“Cinda HK”) (Note 2)
PEEE(RR)ERERAR(EEEE]) R B (H72)
Regent Star International Limited (“Regent Star”)  Beneficial owner (Note 2) 438,056,000 19.01%
ERERERAR(ERE]) ERBBANZ2)
Liao Tengjia Interest of controlled corporations (Note 3) 680,554,022 29.53%
Bl RERIEE R (H23)
Rong De Interest of controlled corporations (Note 3) 680,554,022 29.53%
R R EBRR (H73)
Zhuguang Holdings Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 680,554,022 29.53%
R RELEEER(HL3)
Splendid Reach Beneficial owner (Note 3) 680,554,022 29.53%

ERBAANH3)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short FERRERERXATARG R EBERG 2
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of mRRE(E)

the Company (Continueqd)
Notes: Wizt -

1. The total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2023 (i.e. 1.
2,304,849,611 Shares) has been used for the calculation of
the approximate percentage of shareholdings in the Company.

2. China Cinda directly holds 100% of the issued shares of 2.
Cinda HK, which in turn holds 100% of the issued shares
of Regent Star, the beneficial owner of such 438,056,000
Shares. Therefore, China Cinda and Cinda HK are deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Regent Star pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO.

3. Mr. Liao Tengjia directly holds 36% of the issued shares of 3.
Rong De, which in turn holds 60.11% of the issued shares of
Zhuguang Holdings, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
shares of Splendid Reach, the beneficial owner of such
680,554,022 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Liao Tengjia, Rong De and
Zhuguang Holdings are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Splendid Reach pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

MR2023F12A31H 2 B 81T 0 2 & (A
2,304,849,6111%) B AEETE AR B Z 5 &
BB DL -

FREEEEFBEESB100%E %7K
M MiEESBHFEERI00%E % 1TR
5+ B 1 53%2438,056,0000% % 10 8 B 25k
BACRHt - FEEEREETBRESES
N EREAEDI EXVEB AR AR 2 BT B B
DB ER -

BEEEEEEEEARE36% 2 B HITR
17 Rk EE+F B BRI R60.11% B & 1T
B 3 0 ER & 4% B % B Splendid Reach
(680,554,022 R M Bz B A ) 100%
BTG - Bt - BRELE  BERK
HIRBGAR IR B R S &0 EXVE AR AR
Splendid Reachfi#%FH K& 17 # A #Ew ©

Long position in the underlying Shares YRR G2 E
Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying issued Shares
Shares (Note 1)
interested HEC BT
Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity EERRZ RAzEDH
TERRER 5t HERGEE (H1a#1)
China Cinda Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 180,257,511 (Note 5) 7.82%
hElfEE REEERR(H22) (Hi323)
Cinda HK Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 180,257,511 (Note 5) 7.82%
B REEERR(H22) (Hi323)
Regent Star Beneficial owner (Note 2) 180,257,511 (Note 5) 7.82%
B ERBAANH2) (Hi323)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company (Continueqd)

Notes:

1. The total number of the issued Shares as at 31 December
2023 (i.e. 2,304,849,611 Shares) has been used for the
calculation of the approximate percentage of shareholdings in
the Company.

2. China Cinda directly holds 100% of the issued shares of Cinda
HK, which in turn holds 100% of the issued shares of Regent
Star, the beneficial owner of such 180,257,511 underlying
Shares. Therefore, China Cinda and Cinda HK are deemed
to be interested in the underlying Shares held by Regent Star
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. These represent unlisted physically settled derivatives of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Company had not been notified of any persons (other than
the Directors or the chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares, which would fall to be disclosed under Section 336
of the SFO.

Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Connected Transactions

During Year 2023, there were no connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company that were
not exempt from the annual reporting requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the related party
transactions as set out in note 34(a) to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FERRREAQFARG REBRED 2 #
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wRRE (B

Wizt
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE€ 4%

Buy-Back, Sales or Redemption of Listed Securities

During Year 20283, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries bought back, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, during
Year 2023 and up to the date of this report, the Company
has maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue for Year 2023 comprised rental income
from the leasing of properties and dividend income from
listed securities.

The accumulated amount of revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers during Year 2023 was less
than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for Year 2023.

The Group had no supplier during Year 2023 due to the
nature of its principal business activities.

During Year 2023, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or any
of the Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Board,
owned more than 5% of the Shares had interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE€ 4%

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

The Group recognises its employees as one of the
significant assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue
establishing a caring environment for its employees which
emphasises the personal development of its employees. The
Group organises various social and recreational activities,
including annual dinner and birthday parties, to strengthen
the bonding among its employees and promote their sense
of belonging. During Year 2023, there was no material non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group relating to the compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare with respect to its employees.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationships with its tenants in relation to its property leasing
business by continuous interaction with them and being
responsive to their demands. The Group has also established
procedures for handling the complaints from its tenants to
ensure the complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely
manner. Because of its business nature, the Group does not
rely on any major tenants and no credit terms are granted to
them.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme. Where employees leave the scheme prior to
the full vesting of the employer’s contributions, the amount
of forfeited contributions cannot be used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE€ 4%

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers (Continued)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme (“Pension Scheme”) operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs to
the Pension Scheme. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the Pension Scheme is to pay the ongoing
contributions under the Pension Scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in future years.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good
relationships with its suppliers and business partners to
ensure the stability of it business. The Group reinforces
the business relationships with its suppliers and business
partners by ongoing communication with them in a proactive
and effective manner so as to ensure the timely delivery
of services to the Group and a wide range of potential
investments will be available to the Group at all times.

Auditor
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment

as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B 3 #% 2 il $} &

e
EY::

To the members of
Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Disclaimer of opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Silver Grant International Holdings Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 122 to 266, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the potential interaction
of the multiple uncertainties relating to going concern and
their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial
statements as described in the Basis for disclaimer of
opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to
form an opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
Except for the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer
of opinion section and the Additional matter — Qualification
on loan receivables and loan interest receivables section
of our report, in all other respects, in our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

=
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion
Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash
and bank balances of approximately HK$57 million and the
Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,485
million are due to be repaid within 12 months from the
end of the reporting period, including (i) borrowing of
approximately HK$195 million which has not been repaid
according to the scheduled repayment date before the end
of the reporting period; and (ii) borrowings of approximately
HK$3,007 million with original maturity dates of over one
year from the end of the reporting period which have been
reclassified to current liabilities due to the delay in the
payment of interest of certain borrowings before the end of
the reporting period. Furthermore, subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, another borrowing of the Group with a
principal amount of approximately HK$131 million has not
been repaid according to the scheduled repayment date.
These conditions, along with other matters set forth in note
2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

TRRER2ER
FRFRAEE 2RI RERER

a0 4R A B RS R R MY sE2. 1T & - 2023
F12A318  EEB 2R RBESEHY
£57,000,0008 0 MESEREAELY
3,485,000,000/% 7T 2 5T B R 17 R KA B R E
BREMABRTZEANEE  BF)NEK
SHRA M ARIZRIEEERBREEZER
#9195,000,000/% 7T : R(i)REEIE B & E
wEHAIR —F LA £ 2 fE3493,007,000,000#
T(AEREPRAEES B TERZFE
EENSEERBBE) - B RIMEHRK
% BEBES—%£AX$54% A131,000,000
B2 EREARBIETENAIEE - Z
LERAREGE W REM T2 2 HAb
SEEBTGFEEATHEEE  HESKBERE
CERE NELEERRRE ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B 3 #% 2 il $} &

Basis for disclaimer of opinion (Continued) FRRERZER(Z)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (Continued) FRFERECSEIRERZ(E)

The directors of the Company have been undertaking plans BEARERCRINGEREENSEESEDN

and measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial RBE S RYBMR - BEFBENRGEEY

position, details of which are set out in note 2.1 to the &M aE2.1 - RELGRE MK TEIES

consolidated financial statements. The validity of the going FEBICEBRETE B UBURAR ZF IR EN 4

concern assumptions on which the consolidated financial R MZEBEIBERZBEIEETREZ &

statements have been prepared depends on the outcome of REEE

these measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties,

including:

(a) the successful and timely implementation of the plans @ MU REEELEREEBBERR
and measures for the disposal of the outstanding loan JEW S A ST 8 R FE b

receivables and loan interest receivables;

(b) the successful and timely implementation of the plans b) ENUEREHELESHEERENT
for the disposal of the financial asset investments; gl :

(c) the continual support from the existing lenders of the ) ESERBEFRAMNFEIIE BET
Group such that they will not demand for immediate gERIAMEERBER &

repayment of the relevant borrowings; and

(d) the successful obtaining of new sources of financing as (d) ZRKINESHHRE SRR
and when needed.

Al I R 2023
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion (Continued)
Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (Continueqd)

As a result of these multiple uncertainties, their potential
interaction, and the possible cumulative effect thereof, we
were unable to form an opinion as to whether the going
concern basis of preparation is appropriate. Should the
Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Additional matter - Qualification on loan
receivables and loan interest receivables

Included in loan receivables and deposits, prepayments
and other receivables on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023 were loan
receivables from different borrowers with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,552 million, net of
loss allowance, and related loan interest receivables with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$349
million, net of loss allowance. In addition, included in other
income, gains and losses and impairment of financial
assets, net on the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 were interest
income of approximately HK$165 million and impairment
loss of approximately HK$390 million in relation to the
abovementioned loan receivables and loan interest
receivables. Furthermore, investing cash flows of interest
received of approximately HK$22 million, advance of loan
receivables of approximately HK$357 million and receipt of
loan receivables of approximately HK$75 million in relation
to the abovementioned loan receivables and loan interest
receivables were presented in the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B 3 #% 2 il $} &

Additional matter - Qualification on loan
receivables and loan interest receivables
(Continueqd)

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company has established a special
investigation committee to undertake investigation on
matters pertaining to the loan transactions, including but not
limited to, the commercial rationale of the loan transactions
and the relationship between the Group and the borrowers.
Up to the date of this report, as the aforesaid investigation
has not been completed and is still in progress, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves as to (i) the commercial rationale of the
loan transactions, the relationships between the Group and
the borrowers, and the relationships amongst the borrowers;
(i) whether the carrying amounts of the loan receivables
and loan interest receivables were properly stated as at
31 December 20283; (iii) whether the impairment loss for
these loan receivables and loan interest receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was properly assessed
and recognised based on the reasonable and supportable
information in accordance with the applicable accounting
standard and, consequently, whether the interest income
from these loan receivables was properly recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2023; and (iv) whether the
cash flows in relation to the loan transactions were properly
presented in the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might
have consequential effects on the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023 and the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023, and the related disclosures thereof in
the consolidated financial statements.

Even had there been no multiple uncertainties relating to
going concern as described in the Basis for disclaimer
of opinion section of our report which precluded us
from expressing an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, our opinion would have been qualified for the
additional matter as described above.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to
issue an auditor’s report. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. However, because
of the matters as described in the Basis for disclaimer of
opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to form
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B M #% H Ei 3 &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Report on other matters under sections 407(2)
and 407(3) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence about the loan receivables and
loan interest receivables as described in the Additional
matter — Qualification on loan receivables and loan interest
receivables section of our report above:

o we were unable to determine whether adequate
accounting records had been kept; and

o we have not obtained all the information or explanations
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are
necessary and material for the purpose of the audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chow Chi Chung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 1B & &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FET FET
Rental income s WA 5 96,958 96,884
Direct operating expenses BEELEMY (6,465) (3,542)
90,493 93,342
Dividend income from listed securities  FM &AM EUW A ) 2 136
Other income, gains and losses HEmA - W kEsE 5 258,946 467,687
Change in fair value of financial assets LAA A {EEt 2 H Bt
at fair value through profit or loss FFABRRNSREEZ
NAEZE (147,287) (166,108)
Change in fair value of derivative PTEeMIAZ A AREZE)
financial instruments - (22,280)
Impairment of financial assets, net SREERMBEFE (489,129) (251,580)
Administrative expenses THRER (165,030) (181,456)
Change in fair value of investment REYEZ ANREEH
properties (63,646) (208,156)
Finance costs B 7% & 7 (342,422) (530,034)
Share of (losses)/profits of: BT 2 (E8),%f
- associates - Bt N A (31,141) 2,050
— joint ventures - 68 (83,071) 1,130
Loss before taxation PR RIES B 6 (972,285) (795,269)
Taxation 18 10 16,009 52,611
Loss for the year FAEE (956,276) (742,658)
Loss attributable to: AR & 77 R &1 -
- Owners of the Company - RRARBEEA (947,409) (734,563)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (8,867) (8,095)
(956,276) (742,658)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZAARZERFZIEEAEN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS & RE1E (BUBLFIR)
OF THE COMPANY (in HK cents) 12
- Basic - ER (41.11) (31.87)
- Diluted - s (41.11) (31.87)

1 22 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFABEZERERERQAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R& 2 H W & &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F 1231 H I FE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EREE (956,276) (742,658)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FRAEMEEERSR
FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive loss that may BHTEFOERERE Y
be reclassified to profit or loss in HEf2mEE
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of #E GINEFREL ZIE X =58

foreign operations (49,801) (466,819)
Total other comprehensive loss that BHREF I EEERZ

may be reclassified to profit or loss in  HE 2 HEI8/A%E

subsequent periods (49,801) (466,819)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that £ Ei R A] EFHHDIEEE Y
will not be reclassified to profit or loss His 2 ks~ (E5E):
in subsequent periods:

Gain/(loss) arising on property SEME K (EE)
revaluation 7,533 (17,596)

Income tax effect FriSfi s 2 (858) 3,353
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) & EI NI EFH D AT IEZ

that will not be reclassified to 2 EMmEmEmlkE (EE)

profit or loss in subsequent periods SHER 6,675 (14,243)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREME2EEE(RBE)

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (43,126) (481,062)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FRE2EBEESE

FOR THE YEAR (999,402) (1,223,720
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: f& (L 2 E E 1B 424 -

— Owners of the Company — ARBHEA A (902,605) (1,208,947)

- Non-controlling interests — PR (96,797) (14,773)

(999,402) (1,228,720)

Al I R 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & & Bt B Ak R R

At 31 December 2023

R2023%12H31H
2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investment properties WEME 13 2,133,714 2,309,146
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 14 54,134 238,199
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 39,460 43,729
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 16 = -
Interests in associates N b 17 274,094 309,475
Interests in joint ventures BEMEER 18 1,402,837 1,506,247
Amount due from an associate FEU—REEE R EIFK 17 416,542 439,486
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUE &b 18 216,216 =
Financial assets at fair value through LA AARESTE B HEH)
profit or loss FFABTZHERMEE 19 1,640 1,640
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 4,538,637 4,847,922
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables JFE U BR 3R 21 6,362 3,934
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENREEMmE
receivables Wk 22 838,086 908,352
Amounts due from joint ventures USSR ER 18 1,664 430,437
Loan receivables FEWE R 20 1,894,369 2,246,377
Financial assets at fair value through LA AR B2 HHE
profit or loss FFABEHNEREE 19 434,677 809,429
Restricted bank balance TR HIRTTAE B 23 = 674,814
Cash and bank balances B4 RIR1TE 23 57,333 97,517
Total current assets RBEERE 3,232,491 5,170,860
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Accrued charges, rental deposits and  EtER - KRS R
other payables H At FE 5K 24 419,184 1,204,446
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERIT REABER
borrowings 25 3,485,049 1,388,974
Taxation payable FERTRRIE 107,114 107,335
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 2,187 2,045
Convertible bonds Al AR (E & 26 = 41,712
Total current liabilities BB EEE 4,013,534 2,744,512
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS Eh&(AfE) &&E (781,043) 2,426,348
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERRBER
LIABILITIES 3,757,594 7,274,270

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & & Bt B R R R

At 31 December 2023

Ro023%F 12H31H
2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
HtaF FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITREME
borrowings 256 66,3887 2,541,766
Lease liabilities HEaRE 15 43,112 45,958
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHEAR 27 161,161 192,033
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERE 271,160 2,779,757
Net assets FEE 3,486,434 4,494,513
EQUITY i RE
Equity attributable to owners of the 72 T#EHE A FE{h IR &
Company
Share capital R AN 28 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves e 29 (506,989) 395,616
3,119,792 4,022,397
Non-controlling interests FEIEpR RS 366,642 472,116
Total equity fxHEMEE 3,486,434 4,494,513
Chen Yongcun Luo Zhihai
BRkE EES
Director Director
EF o

A IR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023%F 12831 H I F/&

Attributable to owners of the Company

EREEX

AATREARE
Retained
Asset profits/ Non-
Share  revaluation  Translation (accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve reserve losses) Sub-total interests equity
EE REER/ FER
R g EifE  (ZiER) Nt Es by £ 1]
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Fiér AT & FET FET & FéT
(note 26)
(Hizs)
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1 3,626,781 252,319 449,711 902,633 5,231,344 486,889 5,718,233
Logs for the year Engs = - - (74563 (734,569 (6095 (742,658)
QOther comprenensive income for the year; EREH2ENE
Exchange differences on translation of RERNSHELZE
foreign operations REE - - (460,141) - (460,141) (6,678) (466,819)
Loss arising on property revaluation, ElENEELIER
net of tax (i) = (14,249) - - (14,209) - (14,049)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERZERRLE - (14243)  (460141) (734563  (1,208947) (14778 (1,228,720)
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R202E12A318
20231 A1A 3,626,781 238,076* (10,430 167,970 4,022,397 472,116 4,494,513
Loss for the year EREiE - - - (947,409) (947,409) (8,867) (956,276)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZEER
Exchange differences on translation of BERNERELE
foreign operations REE - - 38,129 - 38,129 (87,930) (49,801)
Gain arising on property revaluation, EfEEL R
net of tax (B#i) - 6,675 - - 6,675 - 6,675
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year FR2EkE/ (BE)e
E: - 6675 38129 (47409 (02605 (96797  (999,402)
Deregistration of a subsiciary RREM-FHEAT - - = = = (8677) (8,677)
Transfer to retained profits upon disposal of HENFREFZRAR
properties il - (57,441) - 57,441 - - -
Transfer to retained profits upon disposal of HE-BHBARLER
a subsidiary ERARA - (14667T1) - 146,671 - - -
At 31 December 2023 7 20238127318 3,626,781 40,639* 21,699* (575,327)* 3,119,792 366,642 3,486,434
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated deficit of * ZERBEREREEEG VB RAKRF B
HK$506,989,000 (2022: reserves of HK$395,616,000) in the = ff*\'{d506,989,000/§ J0(20224F : &% 18

consolidated statement of financial position.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS %R & B &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B X

B E2023%F 12731 HILFE
2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$°'000
Hat FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K®E¥KE4LCHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BRE AT E B (972,285) (795,269)
Adjustments for: JHEE
Share of results of associates BB E A RIER 31,141 (2,050
Share of results of joint ventures BhEEEXEE 83,071 (1,130)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - REREETE
equipment 14 12,270 13,527
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 15 3,662 3,824
Impairment loss on other intangible HEtp i EERESE
assets 16 = 2,814
Finance costs MBER 342,422 530,034
Dividend income from listed securities &R S U A 5) 2) (136)
Interest income B A (203,259) (455,424)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HE &L BE
plant and equipment 2 CaR),/ EiEEaE 5 (13) 59
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR 2 W 5 (36,957) -
Net loss on disposal of investment HEREME Y BB
properties ) 10,500 -
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEZEE
properties 13 63,646 208,156
Change in fair value of financial assets AR EFTEAHEH
at fair value through profit or loss FTABEHNEREEY
NAEEH 6 147,287 166,108
Change in fair value of derivative PTESMTIAZARE
financial instruments - 6 - 22,280
Impairment of financial assets, net TREEREFE 6 489,129 251,580
Write-off of loan and other receivables & Y & 7 Kz E 4t & I F0 A
and an amount due from an K FEU — KBt & R )RR
associate 2 g 6 - 7,835
(29,388) (47,792)
Decrease in financial assets at fair value A2 EzHE B H# &)t A
through profit or loss BRremEERD 218,664 67,701
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables JEUWBRZX(1EHN), B4 (2,428) 443
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, Be B E bR BGR
prepayments and other receivables (3%E4n) A (185,567) 25,562
(Decrease)/increase in accrued charges, fEzt & - B S R HM
rental deposits and other payables FERTFR R ),/ 10 (114,284) 100,157

Annual Report 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &6 HE R E R

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
2022
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
i3 FET FET
Cash (used in)/generated from B (FRA) 82
operations H& (113,003) 146,071
Dividend received BB 2 136
Interest paid BFIE (338,662) (655,783)
Tax paid BT R (203) (2,162)
Net cash flows used in operating KEEBIAFRERE
activities (451,866) (511,738)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBHERERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BB 291,831 157,587
Purchase of items of property, plant BAME  WENMKRE
and equipment (112) (346)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEMREZFT
plant and equipment B3IE 275 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREWEZ FrE5IAE
properties 70,000 -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEHBEAT 30 200,114 _
Advance of loan receivables 237 EKE R (357,199) (1,386,864)
Receipt of loan receivables I B FE I E 3R 373,068 1,087,346
Repayment from joint ventures BEMEZENR 211,236 1,263,405
Capital injection to a joint venture A—REELETE - (68,589)
Decrease in pledged deposits BEBF IR = 24,450
Net cash flows from investing activities REEBAEZ FRERE 789,213 1,076,989

1 28 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFABEZERERERQAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS R B EFRE R

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B 220235 1231 HIFFZ
2022
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
(i3 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEXBFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Other loans raised HEMERRHE 90,050 578,611
Repayment of other loans BEEEMER (375,229) (159,419)
New bank loans FERITEN 11,038 100,336
Repayment of bank loans ERERITER (50,773) (24,636)
Principal portion of lease payments MENRZASED (1,918) (2,920)
Settlement of convertible bonds EEAIRRES (41,712) (1,108,288)
Net cash flows used in financing BB EMATR 2%
activities Hene (368,544) (616,316)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERASEERDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (31,197) (51,0865)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENRSFBEFVIEE
beginning of year 97,517 116,755
Effect of foreign exchange rate G R ) 2 A
changes, net FE (8,987) 31,827
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BERREZEEFREE
END OF YEAR 57,333 97,517
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF BREeRBREZEEHIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTH R 23 57,333 97,517

A IR 2023
Bl <P
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

1. Corporate and Group Information

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
(the “Company”) is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are located at Suite 4901,
49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in property
leasing and investments.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

REAREEER

REBRBRIEREESGRAR(ARAR])
BE—RREBZMRILNRIRERA
A ERODNREAEBERSAERAA
(TB3ZFT)) £ o AR REMMHEE K
FTEEEMB MU BB ST ALE
1SR e R ES A KIEIELI01E -

ARBB/—FEREERRR]  REWE
REMBHEE - ARAIREKBE QR
(BRI AKEDEIERENEHEER
BREXRK -

MEQEER

ARFNEZMBRBFBOT :

as follows:
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of issued and Equity interest attributable to
Company name registration and operations  paid-up/ registered capital the Company Principal activities
RS i/ BRREEHEE BRARME/ARRAEE KDAEERAER TEER
Direct Indirect
BE B
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% — Property holding and
investment
RMEARAR 3 28T RENERRE

Noda International Investment (Guangzhou) Co.,  The People’s Republic of China  RMBA400,000,000

Limited*®" (the “PRC")/
Chinese Mainland
HEERRE(RM) BRAF® PEARAME(RE])/  ARH400,000000T
hEN
Hongda International Investment (Guangzhou) Co., - PRG/Chingse Mainland RMB500,000,000
Limited?®"
LEERRE(RNARAT® E /B NRE500,000,0007

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023%F 12831 H I F/&

1.

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Nominal value of issued and

NAREEER(E)

MEARER ()

ARTNEEHBAARBMT : (4)

Equity interest attributable to

Company name registration and operations  paid-up/ registered capital the Company Principal activities
kS i/ BRREEH L BRARME/ARRAEE ADREERAES TEER
Direct Indirect
BE B
Silver Grant International Investment Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% — Investment holding
Management Limited
RRERREEEARAA 3 1,000/87C RERR
Bejing Runda International Investment PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 — 100%  Investment
Management Limited*"
FREERRREERERATY E /B ARE100,000,0007% &
Silver Grant International Investment (Guangzhou)  PRG/Chinese Mainland RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Co., Limited "
BRERRE (RN ARAT™ E /AR NB200,000,0007 RERR
Guangzhou Runsui No.2 Investment Partnership - PRC/Chingse Mainland N/A - 87.25% Corporate management
(Limited Partnrship]™ service
ENER-SRERELR(ARAR)" e/ HE M ¥k PEEERK
Silver Grant International Holding (Guangzhou) Co.,  PRG/Chingse Mainland RMB500,000,000 — 100%  Investment
Limited
BRERER(EM ARAT" E /B AR$500,000,0007% &
Guangzhou Runfu No.9 Investment Partnership ~ PRG/Chinese Mainland NA - 100%  Non- performing asset
(Limited Partnership) investment
ENERNSRACEAR (BRAR)" B/ E M TR TREERE
Beihal Mao Yuan Investment Co., Limited * PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 - 100% Investment
FERRRERRAT e/ E M AR$50,000,0007C RE
Yinjian Energy Trading (Guangzhou) Co., Limited®"  PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB500,000,000 - 100% Trading
FRVRES BN ERAT" e/ E M AR$500,000,00072 8%

Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

1.

Nominal value of issued and

NAREEER(E)
MEARER ()

RAFHNEEMBARFBWT : (&)

Equity interest attributable to

Company name registration and operations  paid-up/ registered capital the Company Principal activities
kS i/ BRREEH L BEARAR/SRRAEE ADREERAES TEER
Direct Indirect
BE B
Taizhou Yinjian Energy Investment Co., Limited  PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Environmental conservation
and renewable
energy investment

FNEEVERABRAR e/ E R ARH100,000,0007 RRRERELHERE
Tai Zhou Dong Thai Petrochemical PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB,664,089,268 = 68.07%  Investment holding and

Company Limited® investment
FNRERILERAR e/ E M NRH1,664,089,2687 BERRRRE
Konson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 70%  Investment holding
AERERRAT (3 100%71 REER
East Gate (Beiing) Property PRC/Chinese Mainland US$100,413,500 - 100% Property development and

Management Co., Ltd (‘Beijing East Gate)"®" investment
FROIRNEERARAA(RRR])®  hE/HEh 100,413 500%TC NELRRRE
& Registered as domestic limited liability companies under BREFEZEIMAEANEGREER

the PRC law. A °
® Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the BEPEERAMAINEZEEE R
PRC law. Al e

" The English names of these companies represent the AR ARTMERE FEXEN - %

best effort made by management of the Company to
directly translate their Chinese names as they did not
register any official English names.

* Registered as limited partnership company under the
PRC law.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E20234 12831 AL FE
1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

21

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the reporting year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Basis of Presentation

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$57 million and the
Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,485 million are due to be repaid within 12
months from the end of the reporting period, including (i)
borrowing of approximately HK$195 million which has
not been repaid according to the scheduled repayment
date before the end of the reporting period; and (ii)
borrowings of approximately HK$3,007 million with
original maturity dates of over one year from the end
of the reporting period which have been reclassified
to current liabilities due to the delay in the payment
of interest of certain borrowings before the end of the
reporting period and which have been repaid after
year end. Furthermore, subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, another borrowing of the Group with
a principal amount of approximately HK$131 million
has not been repaid according to the scheduled
repayment date. As at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has been
actively negotiating with the lenders for extension of the
repayment date of certain of the aforesaid borrowings.
Up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has not received any
demand for immediate repayment of these and other
borrowings.

21

NRAREEER(EF)
MEARER(E)

ERENEERREIZFEREELR
EEEXEIBRAKEFEEE R
DEARRBIMBRA - EFERE - EHt
HAi M B AR MFHITEERE BN
£ o

2HEE

R2023F12831H - AEBZRHE K
85 17 45 #2 49 557,000,000/ 7T+ M AN
& B8R H 48 {8 4 &3,485,000,000/% 7T
ZETBRITEEMEREBREHRK
BEZEAAEE - BFEOAHRSEH
RETHMARIZBEATERBREE 2 E
X #7195,000,000/% 7T (iR € 2
HMAAERESHR—FULEZBRD
3,007,000,0007% 7T ( B 1A ) & B R &
B ETFERZHNE(EREREE
BIEEHOBRERDERE) o I R
WEKRE  AEBEEZ—EX28AA
131,000,000/ JT 2 f& 5 H R IZ BB TETE
EREHEE -  NLEZERETHR
RAH AEBEREREMBETERZ
EFHHBGERERAETER - HE
HEZSLREVHBHRERAE - NEE N
RUKEETEBN R ERZE R EMER
ZEK o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

134

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

In view of the above circumstances, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to
the Group’s future liquidity requirements, operating
performance and available sources of financing in
assessing the Group’s ability to continue operating as
a going concern. The following plans and measures are
formulated to manage the working capital and improve
the financial position of the Group:

()  the Group will continue to implement measures for
the disposal of the outstanding loan receivables
and loan interest receivables;

(i)  the Group will continue to take measures to
expedite the disposal of the financial asset
investments, including equity investments and
non-performing assets portfolio;

(i)  the Group will continue its negotiations with the
lenders of certain bank and other borrowings or
other financial institutions on the refinancing of
the borrowings; and

(iv) the Group will obtain additional credit facilities
from existing and other lenders as and when
needed.

The directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management, which cover a period of not less than
12 months from 31 December 2023. They are of the
opinion that, taking into account the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within
12 months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

=

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued) 21 2HEEE)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Group is able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above. Whether the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern
would depend on (i) the successful and timely
implementation of the plans and measures for the
disposal of outstanding loan receivables and loan
interest receivables; (ii) the successful and timely
implementation of the plans for the disposal of financial
asset investments; (iii) the continual support from
the existing lenders of the Group such that they will
not demand for immediate repayment of the relevant
borrowings; and (iv) the successful obtaining of new
sources of financing as and when needed.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-
mentioned plans and measures and operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

BE LN AEEESER L
E NRERINFEERTHENE - AEE
BE DR BURNN) & R EE B
EFR M EWE R SO RERES
RN REER : ((HESHEERE
FHEIRE DRI MR B ¢ (i) ANEEIR
BERANFEXE AT ERYT
BMEEMBE R R(v®EEHKRINE
BHHBERR

AR ERREEIR L5t 8 R e B &
ERERLE  ARETHABRUABAEE
BEMNRHEMRZTWEISEE « 30
BEELMEME - FTREIERE - X
K SERBEERIERBBED HIEH
DERRBEERRDAEE - ZAFHE
ME BT ERRNZFEE P BHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
2.2 Basis of Preparation 2.2 FEBEE

136

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings under property, plant and
equipment, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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EMBHRRREELRANELERE -
BB - ZFEPBHRERABTZE
5 BEFfA SRR EEREBOTAE
(FExT) -

REAREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.2

mBEEXE(E)
REANREE(E)

—RmE - FE—ERE  DAZER
SRVBIEHIRE - MARBRKREHR
BRENEZEIBLUENTERZH
AAREERFHEREHAAHRELUR
MENREEE—URBEERIER -
B

@ HEEHRNEMEREEFSAA
B HTHE

(b) EMEHTHMEENER &

) AKENRRENE

BRE -

B /88 2 ) B A % A B B 75 3R K O R 5 1
MR AERA B SETRRRE - K
BRAMEERAKEESITHEE R
EEREAR  EEEMEEFEKLLER
1k o

BEkEMEE KSR EEKED R
BRAEESRRIES A RIEERE
& B SR S BT S B IRE
MR - MAESEARRRNEERE
& s WA A REREENXE
AAERZHBENRSREDNEGEE A
ARBS AR B8 o

HEERBERER L =AEHEEE
BHAAERGINENREHR - W E

REENENNBARZEERERE
BEURRRXHARK -

Annual Report 2023
T —FFR

137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.2

2.3

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a
Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —

Pillar Two Model Rules

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

23 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described
below:

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide
non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The
Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amendments did not have any impact
on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any
items in the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since
the Group’s approach and policy align with the
amendments, the amendments had no impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

2.3
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and 23 EFBRREEZ28(E)

140

Disclosures (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception in
HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions.

The adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 did not have
any impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022
and 1 January 2022.

The adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 did not
have any impact on the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
other comprehensive income and the consolidated
statements of cash flows for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

FEGEUFI2REFT AL FE X
SEHEERREMELZHERNER
SRFERFEA1 25 A H RIERPISME B
#E FETBEAREELERNER
BMEAIREREZENR S - HE
FMREREME - Bt - BERAREAZER
FEENEREZRRABECHRAEE
(RIIZ =B R ARG M) KRLETH IR
BE-

ERABBRSTENFI2RETAY
2023412 A31H - 2022F12A318 &
202241 A1 H W& B AR R BT E
FRFE -

KM BERBSFERF125ET AEEE
2023%F &2022%F 12 A31H IE FE 4R
GBiER% AR EBERSEAENG
BREAREEEE Ht2EWER
RERERERTBEEMNTE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

23 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 /nternational Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development. The amendments also introduce
disclosure requirements for the affected entities to help
users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known
or reasonably estimable information of their exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the
legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not
yet in effect. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively. Since the Group did not fall within the
scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments
did not have any impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements. The Group
intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if applicable,
when they become effective.

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of

HKFRS 10 and Assets between an

24 EHEMEEMARERZERUBRE

AEBEABRZEMHRREMRTIIE
EAE R E R RIERT B BRI RE
EH| - AEEBRNZFRERTBEMH
HEER(HER) R HFTEA -

HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture®
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)" 4

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)t 4

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance

and HKFRS 7 Arrangements’

Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability?

HKAS 21

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025
9 No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

& As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 2.4 Eﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ HARERZEBMBRE

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use
it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEERERZERBUBRS

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
The 2022 Amendments further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or
before the reporting date affect the classification of that
liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures
are required for non-current liabilities that are subject
to the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with early application
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

R 12 B R

BREBARRQA

(&)

2020F BRI AN B BEH BB BEARE
FIERBHRE  BEEESERENS
% URIEEBERNAERE ARG
fo- AENDBEISTERITHEHLTERES
BEOATEENTE  ZFEITTE

B ABTREAIMNERTAEE
IREZAERAERNEIREEREAL
BERER T EARE  BENIERS
$A%%E%@ 2022F (B F] A —
B EERTHREENEERD
2 REE%"*E’\#&:‘EEH}%&ZEI W/BE
THRNA e BB BARDNIE
B - HREENBRSHRI2ZEAR
WBEBTFTRRZAKIERBAE - At
TRBIMERE - ZEBEI BB PER
WAHTREER - hiﬂﬁﬁmozoif
RN E 8BS 4B [R B FE FI2022F (55
$'&Zﬁ%o$EleEE%ﬁﬁ
LEITANFEURBEEERDHELT
BHEE] o IRBY LT - HHZEE
FIATEH RSB MR E LT
BATE -

—Er\



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B R2023%F 12531 HIFFE
2.4 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong 24 EEMEENKRERZEBUBERS

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of
the amendments is permitted. The amendments
provide certain transition reliefs regarding comparative
information, quantitative information as at the beginning
of the annual reporting period and interim disclosures.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity
shall assess whether a currency is exchangeable
into another currency and how it shall estimate a
spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of a
currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 EXEBEE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies

146

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of a joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associates or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates and joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

148

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

EBEHREE

EB A TIAKIBEARR - EEAETD
AWIE B I R B E  ZRARER
AEEFEREERNKRBRERZAR
B AEEBWBHRZBIER AEE
MWEEMAREMEENRE  AKE
BUYBHR ZAHEA AFTAENREN
R AN EEBT AR B S RIE S
PRAKE R 2 BB - MEXRBEAHFF - &
SEEZRTARERWEL R A &
BFBEEMEMGELY  AERKBHR
M IFIE R R o JRIT R 2 — I H At
HERED TR ASEE - WEREK
ARELRFIABFHEX

ERWEN—RIES R EERRE R
BRAR—BEEMHRF  MEZFRAK
RFARREEELNENELERE
B AEEREEECKE—BER -

HAREYE—BES - MERESH
R~ RUREE B A A BRI AR R R
HRHEFAENEREERAE - JAME
HEEDBRIEE  EPEERSKE
HREGHTHBRANTETA -

HEB A G DB BT - KRB R
BIZWEBMORAEEHE - M
b E A B AE o] Y 25 3K U8 1B 0 48 A O

7 ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings under property, plant and
equipment, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 12531 HIFF/Z
2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)
Fair value measurement (Continued) AREFTE(E)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 ERGHBEEK(E)

152

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for non-financial asset is
required (other than inventories, investment properties
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash- generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)
Related parties (Continued) BEAL(E)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (o) FZFBTE TIEEE s EES:

conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBEASHBR—%E
same group; o) g=W/N=

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of i) —HEBAS EB(XS
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or —EENSRTE - [BARR]
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); SFARMB AR )EBE D

A AEERE

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures (i) ZEBRAEEHAR—F
of the same third party; —HREEDRE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —EEBRE=FEBNE
and the other entity is an associate of the BEhE ME—EBAEZF
third entity; =HERBNEEAT

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZERABBEENE -
for the benefit of employees of either the FZrralMXZm A B SR
Group or an entity related to the Group; HEAREEHENERES

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (vi) ZEBEH@BATMATZES
a person identified in (a); SR EE )

(viij) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) P@@)ERTIA T HZE B
influence over the entity or is a member of BEARFESIBEZEB(K
the key management personnel of the entity ZE %E’J!’A AEEER
(or of a parent of the entity); and ABHKE :

(viiy the entity, or any member of a group of (Vi) ZEEKBZEREEH—IF
which it is a part, provides key management DREBETERKE R R
personnel services to the Group or to the BAREENREEE AT
parent of the Group. RIEFTEEEABRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

25 EXSBERE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Leasehold land and
buildings term, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 3 years

50 years or over the lease

Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the right-of-use assets) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the period of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

2.5 EXEBEE)

REM=E

REMFRAESHEHS WA R, FEH
BEAXRFHERBNMITA Z Lt RIETHE
m(BEREREEE) - RSMENIE
RA(BRERZKRA)GE » R HER
% REMEZDAEINR - AR
HERRZTHARMR ©

BREME RN ERBREL 2 BB A
PE A IR 2 185 -

TRRE K th E R B W K 2 AL A B RS R R
HHEHRE 2 BEPRER

BILEE (BER)

BERWEO BT EER V6 HEREIZK
KETE - EXHAHPARENETLE
ENRARRKEE BNRRE - EY
BEMAERAENS RARYMNER
0o BRMNERLEERAEREESF
HREHE INENRBREVEE
AR IRBERFHERE - BRAER
FHNELEENEHNEHEDAE
PREBEMBRFERER IR

Annual Report 2023
T —FFR

157



158

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the lease term

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group’s policy for “investment properties”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

®)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

When the right-of-use assets are related to
property, plant and equipment measured at
revalued amount, the right-of-use assets are
included in property, plant and equipment and
measured at revalued amount in accordance
with the Group’s policy for “property, plant and
equipment”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

()

()

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of office premises (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each

of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance

lease.
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2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, are accounted for as finance leases.
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,

as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair
value through profit or loss.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

164

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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25 EXSBERE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised in profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established.
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2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with
the same terms as the embedded derivative would
meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of the consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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25 EXREREERGE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables,
borrowings, convertible bonds and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings and senior notes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts
at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of
financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.
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2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. If the conversion option of convertible bonds
exhibits characteristics of an embedded derivative,
it is separated from its liability component. On initial
recognition, the derivative component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised
as the derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds
to the liability and derivative components when the
instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion
relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The derivative financial
instruments are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity
of generally within three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined
above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)

Income tax (Continued)

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when or as control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

180

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income (Continued)

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions cannot be used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continueqd)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension scheme (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Chinese Mainland are required to participate
in a central pension scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the Pension
Scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the Pension Scheme is to pay the ongoing
contributions under the Pension Scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 12531 HIFF/Z
2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued) 25 BEARGHEE(E)
Foreign currencies (Continued) SNEE(E)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures are
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve,
except to the extent that the differences are attributable
to non- controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

2.5 EXEBEE)

2.5 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E20234 12831 AL FE
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)

Property lease classification — the Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating
leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could
be sold separately or leased out separately under a
finance lease, the Group accounts for these portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are
so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
of HK$2,133,714,000 (2022: HK$2,309,146,000),
representing properties for residential or commercial
use, are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of these
investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to these
investment properties has been measured based on the
tax consequences of recovering the carrying amounts
entirely through use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E20234 12831 AL FE
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECL for amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures, loan receivables and
loan interest receivables

The Group individually calculates ECLs for its
amounts due from an associate and joint ventures,
loan receivables and loan interest receivables. The
measurement of ECL under HKFRS 9 for the Group’s
amounts due from an associate and joint ventures,
loan receivables and loan interest receivables
requires judgement on, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of
any significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, where the change of
the factors which result in different levels of allowances,
a lower/higher impairment loss may arise. The Group
uses its credit loss experience, repayment history and
financial position of the Group’s associate and joint
ventures, debtors and their guarantors (if any) and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions to estimate the probability of
default, the loss given default and the impact on the
forward-looking information. At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable, supportable and available information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also forward-looking analysis.

3.

BEREHE R A (E)

fhat TREEM (&)
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B RERENFRZ AN EEE R
]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECL for amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures, loan receivables and
loan interest receivables (Continued)

In relation to the valuation of amounts due from an
associate and joint ventures, in addition to the above,
the management has exercised judgement in estimating
the timing and future cash flows to be recovered with
reference to the timing of the collection of receivable
from the associate and joint ventures, in order to
determine the recoverability of the amounts due from

the associate and joint ventures.

The carrying amounts and the accumulated ECLs of
amounts due from an associate and joint ventures, loan
receivables and loan interest receivables are as follows:

3.

CREE R

BEREHE R A (E)

fhat TREEM (&)

Y —BELAAREELF - EK
EXREREHNFBZRAEEEER
(&)

BRARK—FBERR LA ERERD
B8 - B Lo - BIRES IR s
REARAECEREROER  TEE
FXAEFER SR RE RS
A MR ERKE 2 AR REERE
FREY AT UL O] {4

R —FREE AR RAELSRER - B
BER Kk EWERAEREmMENRTTE
HEEEEIT ¢

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amounts BREE

Amount due from an associate FEUN — KB N AR 416,542 439,486
Amounts due from joint ventures BN G & ER 217,880 430,437
Loan receivables e E R 1,894,369 2,246,377
Loan interest receivables JE U B A8 467,902 465,806
2,996,693 3,582,106

Accumulated ECLs ZEHEERRE
Amount due from an associate FEU — KBt & AT 99,200 83,613
Amounts due from joint ventures EWE S DNER 4,433 9,577
Loan receivables FEWE SR 457,913 149,322
Loan interest receivables JEWE A B 118,996 32,517
680,542 275,029

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 12531 HIFF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and leasehold land and buildings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
under property, plant and equipment are stated at fair
value of HK$2,133,714,000 (2022: HK$2,309,146,000)
and HK$36,959,000 (2022: HK$214,640,000),
respectively, based on the valuation performed
by independent qualified professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on
investment approach or direct comparison approach,
which involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
capitalisation rate, market rent, term yields, reversion
yields and comparable market transactions. In relying
on the valuation, management has exercised judgement
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for
fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, for
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings,
are disclosed in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

3.

BEREHE R A (E)

fhat TREEM (&)

REYEUREEL WRIEFHAAE
14t

RAFREHR ERBUSEREE
HEMOTE  AEBEREMEUR
ME BMEREZEETHHEE i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

When the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, the fair value is determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include
the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation
is required in establishing fair values. The estimates
include considerations of certain unobservable inputs
as detailed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
level where the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are disclosed in the fair value hierarchy.
Significant management judgements and estimates
are required in determining the valuation of financial
instruments which are categorised as Level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy. As at 31 December 2023, the amount
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
was HK$436,317,000 (2022: HK$811,069,000). Further
details are disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 12531 HIFF/Z
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of investment in joint
ventures

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for investment in joint ventures at the
end of each reporting period. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of the investment in the joint
venture exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of recoverable amount
requires significant judgements by management, in
particular, on key internal inputs and external market
conditions which impact future cash flows, discount
rates and long-term growth rate. If future events do
not correspond to the assumptions, the recoverable
amount will need to be revised, and this may have
impact on the Group’s operating performance or
financial position. Further details are given in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has the
following reporting segments:

(@) the property leasing segment representing holding
of properties for rental income potential and/or for
capital appreciation; and

(b) the investments segment representing the
investments in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loan receivables.

3.

BEREHE R A (E)

fhat TREEM (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax
except that non-lease-related finance costs, share of
results of associates and joint ventures and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

No segment assets or liabilities are presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly
review segment assets and liabilities.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

4,

REsBER(E)

EEEBEMNERASELEDEES -
ABERERD AR RFERR - o
ERIVIZ A 2], R BB
BNGHELRABBRBANERN,BE - K56
ERBAEN, B8 it B EASERG
BAER,EEER -2 A E
TEEFEERBNMIEER - B
ERARBEEREEARDERAS -

MR ERLERRE L RERNRH D
BENABE BAEZINOMEERE

%o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt % 3R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4, REHTER(E)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12A31B L EE
Property
Investments leasing Total
BE MERE Foy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Revenue Wz
— Rental income — el A - 96,958 96,958
— Dividend income from listed — EMEHFBRBKA
securities 0 - 2
2 96,958 96,960
Segment loss HEER (399,166) (20,006) (419,172)
Other unallocated income, gains  EftRDEUA -
and losses W R EE 28,436
Corporate expenses ERY (128,675)
Finance costs (other than interest BIHER(FHEREBZ
on lease liabilities) M BB (338,662)
Share of losses of: BT 2 &8
— associates — BEARE (31,141)
— joint ventures — AEDE (83,071)
Loss before taxation BB RIE R (972,285)
Taxation iR 16,009
Loss for the year FREE (956,276)

Ann;a%Rg;a;r;Zé%? 1 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt ¥ R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

4.

Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023 (Continued)

Investments

k&

HK$’000
FET

4,

REsBER(E)

B E2023F128318 L FE(E)

Property
leasing
WEHRE
HK$’000
FET

Unallocated
AOE
HK$°000
FET

Total
@t
HK$°000
FET

Other segment information:

Depreciation

Change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest income from a joint
venture

Interest income from loan
receivables

Impairment of financial assets,
net

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Net gain on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

Capital expenditure

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Share of losses of associates

Share of losses of joint
ventures

KE-RA%
EENFIE
LN

FERE AN E
LON

TREERNE
A8

REMEZ
AREEY

HENE - BE
Rz s
e

BARX

BERAER

RELRES

BB AR
BE

BiERELRm
B

(147,287)

4,787

197,907

(489,129)

(763)

(63,646)

(15,169)

13

112
274,094
1,402,837

(31,141)

(83,071)

(15,932)

(147,287)

4,787
197,907
(489,129)
(63,646)
13

112
274,094
1,402,837

(31,141)

(83,071)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 12531 HIFF/Z
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4. REFTER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022FE12A31BILEE

Property
Investments leasing Total
BE MERE B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET & FET
Revenue Wz
— Rental income — HekA - 96,884 96,884
— Dividend income from listed — EMREHFBRBRA
securities 136 — 136
136 96,884 97,020
Segment loss DEbEE (18,073) (153,952) (167,025)
Other unallocated income, gains  EfbRDE A -
and losses W REE 18,383
Corporate expenses TERE (123,874)
Finance costs (other than interest BI7E &R (FREAE
on lease liabilities) 2R BBRIN) (525,933)
Share of profits of: BT 280
— associates . VNG 2,050
— joint ventures — AR 1,130
Loss before taxation PR A B 18 (795,269)
Taxation THIE 52,611
Loss for the year FREE (742,658)

A IR 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

4.

Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

4,

REsBER(E)

HE2022F12A31B It FE (&)

Property
Investments leasing Unallocated Total
RE MERE RO Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
Other segment information: B 7 55E# -
Depreciation e = (814) (16,537) (17,351)
Change in fair value of NAAEFER
financial assets at fair value HEB) A
through profit or loss Bafea
BEZAR
g (166,108) - - (166,108)
Interest income from a joint ~ KE—XA%
venture ERF S
L/ON 44,666 - - 44,666
Interest income from loan FERE T FIE
receivables WA 410,508 - - 410,508
Write-off of loan and other ~ EWEZ % E fthfE
receivables and an amount WA &
due from an associate El—REE
INGIE 6 (7,835) = = (7,835)
Impairment of financial assets, € &ZER(E
net S (251,580) - — (251,580)
Change in fair value of RENEZRAE
investment properties & - (208,156) - (208,156)
Change in fair value of ITESMIAY
derivative financial AREEEH
instruments (22,280) = = (22,280)
Net loss on disposal of HENE - BEK
property, plant and RENER
equipment FH = = (59) (59)
Impairment loss on other Hit |\ &g
intangible assets wEBR = = (2,814) (2,814)
Capital expenditure BT - = 346 346
Interests in associates BanmEs = = 309,475 309,475
Interests in joint ventures AELEER = = 1,506,247 1,506,247
Share of profits of associates 5B A T
S - - 2,050 2,050
Share of profits of joint BHRE RN
ventures gl - - 1,130 1,130

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4.

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers

ReEqWER(E)
it 13 25 )

K E I EBEF B W

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Hong Kong Foy 2 136
PRC h 96,958 96,884
Total revenue Rl s 96,960 97,020

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

A BB ER TERE P ERN M E o

HRBEE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong &5 803 256,508
PRC Hh 3,903,436 4,150,288
Total non-current assets EMBNE ERRE 3,904,239 4,406,796

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, amount due
from an associate and amounts due from joint ventures.

Information about major customers
During the current and prior years, no revenue from a

single external customer amounted to 10% or more of
the Group’s total revenue.

AEIERBEEERTIEREEMEDN
E - NEREUAEREBEZEE
ABRENEREE  BR-RBLQA
AR B A EDER -

FEEFHNEHR
RAFEIGBEFE - KA E[EIMEE

PR AB T BB AN E B AR AHI10%
AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

5.

Revenue, Other Income, Gains and Losses 5. Wi HMKWA - W REE

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

WEE AT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Revenue from other sources B TR Y 7>
Gross rental income MRS WA 96,958 96,884
Dividend income from listed securities &% 8ULA 2 136
Total revenue AUk s 96,960 97,020

An analysis of other income, gains and losses is as

HWA - W REEITT

follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Interest income on: FEHA -
— amount due from a joint venture — B —REEDTENR 4,787 44,666
— bank deposits — RITHER 565 250
— loan receivables — Bl ER 197,907 410,508
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) B m A, (BE)FHE 37 (1,551)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREREZ
plant and equipment wmA (B )R8 13 (59)
Net loss on disposal of investment HEREME Y BB FE
properties (10,500) -
Impairment loss on other intangible HEMEREE 2 BERIE
assets = (2,814)
Government grants* T 8 A = 7
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B ARz W
(note 30) (K17£30) 36,957 —
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HELARAREEHEE B A
fair value through profit or loss BRiemEE 2 W 1,360 1,860
Others Hib 27,820 14,820
Total other income, gains and losses  HAblUR A - Wizs R BEBEE 258,946 467,687

The amount represented grants received from relevant

government authorities in Chinese Mainland for the

Group’s operation of property leasing business. There

are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these grants.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
6. Loss Before Taxation 6. KBiAER
The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after ANEBKRBAIEER ISR, (GEA)T
charging/(crediting): HIFIE -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A B & 7,200 7,200
Change in fair value of financial assets AR EFTEBHEB) T AEBR
at fair value through profit or loss MNeMEEZ A ANEE 147,287 166,108
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB REETE
equipment 12,270 13,527
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 3,662 3,824

Employee benefit expenses including EERBMBE X (BFEEE RME

directors’ and co-chief executive TIREEME) (H:78):
officers’ remuneration (note 8):
Wages and salaries* TENHS 60,133 64,354
Pension scheme contributions RN ET BB
(defined contribution scheme)** (EEEERETE)™ 2,681 2,579
62,814 66,933
Rental income under operating leases REVHEKLHAEZASRA -
for investment properties, less Xz $56,465,00078 7T
outgoings of HK$6,465,000 (20224 : 3,542,000/ L)
(2022: HK$3,542,000) (90,493) (93,342)
Impairment loss on other intangible HAb & E 2 BiEEE
assets*** = 2,814
Write-off of loan and other receivables i I & 3% & E i Ur ik DA K JE Uk
and an amount due from an — KB & A A2 M
associate - 7,835
Impairment of financial assets, net TRIEEREFHE 489,129 251,580
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ ARBEEE
properties 63,646 208,156
Change in fair value of derivative PTEEBMI A AREZS
financial instruments - 22,280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt ¥ R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

6. Loss Before Taxation (Continued)

*k

During the year ended 31 December 2022, wage
subsidies of HK$240,000 was granted to the Group
from the Employment Support Scheme under the
Anti-Epidemic Fund in Hong Kong. The amount was
recognised in administrative expenses and set-off
against the amount of wages and salaries. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this
grant.

There were no forfeited contributions that may be used
by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

The impairment loss on other intangible assets is
included in “Other income, gains and losses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

7. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BRELAT IR (42

>k

HE2022F12A31B L EE A&
EESEHENEES TR ET
£ 3 7 T & 45 B5240,000/8 T © 8% 3K
BEETHERFTER WEHIE
k¥ BEMEE - WERHS &R
ERMO IR AEE -

AN ER B A A 2 30 A 50 DR WA FRUA
FARIR A HBOKF -

HthBVEEZ REBRE AL
BEmAANEMEA - Yo RE
']

BB A

MBEROFOT -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Interest on bank loans IRITERAE 14,897 14,808
Interest on other loans EMERFE 323,765 370,725
Interest on convertible bonds AR E S & - 140,400
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 3,760 4,101
Total st 342,422 530,034

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

8.

Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’ 8.

Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Company’s directors and

the co-chief executive officers for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows.

EERBETHRARMSE

AER - RIELEDRA - FERRERA
£383(1)(a) * (b) (o) B (f)f&RIA KA R (48
BEEMNDER)ROIF280HEE - X
TR BVE S KB 71T AR H #r B a0
T

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Fees we 3,800 3,617

Other emoluments: HipEs -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in e R REYER

kind 9,127 9,481

Discretionary bonuses B IFIEAL 1,559 921

Pension scheme contributions BRIREEHEIE R 116 91

Subtotal /NEt 10,802 10,493

Total fees and other emoluments weBmEkEaie 14,602 14,110
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt ¥ R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023%F 12831 H I F/&

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’

Remuneration (Continued)

(a)

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to the Company’s independent

EERBETRARME(E)

(a)

BYFHITES

FAXNTARRABRBILIFNTE

non-executive directors during the year were as FE2HEWT
follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°’000
FET FEIT
Liang Qing 2E 400 400
Zhang Lu SR I3 400 400
Hung Muk Ming AR ER 300 300
1,100 1,100

There were no other emoluments payable to the

Company’s independent non-executive directors
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:

Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt % 3R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’ 8. EERBETHARME(Z)
Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITEE FHTEEREFET
and the co-chief executive officers AR

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

A BiRE
e RENEN BisTEA AR FraE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FE FET FE
2023 2023
Executive directors: HAEE:
Chu Hing Tsung KEM(Wiita)
(note a) 600 - - - 600
Chen Yongcun BAXTE (M ito)
(note b) 400 4,378 685 18 5,481
Luo Zhihai BEH 600 2,688 403 18 3,709
Tang Lunfei Efs 400 - - - 400
Wang Ping (note ¢) TR (Hztc) 98 822 47 - 1,391
Weng Jian (note d SR(Md) 202 1,239 - 80 1,521
2,300 9,127 1,559 116 13,102
Non-executive director: JEH{TES
Chen Zhiwei B 400 - - - 400

2,700 9,127 1,559 116 13,502
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’ 8. EERHMETHARME(Z)
Remuneration (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITEE FHTEEREFET
and the co-chief executive officers (Continued) BEARE)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e 2H BIRE
wE  REVEF Wit AR s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET
2022 20225
Executive directors: HITES
Chu Hing Tsung REM
(note a) (Hizta) 600 - - - 600
Chen Yongcun BRXTE
(note b) (Hiztp) 117 3,862 307 18 4,304
Luo Zhihai B8 600 2,817 307 73 3,797
Tang Lunfei B 400 - - - 400
Wang Ping (note ¢) FE (M) 400 2,802 307 - 3,509
2,117 9,481 921 91 12,610
Non-executive director; JEHITEE :
Chen Zhiwei RER 400 - - - 400
2,517 9,481 921 91 13,010

204 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

8. Directors’ and Co-Chief Executive Officers’
Remuneration (Continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive directors

and the co-chief executive officers (Continued)

(a)

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung has been redesignated from
a non-executive director to an executive director
and appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company on 1 August 2021 and redesignated to
a co-chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 13 May 2022.

Mr. Chen Yongcun has been appointed as the co-
chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 13 May 2022 and appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 16
September 2022.

Mr. Wang Ping resigned as an executive director
of the Company with effect from 1 April 2023.

Mr. Weng Jian has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company with effect
from 1 July 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

EERBETHREABMNE (&)

(b)

HITES  FUTESRBEST
B (E)

(@)

KEMEEDR2021F8A1H
HIERTESHTANTES
YEZEERNDRTRES
WHEBARR R FETRE
- B2022F5 A 13HBAEM -

BRATFLEECERTALRRAT
Bt R {TIAE& - 52022558
1IBHBEN  WEZTAARD
A ITE F © B20229F9A16
ARRAE -

FTEELEEBEARRNITE
£ H2023FE4 1 B#EER

SRELCEZTAARRTH
T8 E - B2023F7A1A#E4E

AN o

2

REA - HERRFEREEHEXRA
EHREEMFHMZ L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

9. Five Highest Paid Employees

9. hEBREHES

The five highest paid employees during the year RELE2023F12A31HIEFE - A&
ended 31 December 2023 included three (2022: three) BEaFEEBRE=R(2022F : =%&)
directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in EF BREZFWNFBEHRNEEHB
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. Details WEWTES - REEZEZFE  HHBME
of the remuneration of the remaining two (2022: two) (2022F - MA )@ FHHFEERE L
highest paid non-director employees for the year are as EHIMFIBOT

follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in

e R REYEN

kind 7,067 7,328
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 1,050 402
Pension scheme contributions RIRESET B 290 277

8,407 8,007
The number of non-director highest paid employees FHN T T EBEFEERRFTIES
whose remuneration fell within the following bands are HEWMT
as follows:

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,00175 7L £ 3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,00178 7L % 3,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7c £ 5,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,00178 7L £5,500,000/8 7T 1 -

2 2

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

10. Taxation 10. %i1E

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong had
no assessable profits or had incurred tax losses during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The taxation charge of the PRC Corporate Income
Tax (“CIT”) for the year has been made based on
the Group’s estimated assessable profits calculated
in accordance with the relevant income tax laws
applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC.
Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax (“CIT
Law”) and the Implementation Regulation of the CIT
Law, the tax rate of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC was 25% for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: 25%).

The withholding tax arising from dividend income
received from the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is
calculated at 5%.

HE2023F12A31B IEFEE - HRA
RAIREREBZ B R R EEXISE
AEE AR RIEEER - IR ER
BEBFEBH(20226F : &) o

FA - PECEMSB(REMET)
TR R B 2 M8 A R LA & ERR
i MR R E A R BRI BOE DI &
TS HIBH - RIBPEDSEMEH
E(EMERE]D) REEMBRE
EiAME - B E2023%F 128318 (L4
B ARRARFREZHBARZHEA
25% (20224 : 25%) °

B AR AR B2 8 2w YA B U
AZFEMBIZE % B R E

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current: BNHA -
PRC CIT — charge for the year REBEMER — FRXH = 344
Deferred (note 27) BXE(HaE27) (16,009) (52,955)
Total tax credit for the year FRHIBIE AR (16,009) (62,611)

Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

10. Taxation (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax credit applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and most of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax credit at the effective tax rate for
the year is as follows:

10. BIE(E)

AR B R E KRR K8 R )RR A
AUAREIR ZRTE R R 5T 8 2 BR B Al &5 18
ERMEHER R R ERRRGFE A
FERBRREFENOT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000 %
FET FET

Loss before taxation [&7%: Al &8 (972,285) (795,269)
Tax credit at the ZH BUETE TS

PRC statutory HETEZH

income tax rate THIK % (243,071) 25.0 (198,817) 25.0
Share of results of — BE{HA &

joint ventures E 20,768 (2.2) (283) =
Share of results of  #{HEEE N 7

associates E35 7,785 (0.8) (513) 0.1
Income not subject  HEEREULA

to tax (6,553) 0.7 (508) 0.1
Expenses not TRAINFEA X

deductible for tax 197,100 (20.3) 105,919 (13.4)
Tax losses not RIERIAEE

recognised 7,962 (0.8) 41,591 (5.2)
Tax credit at the BRAREEERT

Group’s effective KREE 2 TIE

tax rate Eiincd) (16,009) 1.6 (52,611) 6.6

The share of tax attributable to associates and joint
ventures amounting to HK$21,000 (2022: HK$111,000)
and HK$5,921,000 (2022: HK$31,288,000),
respectively, are included in “Share of profits or losses

of associates” and “Share of profits or losses of joint

ventures” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss, respectively.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

BIEBERARAE

EEBBAD RIS

21,000/ 7T (20224 : 111,000 7T) &
5,921,000 7T (20224 : 31,288,000/
TT) B REF AGABERAM

BN EiRa | R #

BELERBE] -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

11. Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

12. Loss Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based
on the following data:

11.

12.

@S

RE E2023F 12831 H IEFE A &
AT Sk s R AR B (20224 - &) o

ARAEBESEREARGERE
=}

ARREBESHBEARIGERERNE
BIRE TSI BURFT BT -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET T

Loss attributable to ordinary equity AN EEREREIB 2 AAR]

holders of the Company used in the TRERE A AENEE

basic loss per share calculation

947,409 734,563

Number of shares
g < 4=]

2023 2022
in thousand in thousand

FHR FR

Weighted average number of ordinary RAGFESKREREREZ ERT
shares in issue during the year T E R AR INE T 5 X

used in the basic loss per share
calculation

2,304,850 2,304,850

No adjustment for dilution has been made to the
basic loss per share amounts presented for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 as the Company’s
convertible bonds outstanding had an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

R A B M R 2 AT R AR EH E AT
2 EREAGECEAEREEY
2 . [H I I MR BLEL 20234 K20224F
12A31BEFE2Y 2 BREAEIE
SREELEEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
13. Investment Properties

13. REWE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At beginning of the year REH] 2,309,146 2,730,045

Disposal H&E (80,500) =

Exchange realignment & 5 B (31,286) (212,743)
Change in fair value recognised in RIEBRRERAZ AAEES

profit or loss (63,646) (208,156)

At end of the year RER 2,133,714 2,309,146

The Group’s investment properties are situated
in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland and were
revalued on 31 December 2023 based on valuations
performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited (“GCA”),
an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$2,133,714,000 (2022: HK$2,309,146,000).

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are
included in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2023, the legal title of the
Group’s investment properties with a carrying
value of approximately HK$101,264,000 (2022:
HK$104,414,000) situated in the PRC has not been
passed to the Group.

At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s
investment properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$2,078,366,000 (2022:
HK$2,251,652,000) were pledged to secure general
credit facilities granted to the Group (note 25(a)(i)).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

REEBNKREMEMRBEBERFRHNA
o DIREE L EES BB BEMEE
TEAR A AI(EZE |) 20235124
31HFTEM B E 4 %2,133,714,000
I (20224 : 2,309,146,000/87T) °

REMERBEKLHERETE =T
#E—HHIFEN RS M BERRMES

M2023F12A318 » KEB R FH
KRB Y 2 BREE 4 /4101,264,000
7T (20224 : 104,414,000/ 7T ) B %
BNARBFPEREHR -

M2023F12A31H © AEBEREA
E/42,078,366,000/% T (20224 :
2,251,652,0008 7L )M E TIREMED
IR - UERETASEN —REE
(FF=E25(0)()) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
13. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the fair value measurements of the Group’s investment
properties are using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for all
investment properties that are measured at fair value,
the properties have been used in their highest and best
use.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2022: Nil).

13. BREYE(E)
DPREER

H 220235 K2022F 12 A31HIEFE -
NEFREMENAREFEFREKX
Al B R A B (BB34R) -

ARBEERR - RABNLARENE
MEREMEMNS  MEZIRBAERR
ARRERE °

HE2023F12A31HILFE - F14 4
FoR AU EAARBEFEEE  IE
A sk B B34 (20224 « ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt ¥ R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

13. Investment Properties (Continued)

13. REME(E)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NABEER(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques and T AEREE  IREMEGHERR 2
the key inputs used in the valuation of the Group’s BERMTEEERASIEHRE

investment properties:

Valuation techniques

fEER

Significant unobservable inputs
EXTUEERAY 2022

Office
BYIE

Carpark

85

Commercial and

Residential

BEREE

Residential (located in

Hong Kong)
FE(RRER)

Investment approach

RE%

Direct comparison approach

BRUBA

Investment approach

KB

Direct comparison approach

BRUBA

21 2 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFABEZERERERQAF

Capitalisation rate (%) 6.25 6
BAREE(%)
Market rent (RMB per square 150 — 240 136 — 179

meter per month)

mERE(BABTAKARET)

Adjusted transaction price 220,000 — 171,000 —
(RMB per carpark space) 250,000 270,000
BRERHER(GEER
ARETT)
Capitalisation rate (%) 575 -6 55 —5.75
BARIE(%)
Market rent (RMB per square 150 — 265 88 — 278

meter per month)

mEHE(BARTEIAKARET)

Adjusted transaction price (HK$ N/A 26,561 — 31,338
per square foot)
BRERHER(BTARET) ~EA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E20234 12831 AL FE
13. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value was determined using direct comparison
approach by reference to comparable sales
transactions available in the relevant market or by
investment approach, where the market rentals of
all lettable units of the properties are assessed and
discounted at the market yield expected by investors
for these types of properties. The market rentals
are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in
the lettable units of the properties as well as other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the
yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial properties and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties.

A significant increase/decrease in the market rent and
adjusted transaction price in isolation would result in
a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties.

13.

REME(E)
DREERGE)

ARERERERLBOE2ERE/ET
152 B HE R FRIAREEFRE
FHERMB R WM EREM 2 TIBHEE R
ERREERLEYEAARN TS D
BERFRMEE - MBHSFHEELE
BEEREEYEEN 2 HE kAT
ZHRELEMEEL - BEXEXRESLE
DT ERENEZIHERIAE 2K
BEMEL - W TFAFBUARYER
BENMISERENRRANERREY
KZFRIFEE

RANETHES REFERHEIRE
WA LI TRSSHR AR EAR
IR » AR EEBAE LT
TREEREENER R EAERD
210 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt ¥ R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B F2023%F12/31 A1LF/E
14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y%¥ - BERRE
Leasehold Furniture
land and Leasehold and Office Motor
buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
gL
kEgr  RENEEE FRRZE WAZRE RE fit
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
47 47 47 47 47 47
31 December 2023 2023512A318
At 1 January 2023; 20231718 :
Cost A - 26,570 5,875 10,899 19,870 63,214
Revalued amount EfhEE 214,640 - - - - 214,640
Accumulated depreciation  ZTERNE
and impairment - (18,001) (1,109) (5,821) (14,724) (39,655)
Net carrying amount BHFE 214,640 8,569 4,766 5,078 5,146 238,199

At 1 January 2023, netof 20231 B1A -
acoumulated depreciation R TERGIEZE

and impairment 214,640 8,569 4,766 5,078 5,146 238,199
Exchange realignment BN A% (44) (193) (68) (58) (52) (415)
Additions AE 4 - - 108 - 112
Disposals HE - - = (12) (250) (262)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHEAR

ote 39) (Wt30) (178,739) - (24) - - (178,763)
Revaluation B 7,533 - - - - 7,533
Depreciation provided during  ERGHRITERE

the year (6,435) (1,851) (68) (2,686) (1,235) (12,270)

At 31 December 2023, net of  #2023% 128318 -
acoumulated depreciation  ZHMERFEZE
and impairment 36,959 6,525 4,611 2,430 3,609 54,134

At 31 December 2023: 20235124318 :

Cost A - 19,557 4,697 10,191 17,430 51,875
Revalued amount BifSE 36,959 - - - - 36,959
Accumulated depreciation  ZiTERNE

and impairment - (13,032) (86) (7,761) (13,821) (34,700)
Net carrying amount FESE 36,959 6,525 4,611 2,430 3,609 54,134

21 4 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFABEZERERERQAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE20234F 12831 H I FE
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. V¥ - BERRE(E)
Leasehold Furniture
land and Leasehold and Office Motor
buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
BELH
kT  BENREE Ve N B Bt
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
A AT AT AT AT AT
31 December 2022 2022127318
At 1 January 2022; #2022%1R1A :
Cost A - 28,324 5,988 12,517 22,266 69,095
Revalued amount EfEEE 240,742 - = = - 240,742
Accumulated depreciation 2 ER(E
and impairment - (17,831) (1,078) (3,969) (15,300) (38,178)
Net carrying amount FH3E 240,742 10,493 4,910 8,548 6,066 271,659

At 1 January 2022, netof 202051 B1A -
acoumulated depreciation 2 TERGIEZE

and impairment 240,742 10,493 4910 8,548 6,966 271,659
Exchange realignment 5 A% 299) (845) (408) (621) (451) (2.624)
Additions NE = = 320 26 - 346
Disposals if = = ? (1) (46) (59)
Revaluation Ef (17,596) - - - - (17,596)
Depreciation provided during  EMEHER ERE

the year (6,207) (1,079) 54) 12,964) (1,323) (13,527

At 31 December 2022, net of 12022412 A31H -
accumulated depreciation  ZEFFERHEFE
and impairment 214,640 8,569 4,766 5,078 5,146 238,199

At 31 December 2022: R2022%12A318 :

Cost AR = 26,570 5,875 10,899 19,870 63,214
Revalued amount EfEE 214,640 - - = = 214,640
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHFERFE

and mpaiment - (18,001) (1,109 6.821) (14724 (39,655)
Net carrying amount BEEE 214,640 8,569 4,766 5,078 5,146 238,199

A IR 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. V¥ - BERRE(E)

216

At 31 December 2023, the legal titles of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings with a carrying value of
approximately HK$33,946,000 (2022: HK$35,228,000)
situated in the PRC have not been passed to the
Group.

The fair values of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2023 and 2022 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
GCA. The valuations were arrived at using direct
comparison approach by reference to sales evidence
as available on the market, and investment approach,
where the market rentals of all lettable units of the
properties are assessed and discounted at the
market yield expected by investors for these types
of properties. The market rentals are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units
of the properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate adopted is made by reference to the yields
derived from analysing the sales transactions of similar
commercial properties and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings. The revaluation surplus on revaluation
of the leasehold land and buildings amounting to
approximately HK$7,533,000 (2022: revaluation deficit
of HK$17,596,000), before tax effect, was credited to
asset revaluation reserve.

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$176,300,000 were pledged to secure general
banking and other facilities granted to the Group (note
25(a)(ii).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

M2023F 128318 » AEB R F H
7 BR T B A #) 433,946,000/ 7T (2022
4 : 35,228,000/ 0 ) 2 FHE -t R ##
FHERIARBFEAREE -

REBMHEE T RIEFR2023F K&
2022F 12 A1 A Z AR BT AN EE
FR{EH 2 BEEFE - ZE[EIE
AEELBIAE2BMISRSHEE
BREARELET EFFAAAILHE
MEBMNZTSHAS TIREEERILEE
) 2 T 78 HA RO T 35 [0 3R SR 1T AT A R AT
B msHeTHRLEE A LED
¥BA e REAMMIRL 2 HEY
¥ o BARNEFERZ2EDMABUDE
MEZHEX I RAEYEREEH™M
GRBEMREAEERE T MR
BFzEIBRR - BELHREFR
MBS ER M EHEBRL A7,533,000
77T (20224 : S fh E54117,596,0007%8
TL)  BETABEEGRHE -

R2022F12831H + AEBEREEA(E A
176,300,000 THY A THE T REF
EEER - UBERETAEEN —KIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt E20234 12831 AL FE
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the fair value measurements of the leasehold land and
buildings are using significant unobservable inputs (Level
3).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for
leasehold land and buildings that are measured at fair
value, the properties have been used in their highest
and best use.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or
out of Level 3.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques and
the key inputs used in the valuation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings:

14.

ME - BERRE(E)
DRESER

H 220235 K2022F 12 A31HIEFE -
AEBRE T REFHNAETEMFE
FBERT AT #E R A U5 (B3R) -

RRABEEFRR  SMARREFEMNHE
ELHMETNS  MEIRBRER
RARZERE -

H E 20234 K2022F 12 A31H ILFE -
FIREFFrENEAREFEE
% o IMEE A SE T EI -

ATRASERE T MEFHEMA
ZIEERMREBZHABEHRE

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Weighted average
BRI EXFUBEGARE nEF9E
Office (located in Investment approach Term yields 5.8% 5.5%
the PRC) RE% FHKEE
BB (RIRFPE) Reversion yields 6.3% 6.0%
ERHE
Market rents (RMB per square 88 88

meter per month)

mEHE(BAGTAA

ARET)

Office (located in Direct comparison

Hong Kong) approach
BFR(LNEE) BEREBA

Adjusted transaction price
(HK$ per square foot)
BRBERSBR(BFAREL)

N/A 39,746 — 44,113

FEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. V¥ - BERRE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NABEER(E)
A significant increase/decrease in the market rent and HE T REFHTISE S RETHERZ
adjusted transaction price in isolation would result in SEEEBABLE THREBHERD
a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the REKRBEM R o HE L RIETF
leasehold land and buildings. A significant increase/ B R BB AR LA TRIGESE
decrease in the vyield in isolation would result in a DREKNERD, G

significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
leasehold land and buildings.

If leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued, ARG E T RAEFHEITER - A
they would have been included on a historical cost BESKAEEL TS SBAR

basis at the following amounts:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIL
At 1 January: M1 A1R :

Cost %N 148,932 148,932
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (139,233) (134,720)
Net carrying amount BREFE 9,699 14,212

At 1 January, net of accumulated M1A1E @ K EFE
depreciation 9,699 14,212
Depreciation provided during the year &R 7 T E & (4,513) (4,513)
Disposal HE (4,352) =

At 31 December, net of accumulated  MW12A31H - it E %5

depreciation 834 9,699
At 31 December: M12H318 :

Cost B A 23,938 148,932

Accumulated depreciation 2Etine (23,104) (139,233)

Net carrying amount BREFRE 834 9,699

21 8 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 12531 HIFF/Z

15. Leases 15. &
The Group as a lessee AEBERABEA
The Group leased office premises in the PRC under REBERBLEEHAELHHEEP B
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the property NEYE - MENBELLERE B3
are negotiated for a term of 13 years. Generally, the Fo—RmME ' AEBNEHEEEEE
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the HERDHEREB AN -

leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EZHEEZSE
The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use AEEFHAEEENREERS
assets and the movements during the year are as NEI =T -
follows:
HK$’000
FET
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1H 51,773
Depreciation charge nEER (3,824)
Exchange realignment VE 5, 37 28 (4,220)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2022912 431 H &2023F1 A1H
1 January 2023 43,729
Depreciation charge WEEH (3,662)
Exchange realignment P& 58 & (607)
As at 31 December 2023 2023%F12A31H 39,460

A IR 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

15. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

15. HE(#E)

FEBEREBEAGE)

(b)) HEEERME

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

AEAEOEAERENNEE
T -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°’000
FET FEIT
At beginning of year F4) 48,003 54,452
Accretion of interest recognised  FRTEZRHF B IE M
during the year 3,760 4,101
Payments (B (1,918) (2,920)
Amount transferred to accrued EREETER BBk
charges, rental deposits and HithE Rz &8
other payables (3,836) (2,920)
Exchange realignment & 5 B (710) (4,710)
Carrying amount at end of year & REHEE 45,299 48,003
Analysed into: DA
Current portion MENEB D 2,187 2,045
Non-current portion IEREN L 43,112 45,958
45,299 48,003

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is
disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

15. Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

15. HE(#&)

FEBEREBEAGE)

(c) HEENIBHETHEIRNHSERANT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 3,760 4,101
Depreciation charge of FREEENTEER

right-of-use assets 3,662 3,824

Total amount recognised in profit PRI ERM A S %
or loss 7,422 7,925

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 31(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
leased its investment properties consisting of certain
residential and commercial properties in the PRC under
operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years (2022: 1 to 15
years). Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
HK$96,958,000 (2022: HK$96,884,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) HENRSBHEBREE MG
HRARMI T (D) IR E -

FEBERHEA

HE2023F12A31HIEFER » A&
ERBECEHETHEAEREME
(BEAETRABINTERFEDSE)
FEEERN T A1E10F (20224 :
12155 ) o N & B RN B £20235F12
ABLEFERNBERNEASKRAL A
96,958,0005% 7T (20224 : 96,884,000
BIT)  FEREN RS MBS HRER TS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt ¥ R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

15. Leases (Continued)

15. HE (&)

The Group as a lessor (Continued) AEEEBHEBAE)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had the RB|BERR - AEBEIRBEEAEBES 2T
following undiscounted lease payments receivable in AT S E 2 R R HAR R W R B IR
future periods under non-cancellable operating leases HERNFAT :

with its tenants:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$°’000

FET FEIT

Within one year —F R 74,548 82,243
After one year but within two years —FERFA 38,601 35,665
After two years but within three years W% =FR 23,244 18,906
After three years but within four years =412 04E R 12,340 11,725
After four years but within five years NEERFR 9,115 7,973
After five years TELAE 19,662 19,144
177,510 175,656

16. Other Intangible Assets

16. HttEFEE

Licenses

3

HK$’000
FET

31 December 2023

Cost at 1 January 2023, net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment

Impairment during the year

2023%12H31H
20231 A1HBIKA - REt#iHR

BEFEE =
FARME -

At 31 December 2023

R2023%F 12 A31H -

At 31 December 2023:

MR2023F12H318 :

Cost BN 5,621
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R MORE (5,621)
Net carrying amount BREFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 128531 HILFE
16. Other Intangible Assets (Continued) 16. HithBEEE(E)
Licenses
he AR
HK$'000
FHET
31 December 2022 20229 12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated 202241 A1 BRI A - Z5HEEE &
amortisation and impairment B FER 2,814
Impairment during the year FRRE (2,814)
At 31 December 2022 2022128311 —
At 31 December 2022: R2022%12A318 :
Cost BN 5,621
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEE MORE (5,621)
Net carrying amount REDFEE —
17. Interests in Associates 17. BEQTESR
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Share of net assets DIEFEE 274,094 309,475
Amount due from an associate JE I — SR B A B FR 515,742 523,099
Impairment VERED (99,200) (83,613)
416,542 439,486
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amount due 20234 202212 A31H » El—
from an associate was unsecured, non-trade in nature, REE RN R RBERT - EXFMH - T
non-interest bearing and expected to be repaid beyond STERTEER —FREE -
one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

17. Interests in Associates (Continued)

An impairment analysis was perfor
reporting date by considering the proba

med at each
bility of default

of the amount due from an associate. As at 31
December 2023, the probability of default applied was
26.8% (2022: 23.1%) and the loss given default was

estimated to be 62.1% (2022: 61.6%).

The following table shows the reconc

iliation of loss

allowance for an amount due from an associate:

17. & NTRER(E)

RERER  KERER —RBEAQ
AIFMBABEBEETREI N - B
2023F12H31H  FTEA 2B X =
526.8% (20224 : 23.1%) » {HaTEH
BREE62.1% (20224 : 61.6%) °

TR — K&

Bk

NERZ EE

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$°’000

FET FEIT

At the beginning of the year REH] 83,613 9,416
Impairment loss provided during the FRREBERR

year 16,787 74,988

Exchange realignment P& X A% (1,200) (791)

At the end of the year RER 99,200 83,613

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Particulars of

B RmFEBmT

Percentage of
ownership interest

Place of registration attributable to

Company name equity held and business the Group Principal activities
REMELS

ARER FisERER BEREXLH BEEREERLA TEER

Cinda Jianrun Property Registered capital PRC 30% Investment holding
Company Limited*

FEREmEERLAR" AMER g REZRR

Guangzhou Ruifeng Investment Registered capital PRC 19.6% Investment holding
Company Limited*

BMmEREBRAR" FMER i REER

i Registered as a domestic limited liability companies ABEANBREER

under the PRC law.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
17. Interests in Associates (Continued)

18.

The English name of these companies represents the
best effort made by management of the Company
to directly translate their Chinese name as it did not
register any official English name.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not
individually material:

17. & NTRER(E)

BRI AREMERE D HEXERH &
ERANRAXEEDARRERER
BRABNAERXEWEZHRE -

TRIRAE B ER M = I A B AR
ERAINIHFERER :

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of the associates’ (losses)/profits (L EE<4 A R E N (F518) & H
for the year (31,141) 2,050
Share of the associates’ total BEBMEARE2E(EE),
comprehensive (loss)/income 4R=E (31,141) 2,050
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBPREERRZIREZERA
Group’s investments in the associates  {E42%8 274,094 309,475
Interests in Joint Ventures 18. S XER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of net assets DIFEE 1,707,471 1,810,881
Impairment VERED (304,634) (304,634)
1,402,837 1,506,247
Amounts due from joint ventures R A E R ER 222,313 440,014
Impairment VERED (4,433) (9,577)
217,880 430,437
Portion classified as current assets SEARBEE D (1,664) (430,437)
Non-current portion EMENE S 216,216 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, except for the amount of
HK$159,211,000 which was unsecured, non-trade
in nature, carrying interest at fixed rate of 4.35% per
annum and repayable on 31 December 2023, subject
to the financial capability of the joint venture to repay
as scheduled, the amounts due from joint ventures
were unsecured, non-trade in nature, interest-free and
repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2023, the
amounts due from joint ventures were unsecured, non-
trade in nature, interest-free and repayable on demand
as to the amount of HK$1,664,000 and repayable over
one year as to the amount of HK$216,216,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the recoverable
amount of the Group's investment in ZHYQ (as
defined below) was determined based on value-in-
use calculations using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 15.1%. The
cash flow projections beyond the period of financial
budgets were extrapolated using a growth rate of
2.2% which did not exceed the long-term average
growth rate of the industry. Based on the impairment
assessment performed, the recoverable amount was
approximately HK$1,446 million. Key assumptions
on which management has based its cash flow
projections to perform impairment testing include: (i)
sales growth rates and budgeted gross margins on the
petrochemical business which is based on expected
market development and management experience in
the industry; and (i) pre-tax discount rate which reflects
specific risks relating to the underlying business.

An impairment analysis was performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default
of the amounts due from joint ventures. As at 31
December 2023, the probability of default applied
ranged from 1.1% to 8.5% (2022: 1.1% to 2.9%) and
the loss given default was estimated to range from
57.1% to 63.3% (2022: 54.1% to 63.0%).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

18.

&Ml ()

2022912 A31H * 159,211,000/
TR BEAERR  IERXSHME - LEFE
F F) T4.35%5T B KB R2023F 12 A
STHEEN  BEE XN K
MEAEEMTE  BREELERAE
B FEZXHM - T B RAERERE
iE o N2023F12A31H ' ERAEE
ERELEER  FEXFHME L8 -
H /1,664,000 L IR ERKEE -
216,216,000 TR —FAERE °

H E2023F12A31B LFE - A& H
RAEBER(ERR TX)ZRENT
WEeELIRESREEEIENTRT
By %EE  ERRSRERAGESE
REEmMETE - BARBESRESEALN
AR R B15.1% - B ISTEE H
RIS M ETE R A2.2%R) 18 & K i
Al WARBBITERBFIERE - 1R
B#THRESS  JRE£BEOA
1,446,000,0007 ¢ - BEEEREHE
SRERAETREARHNEIZRRE
B () ERTEERTSEREEEL
BRI EBNHEEREREEZES
% R (i) R M R AR B TS AR RO R E R
BRI R ATAR IR K o

REHRER  KERBKREELENE
HBERBHEITHE DT o R2023F12
A318  FIEAZENBENTF1.1%
£8.5% (2022%F : 1.1%%£2.9%) °
BRI EHBREN T57.1%%263.3%
(20224F : 54.1%%63.0%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continueqd) 18. S ERER(E)
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss TRIITHERE ECERBERE
allowance for the amounts due from joint ventures: AR
2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

At the beginning of the year REA] 9,577 3,536

Impairment loss (reversed)/provided FRREERE(BE),FTiR
during the year (5,005) 6,327

Exchange realignment [ 5, 3 2E (139) (286)

At the end of the year RER 4,433 9,577

Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: BEDEFBOT :

Percentage of
ownership interest
Particulars of Place of registration attributable
Company name equity held and business to the Group Principal activities
AEEERS

AR BB FEESER BLREXLH REREEELLA TERER

Zhong Hai You Qi (Tai Zhou) Registered capital PRC 51%  Production and trading
Petrochemical Company of petroleum and
Limited (“ZHYQ")* petrochemical products

figmRE(RM) AL T AR A i EEREEAAR
BRAR(THEHE])" AftEm

Meizhou City Ji Shan Operation Registered capital PRC 50% Investment in urban
Management Company renewal projects
Limited™

BNTEELEER T AR A i RERTEHIEAR
BRAR"

Beijing Lingjun New Energy Registered capital PRC 50% Research and
Technology Company development, transfer
Limited** and promotion of new

energy technology
bR BE A EREIR AR HE LR BT E A -
BEREELA BERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EiF2023F 12731 H 1 F/Z
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 18. AR DERER(Z)
t Registered as a domestic limited liability companies J BEFEERIAMABEANEREER
under the PRC law. Al e

>

The English names of these companies represent the BRI ARTMERE FEXEN - %

best effort made by management of the Company to ENAINEXEBINARABERER
directly translate their Chinese names as they did not BABNBHERXEBEEMS -

register any official English names.

ZHYQ is considered as a material joint venture of the FEBREEAREENEREGE D
Group and is accounted for using equity method. ¥ RAEZENE -

The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRV~ A R GHREYEERE
information in respect of ZHYQ adjusted for any Z  ERgBCRNEMERIEL AR
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the I ERAR A B S TRk AR BRE B 1 BR

carrying amount in the financial statements:

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current assets MBEE 3,712,394 4,612,770
Non-current assets EmENE E 8,076,715 8,846,663
Current liabilities mEratE (6,614,599) (9,086,135)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,964,595) (990,587)

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in EAZNEE B & SRR 2 HER ¢
the joint venture:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE ZEBRELD 51% 51%
Share of net assets DIEFEE 1,637,057 1,725,182
Impairment RE (304,634) (304,634)
Carrying amount of the investment & ZREE 1,332,423 1,420,548
Revenue PN 29,813,453 36,999,342
(Loss)/profit for the year FREE), BT (135,171) 12,940

Other comprehensive loss for the year 4 A E (2 HEEE = —
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for FRZ2E(EE) MWasEsE
the year (135,171) 12,940
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
18. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continueqd) 18. S LXERRE(E)

19.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:

CREE R

TRITAKBE@ER M ELTEANE
SR HBERER

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°’000
FET FEIT
Share of the joint ventures’ losses for  #{h& 4 EFREE
the year (14,134) (5,470)
Share of the joint ventures’ total BHAELCELAEGEAREE
comprehensive loss (14,134) (5,470)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBREELEZREY
Group’s investments in the joint BREERR
ventures 70,414 85,699

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit 19. UAAEFEEHESEHTTAEBEN
or Loss ctRMEE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Listed equity investment, at fair value — FHRAIRE @ RAARE 16,534 66,909

Unlisted equity securities IE ETIRANFE 5 57,854 87,106

Unlisted funds JEEMES 230,800 388,319

Non-performing assets portfolio TREEHSE 129,489 266,365

Others Hiy 1,640 2,370

436,317 811,069

Current portion TENEB (434,677) (809,429)

Non-current portion IFETEE D 1,640 1,640

The above equity investments at 31 December 2023

and 2022 were classified as financial assets at fair KIEED
value through profit or loss as they were held for A s

trading. E o

20234 K2022%12 A31H » Ll
YA AREE B EEE)E
MNeEE REAEFBEESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 4 Bt #& R & M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EiF2023F 12731 H 1 F/Z
19. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit

20.

or Loss (Continued)

The above unlisted funds and non-performing assets
portfolio at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
were not solely payments of principal and interest.
Details of the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

Loan Receivables

19.

20.

URAREFEEHSETA
EREEE)

il
|/

.
i)

20234 2022612 A318 » Lt 3k
IEMEERTREEMAEH AN DEA
NAREFEAHEBFABENER
BE REABHAGNBESRENIES
AERF BT - MARBEFEAHSE
A BENEREEZ ANBERG
BN ERE B IRE M FES6 -

P & K

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Loan receivables, unsecured FEUE T - MK 2,352,282 2,395,699
Impairment BB (457,913) (149,322)
1,894,369 2,246,377

As at 31 December 2023, a loan receivable, M2023F12A31H » AR & — R

guaranteed by a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company, of an amount (before loss
allowance) of approximately HK$156,000,000 (2022:
HK$156,000,000) was unsecured, carrying interest
at fixed rate of 4.75% (2022: 4.75%) per annum and
repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2023, loan receivables outstanding
from independent third parties of an aggregate
amount (before loss allowance) of approximately
HK$2,196,282,000 (2022: HK$2,239,699,000) were
unsecured, carrying interest at fixed rates of 12% to
20% (2022: 15% to 20%) per annum and had fixed
term ranging from 2 months to 2 years (2022: 2
months to 2 years).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited

REERZEREEER A

BRRZIEIERBEERZ ERE K
(FTHRE BB AT) 49156,000,000/% T
(20224F : 156,000,000 T ) & £ i
¥ 0 3R4.75% (20224 : 4.75%) EFEF
FRTBRIZERMEE -

M2023F12H31H - EWEBLE=F
REBNEWERBEGHEEBERH
A1) 492,196,282,000/8 7T (20224
2,239,699,000/8 7T ) /& MK - & F
FI#=12% Z=20% 1) [E 7 F X 51 £.(2022
F 15%%20%) - EEHRR2E A E
2%F (20224 : 2 AE2%F) »



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

20. Loan Receivables (Continued) 20. BEWRER(E)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss
allowance for loan receivables:

TRINTHEUER 2 EEEHE Y
BE -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At the beginning of the year REH] 149,322 12,042
Impairment loss provided FRREBETR

during the year 310,200 137,748

Exchange realignment & 5 (1,609) (468)

At the end of the year RER 457,913 149,322

An impairment analysis was performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default
of loan receivables. As at 31 December 2023, the
probability of default applied ranged from 1.1% to
51.5% (2022: 1.1% to 20.7%) and the loss given
default was estimated to range from 52.7% to 64.0%
(2022: 53.8% to 62.7%).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Company published an announcement dated 18
March 2024 that an independent special investigation
committee (the “Special Investigation Committee”) has
been established on 18 March 2024 for the purposes
of, among other things, investigating on various matters
and events, including but not limited to the commercial
rationale of the loan transactions and the relationship
between the Group and the borrowers, relating to
the loan transactions with an outstanding aggregate
principal of approximately HK$1,976 million and related
outstanding loan interest receivables of approximately
HK$454 million as at 31 December 2023. The Special
Investigation Committee has engaged an independent
forensic investigation firm to undertake an independent
forensic investigation into the concerned matter (the
“Forensic Investigation”). Up to the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Forensic
Investigation has not been completed and is still in
progress.

RERER CEZERKRERED
BERIBEITRED T - K2023F 128
318 - FIERCENMERNF1.1%
£51.5% (2022%F : 1.1%%E20.7%) °
HET BB REN F52.7%%E64.0%
(20224 : 53.8%%E62.7%) °

RB|EBHERE AR TIEBAEA
2024F3H18AM A E AR BER
2024F3A18H KU B HFRIALE L
BEg((FAAEZEE]) B&E(H
PEE)ASHERRIBENSES
BEREH(REETRRETERRS
WEERBRARAREBEEBRAZHE
R BB 1R ) - % B 3 M2023F12H31H
2 M K8 & R £ %8 491,976,000,000
BT A RABRE R (B R ERERF B4
454,000,000 7T - HRIFEZESE
ZE—MBLEERASARYMAER
WITBERRE(EFRAE]) - HEE
AEZSEAVBHRERAE  FEARAE
FEETR MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
20. Loan Receivables (Continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Company published an announcement dated 18
March 2024 that the Company had entered into a
memorandum of understanding with Guangdong
Zhuguang Group Company Limited (“Guangdong
Zhuguang”), pursuant to which the Company intends
to sell and Guangdong Zhuguang intends to acquire all
the rights, title, benefits and interests of the Group to,
in and under the loan agreements with an aggregate
outstanding principal and interest of approximately
HK$2,430 million as at 31 December 2023, whereas
the consideration shall be settled by Guangdong
Zhuguang by way of assuming the obligations of
a subsidiary of the Company under two entrusted
loan agreements with an aggregate outstanding
principal amount of approximately HK$2,075 million
and interest accrued thereon and assignment of
certain properties located in the PRC by Guangdong
Zhuguang to the Company. The proposed transaction,
if materialised, would provide a good opportunity for
the Group to recover substantially the outstanding
loan receivables and loan interest receivables within a
foreseeable timeframe and in a relatively short period
of time, thereby minimising the associated uncertainty
and credit risks, and the proposed novation of the
Group’s debt under the entrusted loan agreements to
Guangdong Zhuguang also provides a good opportunity
for the Group to settle the entrusted loans and the
rights and liabilities of the Group under the entrusted
loan agreements will be discharged. Furthermore,
the proposed transfer of the target properties to the
Company allows the Group to enlarge and diversify its
investment properties portfolio with high quality assets,
as well as to strengthen the income base of the Group.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

21.

Trade Receivables

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated on the respective
revenue recognition dates:

J& UK AR K

THRZER B REREZ RIKARF R
FEMAERR B AR A0 2 IR ARSI ¥R 5
HIR Z BRER D AT -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within 1 month 1{EA R 6,362 3,934

The Group’s trade receivables represent receivables
arising from the rental income from tenants. The
credit period is generally one month to two months.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management.

Since the Group’s trade receivables were related to a
number of diversified customers as at 31 December
2023 and 2022, there was no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non- interest-bearing.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. Based on evaluation on ECL rate and
gross carrying amount, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the financial impact of ECL in
respect of these balances is considered immaterial. As
at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance for
trade receivables was assessed to be minimal.

AEEMRKRFEREEPHNES K
AFEEZ BB - EEH—RA—Z
FRE A o 7552 [ 755 SR A 455 B AR P2 ) i R
EEZEWFIE  MERESTHEH
BHEIKEER ©

720234 202212 A31H * AR A
SENEREREZEZTREFEHA -
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fib s EIGoRTE e o FEWBRRIL AT S o

AEEEREBMBEREERFERA
B ERTBEEEESE - ZE R
FTRh T FEURBR R A 2 B TE AR s 18 1%
- REBEEHEHCEEBEXRERA
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B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

22. Deposits, Prepayments and Other
Receivables

22. % - ANRKREAEYR

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Loan interest receivables JEWE A B 586,898 498,323
Prepayments SEENEN 3,144 3,296
Deposits and other receivables 124 % H b fE UG 447,360 439,250
1,037,402 940,869

Impairment VERED (199,316) (32,517)
838,086 908,352

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss
allowance for financial assets in the above balances:

TRIVR L& SRT e REEBRRE
ZHER

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$°’000

FAET FEIT

At the beginning of the year RFEH] 32,517 —
Impairment loss provided FRREEERHE

during the year 167,147 32,517

Exchange realignment HE 5, R R (348) —

At the end of the year RER 199,316 32,517

An impairment analysis was performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default
of financial assets in the above balances. As at 31
December 2023, the probability of default applied
ranged from 1.1% to 100% (2022: 1.1% to 20.7%)
and the loss given default was estimated to range from
52.7% to 64.0% (2022: 53.8% to 62.7%).

234 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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23. Pledged Bank Deposits, Restricted Bank 23. EEFRITER  ZHRITREIEER

Balance and Cash and Bank Balances

RBEERBRITEER

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Restricted bank balance ZIRITIR B 458 - 674,814
Cash and bank balances B RIBITH R 57,333 97,517
57,333 772,331

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$54,321,000 (2022:
HK93,728,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under Chinese
Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had certain funds
in the amount of HK$674,814,000 in its designated
bank account which were restricted as to use and
designated for settlement of the amounts due to certain
other creditors. As these funds had not been released
by the Group to such other creditors, a corresponding
liability was recorded as other payables in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022. During the current year, these funds
had been released to settle the relevant payables.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RBEEHR AEEBAARETA
REDAEZRERBRITEROES
54,321,000 (20224 : 93,728,000
BIL)c ARBEAABERLBRSEME
¥ o A - R BN INE E IR R DI
ARAERE - EERNEEERE @ A%
B B B R A R IMNE R 2 iRITHS
ARBHBREMER -

R2022F12A831H » XAEBREETE
RITERPE 45 2674,814,0008 L&
SWRHIER - WIRERAREERNTSE
TFEMEEAIE - BRAERH KM
ZUEBERAREZEES  BUEEE
EO R ANEB2022612A318 2454
B RR R P R B E AR o AR
FE 2EECCAREBHBENR
1A o

RTR S RIS BB TFRF R
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24. Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other 24, ETEA  HEZRESRHEHMEMSRK

236

Payables
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°’000
FET FHET
Purchase of land use rights Uk B £ M 5 AR A 41,612 42,218
Accrued charges FEFTE R 109,199 183,765
Rental deposits sk 2 17,865 16,842
Other payables H bS5k 207,995 922,999
Financial guarantee contracts B IEREH 42,513 38,622
419,184 1,204,446

The payable for the purchase of land use rights in the
PRC as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 was due to
an independent third party and was secured by certain
of the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$77,263,000 (2022: HK$79,507,000).

The financial guarantee contracts represent guarantees
given in connection with the loans of a joint venture of
the Company. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over the guarantees.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the
higher of the ECL allowance and the amount initially
recognised less the cumulative amount of income
recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holders (i.e., the
banks) for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the debtor (i.e.,
the joint venture). During the year ended 31 December
20283, no ECL allowance was provided as a result of
the loans of the joint venture (2022: Nil).

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contracts
is classified as Stage 1. During the year, there were no
transfers between stages (2022: Nil).
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24. Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other
Payables (Continued)

Except for the above, the accrued charges, rental
deposits and other payables are unsecured, non-

24, BESHER  HBEZEESRAEMELR
(%)

BrLatESN  BETER  BHResRE
FEN R R EER - 28 MARERE

interest- bearing and repayable on demand. = °
25. Interest—Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 25. FTEMITRHEMER
2023 2022
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRAIE 38R FET ERFH% 5|58R FET
Current 0
Bank loans — secured ~ $R1TE - BEA 8% 2024 130,795 8% 2023 16,797
Bank loans — unsecured $FfTE - EEA  3.7% toZ 5.5% 2024 30,905 3.7% toZ 5.5% 2023 33,595
Other loans — secured ~ EfEH - BER 4% toZ 12% 2024 316,580 4% toE 12% 2023 1,307,084
Other loans — secured ~ EMEF - FHA 9%  Ondemand 3,006,760 - - -
REX
Other loans — unsecured EMEF - EE A - - - 5.35%  Ondemand 31,498
REX
3,485,049 1,388,974
Non-current FEH
Bank loans — secured  FTEH - HEM - - - 8% 2024 132,699
Bank loans — unsecured R/TEF - EFA  8.7% toZ 5.5% 2025 33,775 3.7% t0Z 5.5% 2025 55,543

Other loans — secured ~ EMEF - BEAE 4% toZ 27.6% 2026 toZ 2028

33,112 4% toF 9% 2024 toF 2026 2,353,524

66,887 2,541,766

3,551,936 3,930,740
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Bt ZE2023F12A31 HILFE
25. Interest—Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 25. FTRBITRHEMMER(E)
(Continued)
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Analysed into: DA

Bank loans repayable: BERRITER
Within one year or on demand —FARREK 161,700 50,392
In the second year F-F 33,775 152,856

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEZFFERF
(BEEREME) - 35,386
195,475 238,634

Other loans repayable: EEEEMER

Within one year or on demand —F R IRERK 3,323,349 1,338,582
In the second year F_4F - 333,147

In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FFRF
(BREBEMSF) 33,112 2,020,377
3,356,461 3,692,106
3,551,936 3,930,740

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s
borrowings were secured or guaranteed by:

(i) pledges over the Group’s investment properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$2,078,366,000 (2022: HK$2,251,652,000)
(note 13);

(if) pledges over the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of nil
(2022: HK$176,300,000) (note 14); and

(i)  guarantees provided by Mr. Chu Hing Tsung
and Guangdong Zhuguang for borrowings of the
Group amounting to HK$2,057,533,000 (2022:
HK$2,132,360,000) at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2023, other than certain bank and
other borrowings with an aggregate carrying amount of
nil (2022: HK$180,000,000) denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, all bank and other borrowings were denominated
in RMB as at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings included borrowings of
approximately HK$3,007 million with original maturity
dates of one year from the end of the reporting period
which have been reclassified to current liabilities due
to the delay in the payment of interest of certain
borrowings before the end of the reporting period.
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B F20234 12531 HiFFE
26. Convertible bonds

On 3 July 2019 (the “CB Issue Date”), pursuant
to a placing agreement and certain subscription
agreements dated 20 May 2019 entered into between
the placing agent and certain connected persons of
the Company, respectively, the Company issued the
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$1,150,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”), among
which convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 were placed to the placing agent
and convertible bonds with the remaining amount of
HK$950,000,000 were subscribed by the connected
persons of the Company (including Mr. Gao Jian Min,
a company owned by the elder sister of Mr. Hui Xiao
Bing and a company controlled by the spouse of Mr.
Liu Tianni). Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, the chairman of the
Company, has provided personal guarantees in favour
of the relevant subscribers.

The Convertible Bonds were unsecured and carried
interest at 7% per annum on the outstanding principal
amount. Interest was payable semi-annually. The
maturity period of the Convertible Bonds was 36
months from the date of issue and fell due on 3 July
2022 (the “Relevant Payment Date”).

The Convertible Bonds were convertible at the
option of the bondholders into ordinary shares of the
Company at the initial conversion price of HK$2.33 per
conversion share (subject to adjustments pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds) and
the Convertible Bonds should be redeemable at the
option of the Company at any time from the CB Issue
Date up to the close of business on the date which
was five trading days prior to the maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds at an amount being the principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds plus aggregate
internal rate of return on the relevant amount of the
Convertible Bonds at 12% per annum thereon (having
included the interest paid) calculated from the CB Issue
Date to (and including) the early redemption date.

26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
26. Convertible bonds (Continued) 26. AEARESR(ZF)

Upon the maturity of the Convertible Bonds, the
Company should redeem from the bondholders all
of the Convertible Bonds at an amount equivalent to
116.5% of the principal amount of the outstanding
Convertible Bonds.

On 6 July 2022, (i) the Company, as issuer; (ii) the
bondholders; and (iii) Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, as guarantor,
entered into a first amendment deed (the “First
Amendment Deed”), pursuant to which the parties to
the First Amendment Deed conditionally agreed to
extend the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds to
30 December 2022 (the “New Maturity Date”). The
interest rate of the Convertible Bonds was adjusted
from 7% per annum to 12% per annum immediately
after the extension from the Relevant Payment Date
to the New Maturity Date. The maturity redemption
price payable by the Company was adjusted from
116.5% of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds at the New Maturity Date to a sum
equal to the aggregate of (i) 100% of the outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds; and (i) the
interests on 100% of the outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds accrued at 12% per annum
for the period from the date immediately after the
Relevant Payment Date up to and including the New
Maturity Date. The Convertible Bonds were secured
by additional securities and the Company retained the
right for early redemption of the Convertible Bonds.
Further details of the First Amendment Deed are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 6 July
2022.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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B FE2023F 12531 HIFF/Z
26. Convertible bonds (Continued) 26. AEARESR(ZF)

On 15 July 2022, the parties to the First Amendment
Deed entered into a second amendment deed (the
“Second Amendment Deed”), pursuant to which the
parties agreed to amend certain terms of the First
Amendment Deed. The amendments included details
of the Group’s assets that were being pledged and the
requirement to set up designated bank accounts for
settlement. Further details of the Second Amendment
Deed are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 July 2022.

The proposed amendments pursuant to the Second
Amendment Deed became effective on 26 August
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was
no conversion of the Convertible Bonds.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had settled
part of the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$1,108,288,000.

As at 31 December 2022, the Convertible Bonds were
secured by certain of the Group’s loan receivables,
amount due from a joint venture of the Company and
share charges in respect of certain subsidiaries and an
associate of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
remaining principal amount of the Convertible Bonds
has been fully settled by the Company.

M2022F7 1658 + BE—MWBEIRIEZ
AR E - ETREBETE —H
BEIRE]) BRATNFREEITE
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B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
26. Convertible bonds (Continued) 26. ABRARER(E)
The movements in liability component of the Convertible REFEARRRESBEDSSEHN
Bonds during the reporting years are as follows: T~
HK$°'000
FAT
Liability component at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 A1B 2 B EHH 1,301,494
Interest expense FERE 140,400
Interest paid [EENEESS (80,500)
Redemption premium paid BB RRE (189,750)
Interest payable transferred to accrued EERERESTER SR REMEMNK
charges, rental deposits and other payables ZIERFE (21,644)
Settlement EE (1,108,288)
Liability component at 31 December 2022 R2022%F 12 A31H K2023F1 1B 2
and 1 January 2023 BED 41,712
Settlement B8 (41,712)
Liability component at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31A 2 B EHS =
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27. Deferred Tax Liabilities 27. EEBEA
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities BEFEAREREEERABEZEH N
during the reporting years are as follows: T~
Revaluation
Accelerated tax Revaluation of financial
depreciation of properties assets Tax losses Total
MEHERE NEER  SREEEf RIEESE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET TET
At 1 January 2022 R202261 A18 (85) (245,169) (5,126) 1,808 (248,542)
Credited to profit or loss FRETABR
during the year (note 10) (Hit10) - 48,030 4,925 = 52,955
Credited to other FERGAEMZE
comprehensive income for Wz
the year - Y388 - - 3,353
Exchange realignment & i % - - 201 - 201
At 31 December 2022 and 72022124318 &
1 January 2023 202351 1A (55) (193,786) = 1,808 (192,033)
Credited to profit or loss FRFAER
during the year (note 10) (Hit10) - 16,009 - - 16,009
Charged to other FERREMZE
comprehensive income for Wtk
the year - (858) - - (858)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBAR
(note 50) (Hi#30) - 15,721 - - 15,721
At 31 December 2023 12023124318 (55) (162,914) = 1,808 (161,161)
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Bt E20234 12831 AL FE
27. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Continued)

The Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$1,220,680,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: HK$1,276,248,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also had tax losses arising in Chinese
Mainland of approximately HK$381,599,000 (2022:
HK$296,449,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Chinese Mainland. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Chinese
Mainland and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, no deferred tax
was recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that were subject
to withholding taxes of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in Chinese Mainland. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland for which deferred tax
liabilities were not recognised totalled approximately
HK$2,010,230,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$2,315,700,000).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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27.

EEREARE(E)

R2023F12A31H - AEBERER
B 2 T 18 8 18 #£91,220,680,0007% 7T
(20224F : 1,276,248,000/8 7T ) * A f#
|\ A ARG BB AR 2R RE
A A e AEBEITARE T EAM
2 T 78 & 18 49381,599,0007% 7T (2022
F 1 206,449,000 L) BN —FE R
FANFE - AT AEEERRERD
wAl o MAMZEBBRERRERIEE
E RERBNEKRATKAIERNE
PR TE & 18 AR SH FE SR BB A1 -

REPEEEMRETE - RABIAHK
2N E R E MR EETIR S
B& B ZEBIR10%TBINE - EEMRE [
200841 A1H AR + I F 72007
F12A31B 2B 2 BF o i B At
HINRIE B EFTB R AR 2 HB RS
40 - BIEATENMR XA LRI o LA
SEME BAMEARS% - Bt - &
EEAERZENTE ALK OB A
Al B2008F1 A1BRFTEL BT H
k2 B B BANTESORL -

20234 202212 A31H » &
QR E A2 B A B R IE
FABMBEINR 2 A ERBF S 2T
MR EREELERIE - KRARESRR
B ZEHRBAR TR ERAIER
RRD KB EERN - 12023512 431
B SERFEANHERRZREER
ZEREBRAE(HEN L BEREMAE
EFIE B &) # £2,010,230,000 7T
(20224 : 2,315,700,000/8 L) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
28. Share Capital 28. A&
Number of Nominal
shares value
kil S 4=| HE
‘000 HK$’ 000
FiR FET
Issued and fully paid: BETRESHRRA
At 1 January 2022, 31 December R2022F1 818  20224F
2022, 1 January 2023 and 12A31H + 2023F1A1B X
31 December 2023 2023912 A31H 2,304,850 3,626,781
29. Reserves 29. f#fE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the AEERAFERBAFENRERE
movements therein for the current and prior years are DEEENMBRR RS EREDE
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in R27 .

equity of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

30. Disposal of a Subsidiary

30. HE—RKELHE

2023
HK$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of: FrtE&ESE

Property, plant and equipment VI - BB L& 178,763
Other receivables H Ath & Y5k TE 115
Cash and bank balance Re MRTTH 12
Accruals and other payables JE 5T R0 IE % At FE A< FROR (99,402)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 27) BERIBAE(MZ27) (15,721)
63,767
Shareholders’ loans assigned BEEREER 99,402
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary e —ERNE AR 2 WS 36,957
Total consideration BERE 200,126
Satisfied by cash AR & &4+t 200,126
Cash consideration HeERE 200,126
Cash and bank balances disposed of it &R & RIBI TR (12)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents RHE—HNBARZHEEAIRESZEN
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary FRA 200,114

On 11 October 2023, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party in respect of the disposal of the entire interest
of Real China Development Limited, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, for a consideration of

HK$200,126,000.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F 1231 H I FE

31. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows

(a)

31. ZEREREBRMTE

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) BMEXBFELEZEELSH
activities
Lease Convertible
Borrowings liabilities bonds
R HEAE ARRES
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FEIT FET
At 1 January 2022 202241 H1H 3,734,665 54,452 1,301,494
Changes from financing cash & IR & 5= %
flows 494,892 (2,920) (1,108,288)
Interest expense of MR ES Y
convertible bonds FEZH = = 140,400
Interest and redemption BB RED
premium paid classified as ~ HEDEAKE
operating cash flows BEemE = = (270,250)
Accretion of interest FRERHFE
recognised during the year &1 — 4,101 —
Amount transferred to EREESER -
accrued charges, rental ke MHEAM
deposits and other AN -
payables — (2,920) —
Interest payable transferred SR EEEEMR -
to accrued charges, ke MEAM
rental deposits and other e 2 BB
payables FE = = (21,644)
Exchange realignment PE 37, o B (298,817) (4,710) —
At 31 December 2022 and 72022412 H31H
1 January 2023 K2023F1H1H 3,930,740 48,003 41,712
Changes from financing cash &R & mE#H)
flows (324,914) (1,918) (41,712)
Accretion of interest FAMEREF L
recognised during the year &N - 3,760 -
Amount transferred to ERTEAER -
accrued charges, rental M e M EA
deposits and other AN et
payables - (3,836) -
Exchange realignment PE X A% (53,890) (710) -
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 3,551,936 45,299 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt ¥ R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 128531 HILFE
31. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 31. KEHERERMZE2)
Flows (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEBESHRHAEZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FTARERERZEERSR
statement of cash flows is as follows: WEEUNR :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within operating activities REEEEFPESE 3,760 4,101
Within financing activities REVE e EE 1,918 2,920
5,678 7,021
32. Pledge of Assets 32. EEEF
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s REAEEEREERCEEFBER
borrowings are included in notes 13, 14, 23, 25 and 26 AT RERMEIS - MsE14 -~ HsE
to the consolidated financial statements. 23~ ftsE25 K fit5E26 o
33. Commitments 33. &I

The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

REENBERREIATEARALE :

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET TAETT

+

Contracted, but not provided for: 2% &8I K KR :
Unlisted equity securities FEETRAE S

\

IJ>¢+
Uﬂfli}

- 167,973

248 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
34. Related Party Transactions 34. BHBARS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (a) BREUBREREMBLOAMAIRS
in the financial statements, the Group had the O RE B A BB T T
following transactions with related parties during Tz 5 -
the year:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Interest income from a joint —RKEZDEZFBERWA
venture 4,787 44,666
Interest expense to non- M B A R EIERR AR IR 2 F B S
controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries 1,325 1,744
Interest expense to a substantial FERE 7 F| B H
shareholder - 54,939
Management fee to an entity AR S — R RIS
controlled by a close family ERCERE
member of Mr. Chu Hing Tsung 1,356 1,651
Motor vehicle leasing income from —xRA& &% 7 /FHEHAEWRA
a joint venture 3,839 1,007
The above transactions were conducted in LA 5 T AR5 AR B 1 i 2 16 K

(b)

accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements. In the opinion of the directors of the

BT - ARRMEZRR BB
RGTIRAEBE B EEBBEF

Company, the related party transactions were LT o

conducted in the ordinary course of business of

the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel (b) XEEFEEEASME

of the Group

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the directors and the co-chief executive officers
of the Company represented the key management
personnel of the Group and details of the
compensation of the key management personnel
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ARAEERR ARBEER
BRETBRARARANEEZERE
BAE -FHIEEEAE#NE
ZFHBENR A M S RIS o

Annual Report 2023

T -FFWR

249



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

35. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Financial assets

2023

35.

THE

BE
FHRERIAR
-

PEsZEMTR

E

20234

Financial assets at FVTPL

B 7% R MR

VR EHRMREEN

UAREHEEESS
TABRBNEREE
Designated Financial
as such  Mandatorily assets at
upon initial designated amortised
recognition as such cost
R
RAS BAGTEN
BRREE REERE SREE Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts due from joint ventures EREEER - - 217,880 217,880
Financial assets at fair value through AR fE5tE B HEE
profit or loss FABENEREE 76,028 360,289 - 436,317
Loan receivables EER - - 1,894,369 1,894,369
Trade receivables JEURER X - - 6,362 6,362
Financial assets included in deposits, i ARS - BRZK
prepayments and other receivables Hib el £ b
BE - - 834,942 834,942
Amount due from an associate e A YNCIE: - - 416,542 416,542
Cash and bank balances ReRBTER - - 57,333 57,333
76,028 360,289 3,427,428 3,863,745

250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F 1231 H I FE

35. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2022

35. BEREszERMITA(E)
SRMEEE)
20224

Financial assets at FVTPL
KAREFEREE

FABERNEREE
Designated Financial
as such Mandatorily assets at
upon initial designated amortised
recognition as such cost Total
8 3!
NI RAGTER
BREET BHIEE tREE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET FAET FET
Amounts due from joint ventures JEUA &1 - - 430,437 430,437
Financial assets at fair value WAREEERE
through profit or loss TABERNEREE 156,385 654,684 = 811,069
Loan receivables FERER - - 2,246,377 2,246,377
Trade receivables YRR — - 3,934 3,934
Financial assets included in HARE - BAEK
deposits, prepayments and HihEhzz &8t
other receivables BE - - 905,056 905,056
Amount due from an associate  JEUg— KB = A Bl = = 439,486 439,486
Restricted bank balance R HIRITE - - 674,814 674,814
Cash and bank balances Re RiBTES - - 97,517 97,517
156,385 654,684 4,797,621 5,608,690
Financial liabilities THas

All financial liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 were financial liabilities at amortised

cost.

BAE -

AN & B R20234F K2022F12 A31H K
eEsma B ARBHERAITENS

Annual Report 2023

T -FFWR

251



252

36. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of
trade receivables, financial assets included in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables, amounts due from
joint ventures, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits,
cash and bank balances, financial liabilities included in
accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables
and the current portion of borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the
directors of the Company is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the
audit committee of the Company. At each reporting
date, the finance department of the Group analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the directors
of the Company. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instruments could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % 4 Bt #& 3R & Mi 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 12531 HIFF/Z
36. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

Financial Instruments (Continued)

The fair values of non-current portion of amount due
from an associate and borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The fair
value of the liability component of the convertible
bonds is estimated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate for
a similar convertible bond with consideration of the
Group’s own non-performance risk. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for borrowings as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
were assessed to be insignificant. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, since their carrying amounts
are not significantly different from their respective fair
values, no disclosure of fair values of these financial
instruments is made.

The fair values of the listed equity investments are
based on their quoted market prices. The fair values
of certain club debentures have been valued based on
historical transaction price from the relevant institutions,
which are classified as Level 2. The fair values of
unlisted securities and unlisted funds are based on
adjusted net assets approach by adjusting the book
value of assets and liabilities of investees to their fair
values, or estimated by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the contractual disposal
price of an unlisted security.

The fair value of the non-performing asset portfolio
is estimated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and the aggregate of the values of
the underlying collateral secured to the respective
outstanding receivables owned by the creditors. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for non-performing
asset portfolio as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 was
assessed to be insignificant.

36.

48

A

FEU — KB & A Rk R MBS H IE R BN B
PHRABENERERAERAHIARE
Rz FIERZBLIER - ERERRSHT
HHEA - RRBHRKRBESREM
B ZERIAEBZTRBORR - Al
BRESBERHD 2 AR EREMNTRE
EH o REMSHEIRBEEHRLE S
MEHEIT(EHET © R20234F 2022412
A318 - EASBEAFEBRZTELR
Bemsl B AN BEESETEALTE
R RRAREERA  BRHREEH
HEABNANEBELEREEZR  QIE
WEZSLRTANARE -

EFARARE 2 ARETIERE TSR
BEE - &TEMESFZANETIRE
ARBEEZRZE/ELEME - &
RE2R - FFLEMESFRIFLTESZ
ARETDEHERENFZEERAEBR
EEARZEEARE  RELHARFE
EXREE  IRBE-FFLHEFZA
MHESBERFTRARSRERA A
At

TREEMRE ZAAETEREELE
FEREARBHTAZINRER  RE
EANFTHEA 2 & AR EERUGRIE D KT
2 MR IR G 2 R EE RN 2 TEER R 2K
WeMEEITHET - R2023%F 2022
F12A31H  AEERITREEASE
EZZEHNRBRETHAMTRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

36. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 36. ERMITAZAARBERAABEER
Financial Instruments (Continued) (#%)

ARREZRA  ABERMASEHZ
AR AR EGIAZREMHRRER) LA
AREREEHGTABER)BEE B
WERRZEBEZEE

The directors of the Company believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

ATRIELTEAES  SELTEESR
TREEMAR/RENERTAEREA

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of unlisted equity securities, unlisted

0B .
funds and non-performing asset portfolio: BUgRHLZ -
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs
hERE EXTTERRARE
T o2
Unlisted equity securities and Adjusted net asset approach Book value of assets and 289 475

liabilities of the investees
adjusted to their fair value
(HKS million)
BRRERAZEERABHER
BREZEAAE(REET)

unlisted funds

FEMBAEZRELIEE  SRBOFEEL

Non-performing assets portfolio  Discounted cash flow approach — Aggregate of the valuation of the 140 408
individual underlying collateral
secured to the respective
outstanding receivables
owned by the creditors
(HKS million)
HERAMRANERAEER
KRN ENRBERR
MitEER(AEET)

FREEMR TRAEERE)

A 1% increase/decrease in the fair values of assets
and liabilities of the investees would result in an
increase/decrease in the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities and unlisted funds of HK$2,890,000 (2022:
HK$4,750,000).

A 1% increase/decrease in the fair value of the
collateral for the respective non-performing assets
would result in an increase/decrease in the fair value of
the non-performing assets portfolio of HK$1,400,000
(2022: HK$4,080,000).

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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BRERAMEERABZANLEE
moRm 1% BEBE ETRAE
HERIELETESHIABELN, B
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
36. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 36. TRMITAZAABERAABER
Financial Instruments (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy DAAREER
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRETRAEEeHIAZAABENE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial 8 -
instruments:
Fair value measurement using
FERTHREZARETE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RERTS EATERE EATUEE
ZHE BAgE BAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$°000 THERT (1) (%E24%) (E34%) @5t

Assets measured at fair value 2023 12/31H
as at 31 December 2023: BAR B EZEE:

Financial assets at fair value PARETEREEE)
through profit or loss SABRHNEREE 16,534 1,640 418,143 436,317

Assets measured at fair value — FO022412H31H
as at 31 December 2022: BAREITEZEE:

Financial assets at fair value PARETEREEE)

through profit or loss HABSHESREE 66,909 2,370 741,790 811,069
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, HE2023F K2022F12A31HIEFE -
there were no transfers of fair value measurements SREERSREBERENFE1REED
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or HEERITAALEE - EEA
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial s EE B3R o

liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

36. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3

during the years are as follows:

(&)

DREERGE)

36. TRMIAZAR

FR - BIMAZAAEFT

REFHR

BT

Financial
assets
SREE
HK$'000
FEIT
At 1 January 2022 7K20224%1 A1H 969,876
Additions of financial assets at fair RNEBRBIF A EFEBEZ T ABRD
value through profit or loss measured & g& E
at fair value in Level 3 35,437
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HE®ZRFEIF A EFFEBEE BT ABIRD
through profit or loss measured at SREE
fair value in Level 3 (50,038)
Total loss recognised in profit or loss ~ WiB#ER Z EBASE (138,720)
Exchange realignment PEE 5, 28 (74,765)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 72022912331 H K&2023F1HA1H
2023 741,790
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERFEIHZAREE B EEF T ABRED
through profit or loss measured at SREE
fair value in Level 3 (217,934)
Total loss recognised in profit or loss — RIBzEFER 2 BB (96,912)
Exchange realignment b 5, R R (8,801)
At 31 December 2023 72023412 A31H 418,143

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bt E20234 12831 AL FE

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
borrowings, amounts due from an associate and
joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors of the
Company review and agree policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
borrowings set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The
Group manages its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate borrowings.

At 31 December 2023, if the interest rate of borrowings
had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables
held constant, the loss before taxation of the Group,
through the impact on floating rate borrowings,
would have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$20,951,000 (2022: HK$22,412,000).

37.

TREREEBEEREE

FEEFESRIABREER  BK
—KBERRRAELENR - B HEITR
TERMRTEREEAE - ZF2RT
AT ERZERAKEXRKEERR
B  AEEBRUERELHAMS
MEEMAE BEEXREBEEBZE -

AEEERTAMEETERARRHNEX
Rk - SNERER  EERBRERABES
kg - ARREZEMLREEHEERE
b BIEER 2 BER - WA -

F=E R

AEEMEHZ TSN ERBERTE
BR A SRR M T2 el 2 AR E B
FEM AEEYECERITESHTE
PASS A R @B o 7R 5= B ER A B E I AT
BRI EEFASEEENERA

MR2023412A318 » E A Hith &
RETBNBERT @ WERFE L
S TE1% IR ZEBFEEBRZF
2 RNEBERKRBATESEAALG MWL
20,951,0005 7T (20224 : 22,412,000
BIL) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

37.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The major financial assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities. Other than a loan receivable
which is denominated in United States dollars, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions
are denominated in the functional currency of each
individual group entity.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes (2022: Nil).

Credit risk

The Group only trades with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise loans receivable, amounts due from
joint ventures and an associate, pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balance, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

For the Group’s trade receivables, since the Group only
trades with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentration
of credit risk is managed by counterparty. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk for the Group’s
trade receivables.

Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
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37.

tREREEEERBE(Z)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt % 3R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
cREREEEEREE(Z)

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37.

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERK(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging RERBRFLZER

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The amounts
represented gross carrying amounts for financial
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2023

TRETENRAEBEEERRNEEE
ZkEREERR(ZEROBHERSE
- BRIEE A R 15 E BB AR L REINK
AN E H) - A RF2023%F k20224
12A31BMFREBEIE - TTe%
AeREERELELMBERENE
R EERR o

M2023512H31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A7
LEFR 2HEHEEEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 3 approach
HK$'000 T -8 F=RB B A
Trade receivables YRR - - - 6,362 6,362
Loan receivables ERER
— Normal* -—fR 95,610 - - - 95,610
— Doubtful* - & - 261,589 1,995,083 - 2,256,672
Financial assets included in st A%% - BAH
deposits, prepayments and R EMEKEZ
other receivables SREE
— Normal* - 346,423 - - - 346,423
— Doubtful* - & - 42,164 645,671 - 687,835
Amount due from an associate U —FE LR AR
— Doubtful* - & - 515,742 - - 515,742
Amounts due from joint FEWASMER
ventures
— Normal* -—fR 222,313 - - - 222,313
Cash and bank balances B RFITHE
— Not yet past due - MRS 57,333 - - - 57,333
721,679 819,495 2,640,754 6,362 4,188,290
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. cRMEREEEERBK(E)
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) SEREB(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BERBRFEEBE(E)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2022 PR20229F12 A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{H A7
FEBE SHRBESER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
HK$'000 TET F-R& FEE E Bltn# Bt
Trade receivables MRS - - - 3,934 3,934
Loan receivables s EST
— Normal* - - - - - -
— Doubtful* - & - 1,919,899 475,800 - 2,395,699
Financial assets included in st A%% - BAH
deposits, prepayments and  REMEKZ
other receivables SREE
— Normal* -—fR 439,250 - - - 439,250
— Doubtful* - & - 391,494 106,829 - 498,323
Amount due from an associate JEU —RHEL R A
— Doubtful* - & = 523,099 = - 523,099
Amounts due from joint FRAELER
ventures
— Normal* -—fR 440,014 — — — 440,014
Restricted bank balance RBHIGITES
— Not yet past due - WABH 674,814 - - - 674,814
Cash and bank balances Be RETES
— Not yet past due - WABH 97,517 - - - 97,517
1,651,595 2,834,492 582,629 3,934 5,072,650
* The credit quality of loan receivables, financial assets * MERER st A% BNREHE
included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables fth FEULGR 2 & Bh & BE LA B FE I — R B
and amounts due from an associate and joint ventures ERAREERERME @ Wi RE
is considered to be “normal” when they are not past HEBENBERZSSREEZEE
due and there is no information indicating that the e B VAR AREZ RS - BIE
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk EEERWEAIERE] - B8l &5
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of CRMEENEEERWA AR -

the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt % 3R & Mi 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have been put
in place for contingency purposes.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

As at 31 December 2023

Within one

year or

on demand

R—FR5E

HK$'000 THERL REX

37. TREAREEBERBRE)

In the
second year

REZF

RBESER

AEEZBEBERBNEBNBER - #
=

RESFHEN
WRIRITRLE - MBI 2 -

ST MRS o BLsh

=

TERBARBEORUBBENRAEEE
BMAEREZIHER -

72023512H31H

In the

third to

fifth years,
inclusive
RE=ZERE
(BEERME)

Beyond

five years

REFHE

Accrued charges, rental [EHER  AEERER

deposits and other H bR
payables 419,184 - - - 419,184
Borrowings &3t 4,054,940 43,644 55,275 - 4,153,859
Lease liabilities RERE 5,214 5,527 16,913 32,744 60,398
Financial guarantee contracts 81 FERA4) 2,839,041 - - - 2,839,041
7,318,379 49,171 72,188 32,744 7,472,482
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12831 HILFE
37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. cRMEREEEERBK(E)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRAKE)
As at 31 December 2022 K2022F12H31H
In the
Within one third to
year or In the fifth years, Beyond
on demand second year inclusive five years Total
R—ER RE=ZERF
HK$'000 TiEr REX REZE (BEEERE) RAEELE &5t
Accrued charges, rental [EitER  AEEE R
deposits and other L ARE
payables 1,204,446 - - - 1,204,446
Convertible bonds R ES 41,712 - - - 41,712
Borrowings & 1,686,916 687,248 2,364,563 - 4,738,727
Lease liabilities HERE 5,839 5,839 18,569 43,228 73,475
Financial guarantee contracts BSR4 4 3,576,622 = = = 3,576,622
6,515,535 693,087 2,383,132 43,228 9,634,982
Capital management EXrER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37.

Policies (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total borrowings over equity attributable to owners
of the Company. Total borrowings included borrowings
and convertible bonds, which had been fully redeemed
by the Company in 2023. The gearing ratios as at the
end of the reporting periods were as follows:

tREREEEERBE(Z)

EXEE(E)

AEERAEEABLREREAN - F
RALL R Ty DAtE SR RRRR AR R B A A
FEIEER L - EREBEBRERRA
B E S (ER2023F H AR B EEE
@)  R|EHBMR - AEEZEER
BERET :

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$'000

FAET FEIT

Short-term borrowings 2 HRfE K 3,485,049 1,388,974

Long-term borrowings RHfER 66,887 2,541,766

Convertible bonds ARRES - 41,712

Total borrowings BB 3,551,936 3,972,452
Equity attributable to owners of the R RER AEGIRRE

Company 3,119,792 4,022,397

Gearing ratio BEBGBHX 114% 99%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %z

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

38. Statement of Financial Position of the

38. ARQTRMBMIR T

Chik Bk

Company
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°’000
FET FEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE 24,001 104,107
Investment properties WE M
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - 5= M &E 34,323 35,706
Unlisted investments in SENIELETHBRR
subsidiaries 84,827 675,433
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UL B A B 4,228,542 3,176,853
Amount due from an associate  JEUL— K& N TR 10,410 10,410
Financial assets at fair value LARE28EEBt ABEN
through profit or loss SREE 1,640 1,640
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 4,383,743 4,004,149
CURRENT ASSETS nEEE
Deposits, prepayments and e - BIITRREMERGR
other receivables 49,843 101,894
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEU B A 77K 143,795 121,974
Financial assets at fair value AR EGTEAHEZ ST ABEN
through profit or loss PREE 21,522 76,235
Loan receivables ElE = 365,935 438,614
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTAS 2,831 2,258
Total current assets B EERE 583,926 740,975
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued charges, rental deposits JEZT & - HGIE S R E b FER
and other payables 40,024 768,599
Amounts due to subsidiaries iR ENEIE 1,526,528 154,631
Other borrowings H M EK - 180,000
Convertible bonds ] PR (& & — 41,712
Total current liabilities nEaBREE 1,566,552 1,144,942
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & & Bt #& 8 & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

38. Statement of Financial Position of the 38. AR TMBRREKE)
Company (Continued)

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAET

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BERBEE (982,626) (403,967)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EE#AERABE RS
LIABILITIES 3,401,117 3,600,182

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE

Deferred tax liabilities REHRESE 8,863 8,863
Total non-current liabilities SEmBaERAE 8,863 8,863
Net assets FEE 3,392,254 3,591,319
EQUITY PR #E

Equity attributable to owners of Z<2 T#EH A FE{L IR #E
the Company

Share capital f& 7 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves ] (234,527) (35,462)
Total equity B EsaE 3,392,254 3,591,319
Chen Yongcun Luo Zhihai
BR K77 EER
Director &% Director Z%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 & Bt #& ) & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

38. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

38. RQAIMBEARREKE)

Hiat -
AARFERARAT
Retained
Asset profits/

revaluation

(accumulated

reserve losses) Total
REER,

EEEMREE (R5TEE) #ast

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET FAET

At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1H 99,629 289,744 389,373

Loss for the year FREE = (422,166) (422,166)

Other comprehensive loss for the year 4 RH b2 EE5IE (2,669) = (2,669)

Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 HEBHELE (2,669) (422,166) (424,835)
At 31 December 2022 and R2022F 12318 H

1 January 2023 202341818 96,960 (132,422) (35,462)

Loss for the year FREE — (197,784) (197,784)

Other comprehensive loss for the year G RNE M2 EEIB (1,281) - (1,281)

Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZEEIBAARE (1,281) (197,784) (199,065)

Transfer to accumulated losses upon  RHEMEEEZE
disposal of properties R5TEiE (58,023) 58,023 -
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 37,656 (272,183) (234,527)

39. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2024.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B} & #1 &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B FE2023F 128531 HILFE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
(Restated)
(&E5)
HK$ Million — HKS Milion — HK$ Million — HK$ Million L5010
BEET BEET BE#T BE#T BEET
Results E |
Revenue A 107.6 89.1 87.4 96.9 97.0
Profit/(loss) for the year AREEBAREER
attributable to owners of the A,/ (1)
Company 2.5 (317.6) (1,452.6) (734.6) (947.4)
At 31 December
W12A31H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
(Restated)
(gE5)
HK$ Million — HKS$ Milion — HK$ Million — HK$ Million L3010
BEET BEET BEETL BEET BEET
Assets and liabilities BERER
Investment properties and REMERDE  BEX
property, plant and equipment R 2,800.2 2,875.2 3,001.7 2,547.3 2,187.8
Other intangible assets HinBREE - - 2.8 = —
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 54.2 51.8 437 39.5
Interests in associates B NAER 77.1 85.6 335.5 309.5 274.1
Interests in joint ventures L ERS 3,128.9 3,033.4 1,568.4 1,506.3 1,402.9
Financial assets at fair value WA B2 EEES)
though profit or loss FTABRNEREE
— non-current — ERE 2.8 2.8 167.6 1.6 1.6
Amount due from an associate  JEM—FEL A TIH
— non-current — ERg - - 560.7 439.5 416.5
Amount due from joint ventures  [EURAZMER
— non-current — R 1,165.0 969.9 1,748.0 = 216.2
Loan receivables — non-current  EWE R — ERE 160.9 231.9 - - -
Net current assets/(liabilities) FRBEE/(AF) 2,285.0 3,221.1 1,776.3 2,426.4 (781.0)
9,619.9 10,4741 9,212.8 7,274.3 3,757.6
Share capital N 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8
Reserves M 2,995.4 2,933.0 1,604.6 395.6 (507.0)
Equity attributable to owners of AR AR A (LR iE
the Company 6,622.2 6,559.8 5,231.4 4,022.4 3,119.8
Non-controlling interests JEIRERESS 902.1 824.2 486.9 4721 366.6
Non-current liabilities EnBERE 2,095.3 3,090.1 3,494.6 2,779.8 271.2
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REY ¥ E

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12831 HILFE

The following is a list of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2023:

THAKREBR2023F12 A31 BRI EWE

3= 2o

JBE -

Investment properties in the PRC NRAPBEZREHE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
b B HA R A BEEE
Sq. ft.
FHR
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level O and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng term lease HES
District, Beijing, The PRC A Hf
REIERTRIRERRP 1R RIREZMEE -
EE2ME - RENRIEEIE
2. Level 4 to 31 of South Apartment Tower (including Long lease Residential 31,171
401, 402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408, 501, 502, 503, & A F=
505, 506, 507, 508, 30/F and 31/F), East Gate Plaza,
39 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing,
The PRC
AR Bl b R T R R SR R 395 RIR B R E AR
F4ZE31[E (B1E401, 402, 403, 405, 406, 407, 408,
501, 502, 503, 505, 506, 507, 508, 301& &311%)
3. Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, East Gate Long lease Residential 339,993
Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, Dongcheng District, = HA x=
Beijing, The PRC
PRI ETRRERPEHIORRBRES LR AFE
E4E31
4. Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Po Lou, No. 28 Medium Commercial 10,540
Dong Zhong Jie Jia, Dongcheng District, Beijing, The term lease [HE3
PRC (Note) H HA
FPEIE R R R R PR 28REREFE2ES - 6
N8ER D (K1:t)

Note: The legal titles of the properties have not been passed to the
Group at 31 December 2023.

268 Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited
REFABEZERERERQAF

Biat - WEMEZE#R2023F12A31BHAB
FETAER -



SIlVER GRANT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
GROUP LIMITED
REBBREREEERAA

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(REBZMALZHRAR)
B 13 1R 8% Stock code: 171

Suite 4901, 4%th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong
BEEEBTBEEIR
ERESHAKRE
49184901 %



	封面
	目錄
	財務摘要
	企業資料
	主席報告
	董事簡介
	高級管理人員簡介
	環境、社會及管治
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	投資物業概要
	封底



